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Chairman’s Statement
FERES

04

HKC is beginning to realize the potential of its real estate
projects. First with Nanxun...

The Group has completed the construction of its centralized site for suppliers
of furniture and building materials in Huzhou City. The complex consists of
180,135 sg.m. of space in the Nanxun Economic Development District in
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province.

The Group re-launched sales of its Nanxun units in December 2010. Sales
had been slow earlier in the year as the Group and the market was waiting
for the closure of a nearby trading centre. As it became increasingly apparent
by the middle of December that the trading centre would be closed with
the government’s encouragement, the Group accelerated its sales efforts,
resulting in total accumulated sales of 503 units by 31 December 2010 (312
units were sold in December alone), representing a total area of 31,348
sg.m. or contract sales of RMB272.9 million. The average selling price was
approximately RMB8,700 per sg.m., above original forecasts, and significantly
above land and construction costs of RMB3,092 per sg.m.. The Group
intends to sell the remaining area of 38,575 sqg.m. classified for sale in 2011.

...and second with Tianjin Honggi South Road

HKC also made a limited offering for its townhouses at Tianjin Honggi South
Road. Since this is the first residential development project for HKC, not only
in Tianjin, but also in China, the purpose of this limited offering was to establish
a strong benchmark for HKC’s products. The new benchmark will also help
to market the Group’s high rises apartments to be sold later. The Group sold
3 units at an average above gound GFA price of RMB36,573 per sq.m.. The
Group expects to launch additional sales of better located townhouses and
high rise apartments in the fourth quarter of 2011.
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HKC successfully injects alternative energy assets into
Hong Kong Energy, and will now focus its efforts on
property development.

In August 2010, HKC completed the injection of its alternative energy
assets into Hong Kong Energy (Holdings) Limited (“HKE”), a listed subsidiary
company. In this transaction, HKE issued and alloted approximately 1,358.2
million convertible preference shares at HK61.64 cents per share to HKC.

TPG, one of the world’s largest private equity firms, joins
HKE as a strategic investor, and expects HKE to be its
primary listed platform for alternative energy.

In October 2010, TPG invested HK$195.0 million for 300.0 million convertible
preference shares of HKE at a subscription price of HK65.0 cents per share.
TPG may further subscribe for up to a maximum of 260.0 million convertible
preference shares for an additional of HK$195.0 million at any time during the
four years following the completion of the initial investment. Assuming the full
subscription for all convertible preference shares is exercised and converted;
TPG will hold up to 560.0 million ordinary shares of HKE, equivalent to
approximately 18.5% of the total enlarged share capital of HKE.

TPG is one of the leading private equity firms in the world, and is also a leader
in alternative energy. HKE will be TPG’s primary platform for investing in
alternative energy in China. With TPG as its strategic partner, HKE expects to
be able to accelerate its growth.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FEREEE)

Government restrictions on the property sector are a
concern, but management is confident that the property
market will hold up well in 2011.

In the second quarter of 2010, and over the last couple of months, the PRC
government expressed strong concern over inflation and rising property
prices. As a result, the PRC government has initiated a number of policies to
dampen inflation and property price rises, including: increased interest rates,
higher down payments, restrictions on the number of homes that can be
purchased, restrictions on loans to developers etc. Such policies have clearly
had an impact on transaction volumes for the property market, and slowed
down the property price appreciation that had been recorded in 2009. As a
result, the Group did not record material valuation gains and writebacks in
2010 that it had reported in 2009.

For 2011, our view is that while the PRC government will continue to
implement measures to discourage excessive speculation, it remains
supportive of this sector. The property industry is key to supporting domestic
demand, a desire that the PRC government recognizes is important; and is
also an important source of funds for government expenditures.

Market undervalues the Group’s assets.

As at the end of 2010, the company’s book value per share is HK$1.32 per
share, significantly higher than the current trading price of HK$0.40 per share
as at 29 March 2011. Of this book value, HK$0.21 per share is in cash and
HK$0.31 is in investment properties. Combined, the cash component and the
investment properties are valued at HK$0.52 per share.

For 2011, we are looking to create more clarity on the
value of our assets by selling non-core assets. Already,
in March 2011, the Group has entered into an agreement
to sell Shenzhen Jingguang Centre for RMB850.0 million.

That the market undervalues the true value of the Group’s assets is reflected
in the fact that Group has raised substantial cash from the sale of non-core
assets. In November 2010, given surging prices for retail properties in Hong
Kong, the Group disposed of its interests in certain shops at East Ocean
Centre in Hong Kong, generating HK$76.3 million in cash. Also in the January
2011, the Group entered into an agreement to sell an office building in
Shanghai for RMB95.0 million. And in March 2011, the Group entered into an
agreement to sell its Shenzhen Jingguang Centre for RMB850.0 million.

For the rest of 2011, the Group will continue to explore other opportunities to
dispose of its non-core assets.
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Balance sheet remains strong

Even if the PRC government over tightens, the Group is particularly well
positioned because, unlike many of its major competitors, we enjoy a low
gearing ratio of only 8.3%, excluding loans from minority shareholders.
Moreover, there are no major debts that are coming due. According to the
repayment schedule, HK$547.4 million is due in 2011, HK$446.8 million
is due in 2012, HK$2,367.3 million is due in 2013 and thereafter. Given
the current cash is at HK$2,223.9 million, HKC’s balance sheet remains
financially healthy.

This puts us in an ideal position to grasp the many opportunities at the right
time. While we intend to be cautiously picking projects that have significant
merit, our cash on hand is sufficient to support our requirements for working
capital, as well as to cover the initial development costs of a number of
projects.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERE R D

Financial Review

Total turnover of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 amounted
to HK$499.1 million, an increase of 32.0% over the turnover of HK$378.0
million for 2009. Much of the improved turnover was due to increased
property sales for Shenzhen Diwang, and the launch of sales in Nanxun.
Gross profit for the year of HK$151.8 million also represented an increase of
8.7% over gross profit of HK$139.7 million reported in the previous year.

Net loss attributable to equity holders of the Company amounted to
HK$293.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2010, whereas net profit
in 2009 was HK$1,456.7 million. Basic loss per share amounted to HK2.8
cents, compared with basic profit per share in 2009 of HK14.5 cents.

The primary reason for the difference is that the Group recorded fair value
losses of investment properties instead of the HK$1.1 billion fair value gain
that it recorded in 2009. In 2010, the Group recorded a HK$225.4 million
revaluation loss on the Shanghai Sichuan North Road project to reflect higher
relocation costs. Over the last several years, local governments have become
much more sensitive to social issues relating to the relocation of existing
residents to preserve “social harmony”. As a result, the cost of relocation
becomes higher.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s total borrowings (excluded loans from
non-controlling shareholders) amounted to HK$3,361.5 million, representing a
reduction of 10.9% when compared to HK$3,774.2 million reported as of 31
December 2009. Total borrowings as of 31 December 2010 included Hong
Kong Dollar borrowings of HK$53.6 million (2009: HK$418.8 million) and
Renminbi borrowings equivalent to HK$3,307.9 million (2009: HK$3,355.4
million).

The maturity dates for most of the Group’s outstanding borrowings are
spread over the next five years. According to the repayment schedule,
HK$547.4 million of debt are repayable within one year or on demand,
HK$1,264.4 million are repayable within two to five years, and HK$1,549.7
million are repayable after five years.

All of the Group’s outstanding borrowings take the form of interest-bearing
loans, with interest rates fixed at market prices.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had restricted deposits of HK$320.6
million (2009: HK$309.0 million) and unrestricted cash and cash equivalents
amounting to HK$1,903.3 million (2009: HK$2,210.0 million).

The Group did not use financial instruments for financial hedging purposes
during the year under review.

The Group will continue its efforts to create an optimum financial structure
that best reflects the long-term interests of its shareholders, and will
actively consider a variety of alternative sources of funding to finance future
investments.

Details of Charges in Group Assets

During the year, the Company and certain of its subsidiaries had charged
certain assets worth HK$4,799.8 million (2009: HK$2,537.0 million) as
security for bank and other loans. The increase was mostly related to a
property development project in Tianjin.

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio, defined as total borrowings (excluding loans from
non-controlling shareholders) less cash and cash equivalents (including
restricted cash) divided by total equity, as at 31 December 2010 was 8.3%,
compared with 9.4% as at 31 December 2009.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group’s investment property located in Shenzhen, the PRC is subject
to housing facility fund pursuant to <ZE3I| 48 754 2 {F =8 [2 1) 3 8 18 16 01>
adopted on 1 November 1994. Contingent liabilities of RMB75.8 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$89.7 million) (2009: RMB75.8 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$86.1 million)) arising in this respect have
been assessed by management with reference to the legal opinion previously
obtained. Management have requested relief from the relevant local
government authorities on the grounds that certain amounts of maintenance
costs were already spent for the purposes as specified under the requirement
of housing facility fund, hence no further provision for the fund is considered
necessary. The case is still under local government review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENwEN (&)

Business Review

Property Investment, Development and Management
The Group holds a property investment portfolio made up of premium office
and commercial developments in Shenzhen, Guangzhou and Beijing. These
continue to provide the Group with a steady stream of rental revenue during
the year. The Group also holds interests in the Peninsula Beijing Hotel in
Beijing.

The Group has recently disposed of some of its non-core investment
properties. In the last quarter of 2010, as prices for retail properties in Hong
Kong surged, the Group sold its interests in the retail shops at East Ocean
Centre in Hong Kong for HK$76.3 million. Also in January 2011, the Group
entered into an agreement to dispose of an office building in Shanghai for
RMB95.0 million. In March 2011, the Group entered into an agreement to sell
its Shenzhen Jingguang Centre for RMB850.0 million.

Nanxun

Nanxun International Building Material City is a trading center consisting of
180,135 sg.m. of space for the trading of wooden flooring, furniture and
building materials. In addition, the City has a business and storage centre.

The Group re-launched sales of the units in December 2010. Sales had
been slow earlier in the year as the Group and the market was waiting for
the closure of a nearby trading centre. As it became increasingly apparent
by the middle of December that the trading centre would be closed with
the government’s encouragement, the Group accelerated its sales efforts,
resulting in total accumulated sales of 503 units by the end of 31 December
2010 (312 units were sold in December alone), representing a total area of
31,348 sq.m. or contract sales of RMB272.9 million. The average selling
price was approximately RMB8,700 per sq.m., above original forecasts, and
significantly above land and construction costs of RMB3,092 per sg.m.. The
Group intends to sell the remaining area of 38,575 sq.m. classified for sale in
2011.

Tianjin

Tianjin Hongqi South Road

The Group’s Tianjin Hongagi South Road project is located at a premium site
surrounded by Water Park, Tianjin Olympic Centre as well as Nancuiping
Park. The Project has a planned above-ground GFA of approximately
150,000 sg.m., of which 75%, or 112,500 sqg.m. is attributable to the Group.
Affiliates of CB Richard Ellis are the remaining 25% beneficial holder of the
site.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The first phase consists of 52 units of townhouses. By December 2010, the
first phase was substantially completed, with all townhouses topped out. In
order to establish a new benchmark in the area, and also for HKC products,
the Group made a special and limited offering in which it sold three units at
an above ground GFA price of RMB36,573 per sg.m.. The next major launch
is expected in the fourth quarter of 2011, and will include pre-sales of the
second phase high rise units. Piling for phases 2 and 3 were completed in
January 2011, and construction is expected to be completed in stages in the
second half of 2013.

Tianjin Tuanbo Lake

Construction at Tianjin Tuanbo Lake has been delayed due to the
government’s need to resolve lawsuits filed by local residents related to the
development of Tuanbo Lake. These lawsuits have now been settled. As a
result, island site formation work commenced in November 2010. The soil
filing works and the retaining structure will be completed by the end of July
2011,

Shanghai

Shanghai continues to benefit from strong government support. According
to a document issued by the State Council on 29 April 2009, the central
government plans to establish Shanghai as an international financial centre
and shipping hub by 2020. Meanwhile, Shanghai’s industrial and service
sectors continue to grow. For example, the government approved China’s
first Disneyland to be built in Shanghai. The government also announced
that Shanghai will be the assembling and manufacturing centre of China’s
homegrown ARJ21 regional civil jet and C919 large civil jet.

The Group has two projects in Shanghai, both are prime office/commercial
sites located in Hongkou District at the North Bund and Sichuan North Road
respectively. In 2010, piling work at the North Bund site was completed. A
large part of the excavation has been completed, and construction has begun
on the basement. The construction loan for the project has been obtained,
and work on the superstructure has begun in 2011, with a target completion
date of around 2014.

For the Sichuan North Road development, the Group continues to discuss
with the government the best option to resettle the existing owners of the
phase 2 site. Given rising prices for land in Shanghai, these owners are
demanding higher compensation to move out. To reflect the rising relocation
costs, the Group has revalued down the market value of the project as at 31
December 2010. The Group is actively pursuing a strategy with a plan to start
the construction of phase 1 in the third quarter of 2011.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Jiangmen

The Group is making significant progress on its Jiangmen development.
The Jiangmen site is situated within walking distance to the ferry terminal to
Hong Kong, and is fronting the river bank of Xi Jiang — as such, many of the
apartments to be developed will have excellent water views. Moreover, a new
light railway connecting Zhuhai and Guangzhou has commenced operation
recently with a station only 15 minutes by walk from the Jiangmen site.

The project consists of low rise townhouses and high-rise buildings with
total GFA of approximately 189,000 sq.m. Excellent landscape design with
a central lake provides an exquisite environment. Site formation works have
been completed, and piling work has begun in mid- March 2011. The entire
project is expected to be completed in phases starting from 2012 to 2013,
with pre-sale of the first phase targeted in the fourth quarter of 2011.

Shenyang

For the Shenyang South Lake project, the Group is still waiting for the
government to complete the relocation of the existing residents. As of
February 2011, about half of the residents had been relocated. The Group
now expects the government to hand over the land in several stages, and
anticipates that the first stage handover will occur in the first half of 2011,
with construction beginning accordingly. Meanwhile, the government has
approved the Group’s master planning design scheme for Shenyang Jingang
Tower in August 2010. Detailed design work is currently underway.

Shenzhen

Rental income in our Shenzhen properties decreased by approximately
14.4%. The decrease in rental income was a result of sale of certain
properties during 2010.

Alternative Energy

The Group’s alternative energy businesses are now conducted through Hong
Kong Energy (Holdings) Limited (‘HKE”), a subsidiary company listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange. The disposal of all HKC’s attributable
interests in its wind farms and waste-to-energy plant to HKE was completed
on 31 August 2010. In this transaction, HKE issued and allotted 1,358.2
million convertible preference shares at HK61.64 cents per share to HKC.
HKC will therefore continue to share in the upside of the alternative energy
projects that it started.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

In October 2010, HKE entered into an agreement with TPG, one of the
largest global private investment firms in the world, under which TPG made
a strategic investment in HKE through the subscription of 300.0 million
convertible preference shares at HK$195.0 million. TPG may further subscribe
for up to a maximum of 260.0 million convertible preference shares for an
additional of HK$195.0 million at any time during the four years following
the completion of the initial investment. Assuming the full subscription for all
convertible preference shares is exercised and converted, TPG will hold up to
560.0 million ordinary shares of HKE, equivalent to approximately 18.5% of
the total enlarged share capital of HKE.

In 2010, HKE completed the construction of all its windpower projects
on hand, and all are in full commercial operation in 2011. Wind data from
Danjinghe and Lunaobao in Hebei Province, and Changma Gansu Province
indicate wind resources are likely to be above initial forecasts.

Infrastructure

Located in the Yangpu Economic Development Zone in Hainan, the Group’s
water supply plant continued to generate good returns. The plant is currently
the sole supplier of raw water for industrial use in the area, so remains in an
excellent position for achieving recurring long-term revenues. In 2010, water
volume sold increased by 30.5%, from 3.6 million cubic metres per month to
4.7 million cubic metres per month.

The Group’s Build-Operate-Transfer toll road project is located in Guilin,
linking up with China’s Western Expressway. The traffic flow has been steadily
increasing this year, particularly as the government has been supportive
in diverting drivers to use the highway. As the economy rebounds, and as
travelers become more accustomed to the new highway, traffic volumes on
the toll road are expected to rise. For 2010, traffic flow increased by 24.2%
from 219,000 vehicles per month to 272,000 vehicles per month.

Construction

The project for drainage improvements in the Tuen Mun and Sham
Tseng areas of Hong Kong, under a contract from the Drainage Services
Department of the HKSAR government worth approximately HK$68.3 million,
was substantially completed by the end of 2010. The Group intends to focus
on developing its property development projects, and does not intend to
tender for construction projects in Hong Kong — a sector where margins are
currently very thin.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Outlook

Property Investment, Development and Management
For 2011, the Group intends to continue its focus on selling the remaining
units classified for sale in Nanxun. With the renewed marketing efforts, the
Group expects strong demand for the next phase sales.

The Group will also launch pre-sales of its townhouses and high rise units in
Tianjin Honggi South Road. Given the continued rises in disposable income
and the desire for improvement of the standard of living by the local residents,
the Group expects overall demand for good quality housing will remain
strong. The Tianjin project will consist of townhouses ranging in size from 250
to 290 sq.m. and apartment units ranging in size from 130 to 330 sq.m.

The Group also expects presales of the first phase of its Jiangmen project
during the fourth quarter of 2011. At the same time, the Group will continue
exploring the monetization of some of its non-core assets through sales of
non-core properties and projects.

Alternative Energy

HKC will continue to participate in the growth of the sector through HKE.
HKE has a considerable pipeline of wind farm projects that it anticipates
developing. With a strong partner in TPG, HKE expects to continue its rapid
development. Recently, due to oversupply, the price for wind turbines have
dropped about 30%. This decline will further increase the financial returns on
future wind farms.

Employees

As at the end of December 2010, the Group’s operations in Hong Kong and
the Mainland China employed the total of approximately 675 employees.
All employees are remunerated according to the nature of their jobs, their
individual performances, the Group’s overall performance, and prevailing
marketing conditions.
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Corporate Governance Report

Corporate Governance Practices

HKC (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”, and with its subsidiaries, collectively,
the “Group”) is committed to good corporate governance principles and
practices and its board of directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) recognizes
that it is essential to safeguard the interests of shareholders, customers and
employees and uphold accountability, transparency and responsibility of the
Company.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with the code
provisions and certain recommended best practices set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the year ended 31 December
2010, save for the deviations with considered reasons stated in the following
relevant paragraphs.

Board Of Directors

Board Composition

The Company has at all time during the year ended 31 December 2010
maintained a balanced board with strong independent element. The Board
currently comprises eleven Directors with two Executive Directors and nine
Non-executive Directors, four of whom are independent. Each Director
possesses expertise and experience and provides checks and balances for
safeguarding the interests of the Group and the shareholders as a whole.
Biographical details of the Directors and their relationships, where applicable,
are set out in pages 25 to 29 of this Annual Report.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three Independent Non-executive
Directors with at least one Independent Non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors was assessed in accordance with the applicable Listing Rules. Each
of the Independent Non-executive Directors has provided to the Company
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all of them to be independent.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE ()

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company were
exercised by two different individuals. Mr. OEl Tjie Goan is the Chairman
and Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie is the Chief Executive Officer (‘CEQ”) of the
Company. Their responsibilities had been clearly set out and approved by the
Board. The Board considers that this arrangement facilitates the execution of
the Group’s business strategies and maximizes effectiveness of its operation.
The Board shall nevertheless review its structure from time to time and it will
consider the appropriate move to take should suitable circumstance arise.

Mr. OEI Tjie Goan, the Chairman of the Company, is the father of Mr. OEl
Kang, Eric, an executive director of the Company.

Responsibilities of Directors

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Group by directing
and supervising the Group’s affairs and formulating business strategies with a
view to maximizing its financial performance and shareholders’ value.

All newly appointed Directors are given comprehensive documentations of the
business operations of the Group and regulatory and statutory requirements as
director together with briefing meetings with senior executives of the Group.
Directors are provided with continuous updates on the latest changes in the
Listing Rules, corporate governance practices and other relevant laws and
regulations and are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development seminars to update their knowledge for discharging directors’
responsibilities.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify the
Group’s Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Delegation by the Board

The management, consisting of the Executive Directors of the Company
along with other senior executives, is delegated with responsibilities for
implementing the strategy and direction as adopted by the Board from time
to time, and conducting the day-to-day operations of the Group. Executive
Directors and senior executives meet regularly to review the performance
of the businesses of various business units of the Group as a whole, co-
ordinate overall resources and make financial and operation decision. The
Board also gives clear directions as to their powers of management including
circumstances where management should report back, and will review the
delegation arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.
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Nomination, Appointment and Re-election of Directors
All new appointment of Directors and nomination of Directors proposed
for re-election at the annual general meeting are first considered by the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate
or incumbent on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to
commit time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put to the Board
for decision. Details of the role and function as well as a summary of the work
performed by the Nomination Committee are set out under the heading of
“Nomination Committee” below.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, the nearest one-third of the
Directors shall retire from office by rotation but are eligible for re-election
by shareholders at the annual general meeting provided that every Director
is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. New
appointments to the Board are also subject to re-election by shareholders at
the next following annual general meeting.

All Non-executive Directors of the Company were appointed with no specific
term, but are subject to aforesaid rotation requirement in the Company’s Bye-
laws. The rotating Directors who are subject to retirement and re-election at
the 2011 annual general meeting are set out on page 32.

Meetings of the Board and Board Committees

The Directors meet from time to time to discuss and exchange ideas on the
affairs of the Company. The Board has set up various Board Committees,
among others, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the Group’s
affairs.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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During the year, the following meetings of the Board, the Audit Committee, A » EEHg - %4’??/\ 2 REEE S KD
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee were held and ZE@QRT @ %  SEFNZETeELE
the attendance of the individual Directors at these meetings is set out in the &R Tk :
table below:
Number of meetings attended/held
BHiEEiTEREE
Audit Remuneration =~ Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee
EEg EREEE e P REZE8
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. OEI Kang, Eric ERIELE 4/4 2/2(Note fffzE)  2/2(Note KfzE)  2/2(Note HizE)
Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie RUBLAE 11 1/1(Note fifzE)  N/A NiEFA N/A TNiE A
(appointed on 1 September 2010) (R=ZF—FFENHA—H
EZEF)
Mr. WAN Man Yee BXEEE 3/4 N/A i Fa N/A i £ N/A FiiE R
(resigned on 20 December 2010) (R-F—FF
+=A=1+HFHE)
Mr. TANG Sau Wai, Tom WFELE 3/3 N/A T N/A EF N/A TE
(resigned on 1 September 2010) (R=F—FFNHA—H
FHE)
Non-executive Directors *HTES
Mr. OEl Tjie Goan BEREE 0/4 N/A 1@ A N/A i N/A i A
Mr. LI Xueming FERALE 0/4 N/A T N/A TEF N/A T E A
Mr. XU Zheng IRAESR A 0/4 N/A i N/A NE A N/A TNE A
(resigned on 6 April 2011) (R=F——FH~NH
BHE)
Ms. YEN Teresa HRELL 3/4 N/A T N/A 73 B N/A N A
Mr. WAN Ming Sun FHELLE 0/4 N/A 1@ A N/A i N/A i A
Mr. LIU Guolin FIBMEE 1/4 N/A T N/A TEF N/A T E
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ B FHITES
Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip BEBRE 4/4 2/2 11 11
Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico BEREE 2/4 2/2 11 11
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo BSR4 4/4 2/2 11 11
Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior EIBEE 4/4 2/2 11 i

Note: The Executive Directors attended the relevant meetings as invitees.

Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular board meetings
to provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in
the agenda for a regular meeting. For other board and committee meetings
of the Company, reasonable notice is generally given. The agenda and
accompanying board papers are dispatched to the Directors or committee
members at least 3 days before the regular board or committee meetings to
ensure that they have sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately
prepared for the meetings. When Directors or committee members are
unable to attend a meeting, they are advised of the matters to be discussed
and given an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairman prior to
the meeting.
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Minutes of the board meetings and committee meetings are recorded in
sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and the committees
and the decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors.
Draft minutes of each board meeting and committee meeting are sent to the
Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the
meeting is held. All Directors have access to the company secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that the board procedures are complied with and
advising the Board on compliance matters.

Directors could have recourse to seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company’s expense and are encouraged
to access and to consult with the Company’s senior management
independently.

Model Code For Securities Transactions By Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”) as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiries, all Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code during
the year ended 31 December 2010.

The Company has also adopted a code for dealing in the Company’s
securities by relevant employees, who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information in relation to the securities of the
Group, on no less exacting terms than the Model Code.

Remuneration Committee

The Company had established a Remuneration Committee with written terms
of reference. The Remuneration Committee, chaired by an Independent Non-
executive Director, comprises four members namely Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee,
Mico, Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo, Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior and Mr.
FAN Yan Hok, Philip, all of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for
Directors and senior management, and reviewing their remuneration
packages. In arriving at its recommendations, the Remuneration Committee
will consult with the Chairman and/or the CEO whenever it thinks fit and take
into consideration factors such as the remuneration paid by comparable
companies, skill, knowledge, time commitment and responsibilities of
Directors.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting and
reviewed, inter alia, the remuneration policy and structure of the Company,
the Directors’ fee and the remuneration of the newly appointed Director. No
Director was involved in deciding his own remuneration at the meetings of the
Committee. The attendance records of each member are set out on page 18.
Details of the Directors’ remuneration for the year are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERME (E)

EEeNhEEgeR RN R RIES
SNEZEEMERFBRZFBRAMER RE -
&%é%ZEﬁkﬁ EESEREEEER
E E uﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁl&ﬁ’\ u%%:;ﬁiTT H Hﬁfé Eﬁ {EHTFﬂ
ﬁi%% NERER - 28ERHAERQ
MEBAE TME/,\,\EHEE%EL#%?A&
[Fr e REERNEESRHER

BEEHER
8 i%%ﬁHEEIZlK AP
PSETIZNYN 7#1&%.@"

BT E ZHMRH BRBIEXEE
J’T%WEMIEUH?%?%

ESETHESERG 2ZESTH

ARRCHRM LRS- PrE L ETAE
RETEFRXZNERETR(RETA DIERE
MESETEFRPIZRTTH - ER2RES
EHARENREK  2REFTRER  REREE
TR+ _A=t+-BILFE-—BAETEE
STRIESIZ SRR -

ARANERBERREEEARTES 2
Al S RE TR EAABARRES 2 KO0
BEEBER - ABTAERTEREETAE
£

FHNEES

ARARKIHMNERS - DHT L EERER

l HE B e — %ﬁi#ﬁﬁé%ﬁ&f
 EEIE B ERE S - WAL

JMESEE& X e {Jﬁviﬁz\%ﬁ_ﬁlﬁﬂﬁi
=o

FMEE S AERARREERSREREZH

MR AEBAEESELERRE - ARERN
BREZHHER - REDRHEER - FNEES

RERREBRFEALER,HITHRAE - I E
BEAMATLLEB AR A - EF 26 A
o R RBEERE

/—r/\*%

FR ”M;%@E% — k& g (A
BIRARBFMEREMGEE  ETRERTET
BEZE M cBEMENLZEYRHEEBTR
AEZEHMN - SREBZHELEHHNEI8E o F

NEEHMHBRREREMTERRMEEI0 -

BEER (ER) ARAE o —T-THEER

19



20

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE ()

Nomination Committee

The Company had established a Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference. The Nomination Committee, chaired by an Independent Non-
executive Director, comprises four members namely Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee,
Mico, Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo, Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior and Mr. FAN
Yan Hok, Philip, all of whom are independent. The Nomination Committee
held one meeting during the year, and the attendance details of each member
are set out on page 18.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board, identifying suitable candidates for directorship,
assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors, and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed appointment
or re-appointment.

During the year, the work performed by the Nomination Committee includes
the following:

o reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board;
° assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors;
° assessing the qualification and experience of new candidate for

directorship and making recommendation to the Board on matters
relating to the appointment of director.

Audit Committee

The Company had established an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference which have been updated from time to time to align with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code. The Audit Committee, chaired by an
Independent Non-executive Director, comprises four members namely Mr.
CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico, Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo, Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA,
Junior and Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip, all of whom are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to, inter alia, review
and supervise the Group’s financial reporting process, internal control and risk
management procedures, as well as oversee the adequacy of the accounting
and financial reporting resources.

During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings together with
senior management and external auditors, the attendance details of each
member are set out on page 18. The major work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year included reviewing the interim and annual financial
statements, the continuing connected transactions, the internal audit reports
on the internal controls and risk management matters, as well as reviewing
and recommending the re-appointment of external auditors.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the fees in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided to the Group by the auditor amounted to
approximately HK$6.9 million and HK$6.0 million respectively. The non-
audit services mainly consist of tax advisory services and corporate exercise
professional fee.
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Internal Controls

The Group has had in place an integrated framework of internal controls which
is consistent with the COSO (the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations
of the Treadway Commission) framework. Under the framework, the
management is primarily responsible for the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal controls while the Board and its audit committee
oversee the actions of the management and monitor the effectiveness of the
controls that have been put in place. The framework and activities taken are
illustrated below:

‘ Control Envirnoment '

. Risk awareness and control consciousness are built into the culture of
the Group.
AR NN R RN R E R
Channels to communicate the Company’s commitment to integrity and
high ethical standards to the staff are established.
RARE R R TEEAQ R EEON G55 AE RSB RIS 2 A -
Organisation chart, limits of authority and responsibility are set and
communicated to staff concerned.

o EVABRER #OLRREETHE  XAAMETEELAS

Risk Assessment h

. Identification, evaluation and assessment of the key risks affecting the
achievement of the Group’s objectives are conducted from time to time,
forming the basis for determining control activities.

o TEHB - HERTRVEAEDERAFZEIEAR - EMIERR
TEBEIEEE) 2 B o

~

Control Activities

] Policies and procedures for ensuring management directives are carried
out.

o HIEBREER  BREREIETEUART -

. Control activities include authorizations, approvals, performance
reviews, segregation of duties, asset security, access control,
documentation and records, etc.

o EREDEERE B/ RERE  BE#S  EERE - FEUZ
B XFFR RS -

Information and Communication

. Channels of communication across the Group and with external parties.
HEAREMRINAATELBBEE -

Monitoring

~

*  Onging assessment of control system'’s performance.
o FETRERHIEZRER -

. Management and supervisory activities.

o EEREREY-

. Internal audit activities.

.

s AEmEm -

-

Control environment

The Group is a tightly-knit organization, the actions of management and its
demonstrated commitment to effective governance and controls are therefore
very transparent to all. The Group strives to conduct all business affairs based
on good business ethics and accountability. We have in place a formal Code
of Conduct & Business Ethics that is communicated to all staff members.
We aim to build risk awareness and control responsibility into our culture and
regard them as the foundation of our internal controls system.

AL
. Pertinent information is identified, captured and provided to the right
person in a timely manner.
o EERER - BERUREEE A TIRMUERER o
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No matter how well an internal controls system is conceived and operated,
it is designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance. Recognising this, we maintain an effective internal audit function,
the Internal Control and Risk Management (“ICRM”) Department, whose main
features include:

(i) independence from operational management;

(i) fully empowered auditors with access to all data and every operation of
the Group;

(i)  adequate resources and well qualified and capable staff; and

(iv)  risk-based auditing, concentrating on areas with significant risks or
where significant changes have been made.

Risk management

The management has an ongoing process to identify, evaluate and manage
the risks faced by the Group. Each risk is rated in terms of probability of
occurrence and potential impact on performance, which serves as a basis
for better priority setting and resource allocation. Mitigation strategies and
plans with respect to each key risk identified are developed and implemented,
which include establishing or enhancing internal controls and procedures.

Heads of the departments, projects and business units also review and
analyse the key risks associated with achieving the objectives of their
particular departments, activities and businesses from time to time to provide
reasonable assurance that controls are both embedded and effective within
the business.

Control processes
The Board establishes and maintains a sound internal controls system
through the following major processes:

(i) Systems and procedures are in place to identify and measure risks on
an ongoing basis. Senior management reviews and defines the risk

assessment process and monitor the progress of risk mitigation plans.

(i) An organization structure with defined lines of responsibility and
delegation of authority is devised.

(i)  The Board reviews its strategic plans and objectives on an annual
basis.
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(iv)  Financial performance is analysed against budget with variances being
accounted for and appropriate actions are taken to rectify deficiencies.

(v) Policies and procedures on key control activities are established to
ensure management directives are carried out.

(v)  Ranges of activities including approvals, authorization, verifications,
recommendations, performance reviews, asset security and
segregation of duties are identified and implemented.

(vij  The ICRM Department conducts reviews on the effectiveness of the
Group’s system of internal controls and tests key business processes
and controls in accordance with its audit plan, including following up
the implementation of management actions. The ICRM Department
reports directly to the Audit Committee and the CEO and has direct
access to the Board through the Audit Committee.

Review of internal control effectiveness

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal controls and
for reviewing its effectiveness. The ICRM Department reports on reviews
of the business processes and control activities, including action plans to
address any identified control weaknesses. The management evaluates and
conducts assessments of the overall system of internal controls, with action
plans to enhance the overall control system. External auditors also report
on any control issues identified in the course of their work. Taking these into
consideration, the Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s
system of internal controls at least once each year and reports to the Board
on such reviews.

In respect of the year ended 31 December 2010, the Board considered
the internal controls system effective and adequate. No significant areas of
concern that might affect the operational, financial reporting, and compliance
functions of the Group were identified. The scope of this review covers the
adequacy of resources, qualification and experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function and their training and budget.

Price-sensitive information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of price-sensitive information, the Group has performed the
following actions:

(i) Management and relevant personnel are made aware of the Group’s
obligations under the Listing Rules and the overriding principle that
information which is expected to be price-sensitive and/or the subject
of a major decision should be announced immediately.
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(ii) Management and relevant personnel are required to conduct the
Group’s affairs with close regard to the “Guide on Disclosure of Price-
sensitive Information” and “Recent Economic Developments and the
Disclosure Obligations of Listed Issuers” issued by the Stock Exchange
in 2002 and 2008 respectively.

(i)  The Group has established a Code for Securities Dealing applicable to
those employees likely to have access to unpublished price-sensitive
information.

(iv)  Members of the Group’s top management are identified and authorised
to act as the Group’s spokespersons and respond to external
enquiries.

Directors’ Responsibility For The Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2010 which give a true and fair
view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of the Group’s results
and cash flows. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have
adopted generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong and suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and
estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial
statements on the going concern basis.

The statement of the Company’s auditors about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements of the Company is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 61 to 62.

Communication With Shareholders

The Board believes regular and timely communication with shareholders forms
part of the Group’s effort to help our shareholders understand our business
better. Copies of the annual reports and interim reports of the Company
are distributed to its shareholders and warrant holders in accordance with
statutory and regulatory requirements and also to interested parties recorded
in the Company’s mailing lists. The publications of the Company, including
financial reports, circulars and announcements, are also available on the
Company’s website at www.hkcholdings.com.

The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good communication
channel with the shareholders. At the general meeting, each substantially
separate issue will be considered by a separate resolution, including the
election of individual directors, and the poll procedures will be clearly
explained. The CEO attended the annual general meeting in the absence of
the Chairman of the Board. Other members of the Board and the Chairman
of the relevant Board Committees are available to attend the annual general
meeting to inter-face with, and answer questions from the shareholders.
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Directors and Management Executives

Mr. Oei Tjie Goan

(Chairman and Non-executive Director)

Mr. Oei, aged 66, is a director of the Group since April 2004. Mr. Oei was a
graduate of the Mathematics & Dynamics Department of Beijing University
where he majored in Computational Mathematics. Involved in Asia’s pulp and
paper, finance, banking, property and agricultural industries since 1974, Mr.
Oei sits on the board of two listed companies in Indonesia: PT. Indah Kiat
Pulp & Paper Tbk. and PT. Pabrik Kertas Tjiwi Kimia Tbk. Mr. Oei is the father
of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, an executive director of the Company.

Mr. Li Xueming

(Deputy Chairman and Non-executive Director)

Mr. Li, aged 63, is a director of the Group since March 1999. Mr. Li holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Industrial Automation from Tsinghua University. Mr. Li
was formerly the Vice-president of China Aerospace International Holdings
Ltd. Mr. Liis also currently an executive director and Deputy General Manager
of China Everbright Group Limited and China Everbright Holdings Company
Limited. Mr. Li is the Chairman of Shanghai Everbright Convention and
Exhibition Center Co., Ltd., Vice-chairman of China Everbright Industry Group
Limited and China Everbright Investment Management Corporation. Mr. Li is
also an executive director and Vice-chairman of China Everbright International
Limited, a publicly listed company in Hong Kong. Mr. Li will retire as Deputy
Chairman and Non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 1
June 2011.

Mr. Xu Zheng

(Deputy Chairman and Non-executive Director)
(Resigned on 6 April 2011)

Mr. Xu, aged 50, is a director of the Group since April 2004. Mr. Xu holds a
Master’s Degree in Business Administration. A Senior Engineer (Professor
Grade) in China, Mr. Xu was formerly the Assistant Manager and Deputy
Manager of Shanghai No. 2 Construction Co., Ltd. He has also served as
Assistant to the General Manager, Deputy Chief Engineer and Deputy General
Manager of Shanghai Construction (Group) General Corporation, and as
General Manager of Shanghai Construction Co., Ltd. Mr. Xu is currently an
executive director and General Manager of Shanghai Construction (Group)
General Corporation and Chairman of the Board and President of Shanghai
Construction Group Co., Ltd.
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EERTHEBEAE(E)

Mr. Oei Kang, Eric

(Executive Director)

Mr. Oei, aged 40, is a director of the Group since April 2004. Mr. Oei also
holds several directorships in other members of the Group. Mr. Oei was
educated in the USA and obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics
(with a minor in Electrical Engineering), and a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration. Earlier in his career, Mr. Oei worked with Peregrine Securities
Ltd. and PCCW in Hong Kong, the LG Group in Seoul and McKinsey & Co.
in Los Angeles, USA. Mr. Oei is a son of Mr. Oei Tjie Goan, the Chairman of
the Group. Mr. Qei is also a director and a shareholder of Claudio Holdings
Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Oei currently is
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Hong Kong Energy (Holdings)
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company and the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Mr. Chang Li Hsien, Leslie

(Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Chang, aged 56, is a director of the Group since 1 September 2010 and
he has also been appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
on the same date. Mr. Chang also serves as a director of certain members
of the Group. Mr. Chang was graduated from George Mason University in
U.S.A. He is a certified public accountant in the State of New York, a member
of The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Chang started his career at US Office of KPMG (formerly known as KPMG
Peat Marwick) (the “Firm”) and became a partner specializing in the financial
services industry. He was also the Firm’s director of Chinese Practice in the
United States. He then joined CITIC Pacific Ltd in 1994 and was an Executive
Director and the Deputy Managing Director of that company. He also served
as an alternate director on the board of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited. Both
CITIC Pacific Ltd and Cathay Pacific Airways Limited are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Since 1 September 2010, Mr. Chang has been appointed as an Executive
Director and the Vice Chairman of Hong Kong Energy (Holdings) Limited, a
listed subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Chang is also an independent non-
executive director of Pou Sheng International (Holdings) Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Management Executives (Continued)

Ms. Teresa Yen

(Non-executive Director)

Ms. Yen, aged 41, is a director of the Group since October 2007. Ms. Yen is
a Senior Advisor to Cerberus Asia Capital Management, LLC. (“Cerberus”), a
substantial shareholder of the Company. In her capacity as Senior Advisor, Ms.
Yen is responsible for advising the Cerberus group on all of its investments
in the Greater China region, including the PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan.
Moreover, Ms. Yen brings particular expertise to real estate and real estate
related transactions. Prior to joining Cerberus, she was part of the KPMG
real estate consulting practice where she managed real estate consulting
engagements involving United States, Japan, Korea and Taiwan, and worked
extensively in the distressed debt market in Japan between 1999 and 2001.
She also has corporate and real estate banking background from her earlier
career with Sumitomo Bank, Long-Term Credit Bank of Japan and Heller
Financial. Ms. Yen received her undergraduate degree from University of
California at Berkeley and her master degree in business administration from
University of Southern California, Marshall School of Business.

Mr. Wan Ming Sun

(Non-executive Director)

Mr. Wan, aged 37, is a director of the Group since February 2008. Mr. Wan
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from lllinois Wesleyan University
in U.S.A. Mr. Wan is a Senior Equity Analyst for Penta Investment Advisers
Ltd. (“Penta”), a substantial shareholder of the Company. He has over
10-years investment experience. Prior to joining Penta, Mr. Wan worked for
UBS AG, Hong Kong as a Director of Sales Trading and was responsible for
trading Asian equities and generating investment ideas for clients. Asiamoney’s
annual poll named Mr. Wan The Best Regional Sales Trader in 2003. Mr.
Wan’s knowledge of the real estate sector is extensive.

Mr. Liu Guolin

(Non-executive Director)

Mr. Liu, aged 60, is a director of the Group since July 2001. Mr. Liu is a
graduate of Shanghai University of Finance & Economics where he majored
in Infrastructure Financing. A Senior Accountant, Mr. Liu currently serves as a
director and General Accountant of Shanghai Construction (Group) General
Corporation and is also a Director of Shanghai Construction Group Co., Ltd.
His career to date includes extensive experience in finance and corporate
matters. Mr. Liu will retire as a Non-executive Director of the Company with
effect from 1 June 2011.
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Directors and Management Executives (Continued)
EERTHEBEAE(E)

Mr. Fan Yan Hok, Philip

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Fan, aged 61, is a non-executive director of the Group since November
1999 and re-designated as an independent non-executive director on 1
March 2010. Mr. Fan holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Industrial Engineering,
a Master’s Degree in Operations Research from Stanford University and a
Master’s Degree in Management Science from Massachusetts Institute of
Technology. Mr. Fan is presently a non-executive director of China Everbright
International Limited and an independent non-executive director of Hysan
Development Company Limited (both companies listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) as well as an independent non-executive
director of Zhuhai Zhongfu Enterprise Co. Ltd. (a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange).

Mr. Chung Cho Yee, Mico

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Chung, aged 50, is a director of the Group since April 2004. Mr. Chung
graduated from the University College, University of London, England with a
Law Degree in 1983. After qualifying as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1986, Mr.
Chung spent 2 years working with the commercial department of a local law
firm. He subsequently joined the corporate finance department of Standard
Chartered Asia Ltd., the investment banking arm of Standard Chartered Bank,
in 1988. In 1990, Mr. Chung became a director and General Manager of
Bond Corporation International Ltd., leaving to join China Strategic Holdings
Ltd in 1992.

In March 1999, he joined the Pacific Century Group as executive director with
responsibility for the group’s merger and acquisition activities. Mr. Chung
is currently a non-executive director of PCCW Limited and the executive
chairman of CSI Properties Limited (formerly known as Capital Strategic
Investment Limited), both companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Chung was an independent non-executive director of E2-Capital (Holdings)
Limited (now known as CIAM Group Limited).
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Directors and Management Executives (Continued)

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Cheng, aged 50, is a director of the Group since July 2004. Mr. Cheng
holds a Master of Science Degree in Economics, Accounting and Finance and
a Bachelor of Arts (Hons.) Degree in Accounting. He is a fellow of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, and a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Ontario. His career includes more than 20 years’ accounting
and corporate advisory services expertise in several listed companies in Hong
Kong. The co-founder of a Hong Kong merchant banking firm, Mr. Cheng is
the proprietor of a certified public accountancy practice in Hong Kong.

Mr. Cheng is currently an executive director of 21 Holdings Limited and
an independent non-executive director of CSI Properties Limited (formerly
known as Capital Strategic Investment Limited), South China Land Limited,
Goldbond Group Holdings Limited, C.P. Lotus Corporation (formerly known
as Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited), Chong Hing Bank Limited,
CPMC Holdings Limited, Imagi International Holdings Limited and Top Spring
International Holdings Limited, all being Hong Kong listed companies. Mr.
Cheng was a non-executive director of Henry Group Holdings Limited and an
independent non-executive director of Honbridge Holdings Limited.

Mr. Albert T. da Rosa, Jr.

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. da Rosa, aged 57, is a director of the Group since September 2004. Mr.
da Rosa holds both Bachelor’s and Master’s Law Degrees from the University
of Hong Kong. He was qualified as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1980. He
currently is a practicing solicitor and a partner of Messrs. Cheung, Tong &
Rosa, Solicitors, Hong Kong.

Mr. da Rosa is a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators and the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors, a member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute
and the Society of Registered Financial Planners and an Accredited Mediator
with certain institutions in the U.K. and Hong Kong.

He is a non-executive director of TCL Multimedia Technology Holdings
Limited and eSun Holdings Limited, and the company secretary of Y.T. Realty
Group Limited and Yugang International Limited, all of which are companies
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. da Rosa serves as Chairman of the Appeal Tribunal (Buildings) Panel,
Deputy Convenor and member of the Solicitors Disciplinary Tribunal Panel,
and Deputy Chairman and member of the Panel of the Board of Review (Inland
Revenue) respectively. He also served as member of the Academic and
Accreditation Advisory Committee of the Securities and Futures Commission
from February 2003 to March 2009.
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Report of the Directors
ia éi&tl:i

The directors of HKC (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) (the “Directors” or
the “Board”) have pleasure in presenting to shareholders their report together
with the audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2010.

Principal Activities And Geographical Analysis Of
Operations

The principal activities of the Group are property investment and
development, infrastructure, construction and engineering and alternative
energy business. The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities are set out in pages 171 to 179 of the consolidated
financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31 December
2010 by geographical and business segments is set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results And Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 63.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2010 (2009: Nil).

Closure of Register of Members

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will be held on 1
June 2011 (“AGM”). The Register of Members of the Company will be closed
from 30 May 2011 to 1 June 2011, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and
voting at the AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s Branch Share Registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Ltd at Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 27
May 2011.

Property, Plant And Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Principal Properties

Details of the principal properties held for development and investment
purposes are set out on page 181.

Share Capital And Warrants

Details of movements in the share capital and warrants of the Company
during the year are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws of the
Company (“Bye-Laws”) and there is no restriction against such rights under
the law of Bermuda.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2010, the distributable reserves of the Company available
for distribution was HK$342.3 million (2009: HK$90.4 million), calculated in
accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 180.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EESREE(E)

Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

* OEl Tjie Goan (Chairman)
* LI Xueming (Deputy Chairman)
* XU Zheng (Deputy Chairman) (resigned on 6 April 2011)

# OEl Kang, Eric

# CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 1 September 2010)

# WAN Man Yee (resigned on 20 December 2010)

TANG Sau Wai, Tom (resigned on 1 September 2010)

YEN Teresa

WAN Ming Sun

LIU Guolin

FAN Yan Hok, Philip

CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico

CHENG Yuk Wo

Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior

HH

* %

*

® ® ®®

# Executive Directors
* Non-executive Directors
@ Independent Non-executive Directors

In accordance with bye-law 85 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. LI Xueming,
Mr. LIU Guolin, Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo and Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA,
Junior will retire by rotation at the AGM. Mr. LI Xueming and Mr. LIU Guolin
have decided not to present themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. All the other retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election as Directors of the Company. Mr. CHANG Li Hsien,
Leslie, who was newly appointed by the Board on 1 September 2010, will
also retire from office in accordance with bye-law 84 of the Company’s Bye-
laws and will offer himself for re-election as Director of the Company.

The Company has also received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of them to be
independent.

Mr. OEl Tjie Goan, a Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Company,
voluntarily waived annual director’s fee amounted to HK$100,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2010 and has agreed to waive his annual director’s fees
with effect from 1 January 2010 until further notice to the Company.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries

which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Share Option Schemes
Share Options of the Company

The Company’s existing share option scheme (the “HKC Option Scheme”)
was adopted on 16 June 2006. Particulars of the HKC Option Scheme are
set out below:

@

(b)

(c)

Purpose

The principal purposes are to recruit and retain high caliber Eligible
Persons (as defined below) and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group or any entity in which any member of the
Group holds an equity interest (“Invested Entity”) or Invested Entities,
to recognise the significant contributions of the Eligible Persons
to the growth of the Group or Invested Entities by rewarding them
with opportunities to obtain ownership interest in the Company and
to further motivate and give incentives to these Eligible Persons to
continue to contribute to the long term success and prosperity of the
Group or Invested Entities.

Eligible Persons

Any employee (whether full time or part time), senior executive or officer,
manager, director (including independent non-executive director) or
consultant of any members of the Group or any Invested Entity who, in
the sole discretion of the Board, have contributed or will contribute to
the growth and development of the Group or any Invested Entity.

Maximum number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares of the Company available for issue under
the HKC Option Scheme is 632,990,383 shares which represent
approximately 6.09% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of this Annual Report.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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Share Option Schemes (Continued)
Share Options of the Company (Continued)

(@)

(e)

®

@)

(h)

()

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon exercise of options (whether exercised or outstanding) granted in
any 12-month period to:

(i) each Eligible Person must not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue;

(i) a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company must not exceed 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue and not exceed HK$5 million in aggregate
value.

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an

option

An option must be exercised within 10 years from the date on which it is
granted or such shorter period as the Board may specify at the time of
grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must be held
At the time of the grant of an option, the Board must specify the
minimum period(s), if any, for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised.

Period open for acceptance of an option and amount
payable upon acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for
a period of 10 business days from the date of offer and a consideration
of HK$1.0 must be paid upon acceptance.

Basis of determining the subscription price of an option
The exercise price must be at least the higher of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in daily quotations sheet on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date
of grant; (i) the average closing prices of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (jii) the nominal value of a
share.

Remaining life

The HKC Option Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire on 16
June 2016 unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the terms
of the HKC Option Scheme.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EsEREE(@)
Share Option Schemes (Continued) IEMRREsT 8l (&)
Share Options of the Company (Continued) RRTR 2 BERE(E)
Movements of share options during the year are as follows: FABREZE 2 FIBIT
Number of share options
BRERE
Adjustment Exercise
made Outstanding price per
QOutstanding during at 31 share
Nature of at1 January Cancelled/ the year December (HKS)
Name interest 2010 Granted  Exercised Lapsed (note 1) 2010 Date of grant Exercise period (note 1)
8l
R-B-%£ Epfrt  WN-E-EF e
-A-8 it/ ZH#E  tZA=t-H (1)
i3 EattE HATE  BRE B BAX (M) HAGE RYBH i (M)
Directors
gz
OF Kang, Eric ~ Personal 618,750 - - - 61,875 680,625 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1174
&l fAA “ETETCATREE 14 December 2016
“ETLETZATRRE
ZE-RETZATEA
1,031,250 - - - 108,125 1,134,375 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1174
“EEFT-Ft+RA 14 Deoember 2016
“ET\EtZATRRE
ZE-RETZATEA
330,000 - - - 33,000 363,000 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.368
ZZZ)\fzh-A 31 January 2018
“EENE-P-RE
ZE-\E-A=1-H
495,000 - - - 49,500 544,500 1 February 2008 1 February 20100 1.368
ZZZ)\fzh-A 31 January 2018
“3-TECR-HE
ZE-\E-A=1-A
825,000 - - - 82,500 907,500 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 o 1.368
ZZZ)\fzh-A 31 January 2018
“3-—%-fF-HE
ZE-\E-A=1-A
Family 618,750 - - - 61,875 680,625 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1174
Kik “ETNET-ATREE 14 December 2016
“ETEFZATRRE
B REtATEE
1,031,250 - - - 108,125 1,134,375 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1174
“EE;FT-At+RA 14 Deoember 2016
“ET\EtZATRRE
ZE-RETZATEA
BEBER (BR) ARAT o —T—TFFRH 35



Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEEREEE)

BRETEIR)
RNNTE 2B GE)

Share Option Schemes (Continued)
Share Options of the Company (Continued)

Number of share options
BREHE
Adjustment Exercise
made QOutstanding price per
Outstanding during at31 share
Nature of at1 January Cancelled/ the year December (HKS)
Name interest 2010 Granted  Exercised Lapsed (note 1) 2010 Date of grant Exercise period (note 1)
&
RZE-%% Emf W-3-3F e
-A-H Bil/ Z#% TZR=T-A (81)
i EaitE AT B BT BN (Hiz01) HATE EHEH 8 (M)
330,000 - - - 33,000 363,000 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1,368
“FT)\FZf-A 31 January 2018
“EENECR-HE
ZE-\E-A=1-H
495,000 - - - 49,500 544,500 1 February 2008 1 February 201010 1,368
ZZZ\EZA-H 31 Janvary 2018
SEFRIA-RE
ZE-\§-A=1-H
825,000 - - - 82,500 907,500 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 o 1,368
“FT)\f-f-A 31 January 2018
“F—E-f-HE
ZE-\§-A=1-H
CHANG Li Personal - 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000 1 September 2010 1 September 2011 to 0488
Hslen, Lesle ~ fALA (note 2) “F-FFNA-A 31 August 2013 note 4)
(appointed on (Hi2) 2-EnA-BE
1 September ZE-ZE\A=f-H
210) (=2
RIE 9,000,000 - - - 9,000,000 1 September 2010 1 September 2012 to 0488
(R=%-%% (ot 2) “E-TEnA-A 31 August 2014 (note 4)
hA-H (i) “E-“ENR-RZ
EZH) ZE-MEN\A=f-A
(=2
- 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000 1 September 2010 1 September 2013 to 0488
(note 2) “E-TEnA-A 31 August 2015 note 4)
(Hi2) ZE-CENA-RE
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Share Options of the Company (Continued) RRTR 2 BERE(E)
Number of share options
EREHA
Adjustment Exercise
made Outstanding price per
Outstanding during at 31 share
Nature of at1 January Cancelled/ the year December (HKS)
Name interest 2010 Granted  Exercised Lapsed (note 1) 2010 Date of grant Exercise period (note 1)
gl
R-B-%£ ERfel RCF-EE e
-A-A Big/ Z#E tZR=t-8 (E1)
e BaitE HATE  BRE B BAX (M) HAGE REEH s (BizH1)
WAN ManYee  Personal - 5,000,000 - - 500,000 5,500,000 20 January 2010 20 January 2011 1o 0573
resignedon 20 {EA (note 3) “2-ZE-A-1A 19 January 2013 (note 4)
December 2010) (F3k3) “Z——-F-f-1H%
BXE ZE-ZE-ATAR
(RZF-2£ (Rtzta)
TZAZTH - 7,500,000 - - 750,000 8,250,000 20 January 2010 20 January 2012 to 0573
1) noted) “E-SE-A21R 19 January 2014 (note 4)
s ZECE-fCtEE
ZE-ME-ATAR
(Rtzta)
- 12,500,000 - - 1,250,000 13,750,000 20 January 2010 20 January 2013 to 0573
(note 3) ZE-EE-fC1H 19 January 2015 (note 4)
LG ZECE-fCtEE
ZE-RE-ATAR
(Rzta)
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BRETEIR)
RNNTE 2B GE)

Number of share options
BREHE
Adjustment Exercise
made Outstanding price per
Outstanding during at 31 share
Nature of at 1 January Cancelled/ the year December (HKS)
Name interest 2010 Granted  Exercised Lapsed (note 1) 2010 Date of grant Exercise period (note 1)
&R
RZB-%f ERfet  WZE-3F (i
-A-H gis/ Z#%  tZR=t-H (&7)
% &t AT BRI BTk 2% (BzE1) HATE RLAD 8 (hrz1)
TANG SauWai,  Personal 3,960,000 - - - 396,000 4,356,000 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1174
Tom A “EENFTZATRA 14 December 2016
(resigned on 1 ZERLETCATRAZ
September 2010) “E-E+-ATRA
ik 6,490,000 - - - 649,000 7,139,000 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1174
(A=2-2% “EEE+-ATEA 14 December 2016
NA-BET) ZEE\ETATRAZ
ZEAETZATRA
1,660,000 - - - 165,000 1,815,000 15 December 2006 15 December 2009 to 1174
“E3ET-ATEA 14 December 2016
“EENET-ATRAZ
ZEAETZATRA
880,000 - - - 88,000 968,000 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.368
“2Z/\5ZA-H 31 January 2018
“EENECR-BE
ZE-\§-f=1-H
1,320,000 - - - 132,000 1,462,000 1 February 2008 1 February 201010 1.368
“2Z/\5ZA-A 31 January 2018
“E$-SF-f-RE
ZE-\§-f=1-A
2,200,000 - - - 220,000 2,420,000 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 1o 1.368
“2Z/\5ZA-A 31 January 2018
“F--%-f-BE
ZE-\§-A=1-A
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EEEREE(E)
Share Option Schemes (Continued) BRAERTEI(E)
Share Options of the Company (Continued) RRTR 2 BERE(E)
Number of share options
BREHE
Adjustment Exercise
made QOutstanding price per
Outstanding during at31 share
Nature of at1 January Cancelled/ the year December (HKS)
Name interest 2010 Granted  Exercised Lapsed (note 1) 2010 Date of grant Exercise period (note 1)
&
RZE-%% Emf W-3-3F e
-A-H Bil/ Z#% TZR=T-A (81)
i EaitE AT B BT BN (Hiz01) HATE EHEH 8 (M)
FANYanHok,  Personal 660,000 - - - 66,000 726,000 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.368
Philip A “F%)\fZf-A 31 January 2018
e “EENE-B-RE
I
990,000 - - - 99,000 1,089,000 1 February 2008 1 February 201010 1.368
ZZZ\E-A-H 31 Janvary 2018
SFFECA-RE
I
1,660,000 - - - 165,000 1,815,000 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 1o 1.368
“F%)\FZf-A 31 January 2018
“F—E-f-HE
ZE-\E-A=f-H
CHUNG Cho Personal 660,000 - - - 66,000 726,000 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.368
Yee, Mico A “ZZ)\E-f-H 31 January 2018
&z “EENECR-HE
I
990,000 - - - 99,000 1,089,000 1 February 2008 1 February 201010 1.368
ZZZ\§-A-H 31 Janvary 2018
SEFRIA-RE
ZE-\E-A=f-H
1,660,000 - - - 165,000 1,815,000 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 1o 1.368
“FT)\FZf-A 31 January 2018
“EE-f-HE
ZE-\E-A=f-H
CHENG YukWo ~ Personal 660,000 - - - 66,000 726,000 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.368
gl fAA 33528 31 January 2018
“EENECR-HE
ZE-\E-A=1-H
990,000 - - - 99,000 1,089,000 1 February 2008 1 February 201010 1.368
“3%)\fZf-A 31 January 2018
S e
ZE-\&-A=1-H

BRER (ER) ARAF o —T-TFFRH 39



Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEREEE)
Share Option Schemes (Continued) IEMRREsT 8l (&)
Share Options of the Company (Continued) RRTR 2 BERE(E)
Number of share options
BREHE
Adjustment Exercise
made QOutstanding price per
Outstanding during at31 share
Nature of at 1 January Cancelled/ the year December (HKS)
Name interest 2010 Granted  Exercised Lapsed (note 1) 2010 Date of grant Exercise period (note 1)
8
RZE-%F Emft WZZ-%F 18
-A-H Bitl/ Z#%  tZR=t-H (81)
g ERitE HATE  BRE BATR 2% (HtzH1) HAGE RHAH e (M)
1,650,000 - - - 165,000 1,815,000 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.368
ZZR\EZA-H 31 Janvary 2018
ZF-FIp-RE
ZE-\§-A=1-H
Albert Thomas ~ Personal 660,000 - - - 66,000 726,000 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.368
DAROSA,  fAA “F%)\F-f-A 31 January 2018
Junior “EENE-f-RBE
B I
990,000 - - - 99,000 1,089,000 1 February 2008 1 February 20100 1.368
“FT\FZA-A 31 January 2018
“2-ZE-f-BZ
I
1,650,000 - - - 165,000 1,815,000 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.368
ZZZ\f-A-R 31 Janvary 2018
ZFFIp-RE
ZE-\E-A=1-H
Sub-total /it 36,300,000 55,000,000 - - 6,130,000 97,430,000
Employees and 12,870,000 - - (4,620,000 825,000 9,075,000 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1174
other participants ZELNETZATEA 14 December 2016
EERENSE CERLETCATRAR
AT ZE-EtZATEA
25,575,000 - - (11,330,000 1,424,500 15,669,500 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1174
“EEET-ATERA 14 December 2016
“EE/\E+-A+RAZ
ZEAETZATREA
20,625,000 - - (6,050,000 1,457,500 16,032,500 15 December 2006 15 December 2009 to 1174

“EENEH-A+RA 14 December 2016
SERNEZATERE
“F-RETZATRE
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EEEREE(E)
Share Option Schemes (Continued) BRAERTEI(E)
Share Options of the Company (Continued) RRTR 2 BERE(E)
Number of share options
BREHE
Adjustment Exercise
made QOutstanding price per
Outstanding during at31 share
Nature of at1 January Cancelled/ the year December (HKS)
Name interest 2010 Granted  Exercised Lapsed (note 1) 2010 Date of grant Exercise period (note 1)
&
RZE-%% Emf W-3-3F e
-A-H Bil/ Z#% TZR=T-A (81)
i EaitE AT B BT BN (Hiz01) HATE EHEH 8 (M)
5,500,000 - - - 560,000 6,050,000 3 July 2007 15 December 2007 to 1.901
S A 2 July 2017
CERLETCATREE
“E-tEtAZA
2,750,000 - - - 275,000 3,025,000 3 July 2007 15 December 2008 to 1.901
“ETLFLAZA 2July 2017
“EEN\ETCATRAE
“E-tEtAZA
2,750,000 - - - 275,000 3,025,000 3 July 2007 15 December 2009 to 1.901
“FTLFLAZA 2July 2017
ZEENETCATREE
“E-tEtACA
25,394,000 - - (74800000 1,841,400 20,255,400 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.368
“3%)\F-f-A 31 January 2018
“EENECR-HE
I
38,841,000 - - (11,2200000 2,762,100 30,383,100 1 February 2008 1 February 20100 1.368
ZZZ\E-A-H 31 Janvary 2018
“EFRIA-RE
ZE-\E-A=1-H
64,735,000 - - (18,700,000 4,608,500 50,638,500 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.368
“EE)\5-R-A 31 January 2018
“EECf-HE
ZE-\E-A=1-H
- 1,000,000 - - 100,000 1,100,000 20 January 2010 20 January 2011 to 0578
(note 3) “Z-TF-f-+H 19 January 2013 (note 4)
(Mzta) ZE—5-fCfRE
Z2-ZE-ATAR
(Mzta)
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Share Option Schemes (Continued) IEMRREsT 8l (&)

Share Options of the Company (Continued) RRTR 2 BERE(E)
Number of share options
BREHE
Adjustment Exercise
made Outstanding price per
Outstanding during at31 share
Nature of at1 January Cancelled/ the year December (HKS)
Name interest 2010 Granted  Exercised Lapsed (note 1) 2010 Date of grant Exercise period (note 1)
=1
RZB-%F Emft W-3-3F e
-A-A BHg/ Z#% TZR=t-A (81)
i EaitE HATE BRI B &M (BzE1) HATE EHEH 8 (M)
- 1,500,000 - - 150,000 1,660,000 20 January 2010 20 January 2012 to 0578
(note 3) “Z-ZE-f-1H 19 January 2014 (note 4)
G ZB-CE-JCtEE
ZE-ME-ATAR
(Kizta)
- 2,500,000 - - 250,000 2,750,000 20 January 2010 20 January 2013 to 0578
(note 3) “Z-ZE-f-1H 19 January 2015 note 4)
G ZB-ZE-JItEE
ZE-nE-ATAR
(Kizta)
Sub-total /) st 199,540,000 5,000,000 - (59,400,000) 14,514,000 159,654,000
Total 83t 235,840,000 60,000,000 - (59,400,000) 20,644,000 257,084,000

Notes: st -

1. In accordance with the HKC Option Scheme, the exercise prices of the 1. RIEEEERBRENE  ARERNAG=—F—F
share options were adjusted from HK$1.291 per share, HK$2.091 per share, FNABEFETALR  HBRETEEEHGR
HK$1.505 per share and HK$0.630 per share to HK$1.174 per share, HK$1.901 1.2918 7T « &/82.0918 7T * 88 1.605/87T K%
per share, HK$1.368 per share and HK$0.573 per share respectively, and the #FIR0.6308 7T 77 B BEAR1.174 87T - FiR
total number of shares to be issued upon exercise of the outstanding share 1.9016 7T - 8 1.368/8 7T K & /£0.573/E T
options was also adjusted correspondingly on 1 June 2010, as a result of the MR R TIE B AR AEIETT(E [T AT #77.2 IR 17 20 B
bonus issue of shares by the Company in June 2010. Such adjustment took IR =F—FFNHA—AELIGERE - ZF5H
retroactive effect from 30 April 2010, being the day immediately following the BH—FE—FFIIA=1H(AIERETZRAR T —
record date. H )REE P ERL

2. The closing price of the shares immediately before the date on which the options 2. ERR T —FFNA— AR EREN—H
were granted on 1 September 2010 was HK$0.480. R 17,2 W 1718 750.480/57T °

3. The closing price of the shares immediately before the date on which the options 3. BER-ZE-FF-—A-+HKHBREN—

42

were granted on 20 January 2010 was HK$0.564 (adjusted).

HKC (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2010

B RO Z KT 1ERO.564E T (#8755 ) -



Share Option Schemes (Continued)
Share Options of the Company (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

4, The share options will be vested and exercisable subject to the attainment of the
performance target as determined by the Board.

Using the Binominal Valuation model, the fair value of 30,000,000 share
options granted on 20 January 2010 (adjusted to 33,000,000 share options)
was HK$7,495,603 for the year under review. The significant inputs into the
model were share price of HK$0.573 (adjusted) at the grant date, exercise
price of HK$0.573 (adjusted), volatility of ranging from 60% to 69%, dividend
yield of 2.759%, an expected option life of 3 years to 5 years and on normal
risk-free interest rate ranging from 1.003% to 1.877%. The volatility measured
at the standard deviation of continuously compounded share returns is based
on statistical analysis of weekly share prices over the last 12 months. The
vesting period is between 20 January 2011 to 19 January 2015. The value of
the share options is subject to a number of assumptions and with regard to
the limitation of model. Therefore, the value may be subjective and difficult to
determine.

The fair value of 30,000,000 share options granted on 1 September 2010 was
HK$5,658,878 for the year under review. The significant inputs into the model
were share price of HK$0.480 at the grant date, exercise price of HK$0.488,
volatility of ranging from 59% to 64%, dividend yield of 1.570%, an expected
option life of 3 years to 5 years and on normal risk-free interest rate ranging
from 0.507% to 1.071%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation
of continuously compounded share returns is based on statistical analysis of
weekly share prices over the last 12 months. The vesting period is between 1
September 2011 to 31 August 2015. The value of the share options is subject
to a number of assumptions and with regard to the limitation of model.
Therefore, the value may be subjective and difficult to determine.

Save as disclosed above, no share option was granted, exercised, cancelled
nor lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2010 under the HKC Option
Scheme.
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BRETEI(E)

RRAE 2 EIRE (&)
wiiE - (&)

4. BREATEZEFETTHXELFEDER
BRITIE

FAZEAGERNGE  RZZ—ZF—A
— + A % 1 2 30,000,000 17 35 B # (L AR A
33,000,0001) ik # ) REIBEF RN 2 A FEAR
7,495,603/ T o B AZIET K E KRB H AN E
A2 IREO.573B T (&EAE) - 17#80.573
BT (EAE) BB F60%E69% - 8=
2.759% - TEERERIEFAA=2NF - WIRER
B B R F1.003% E1.877%E  LAEHEE
ARMEIHRE 2 ZREREAE ZREIREBE
To@ERZHERERAHNTE - REHH=
E——H—HA_+tRE_ZE—HE—A+hNB -
BREEZEBEZDZEBRLEEEARGIFTE
2o At EEEVEREIENBUET -

RZZE—FF N A —BEH230,000,0001 # &
EREBFERNZ AFEAE5,658,8788 T © B AZ
BRI E R E HUARER B B2 B {Z0.480/8 T »
1T1E{B0.488 87T * KIEN F59% £64% * % B
%1.570%  MRIETEHAF HISF =54 - WIRER,
BEBENT0507%E1.07T1%E  LUFHEE
ARMEIHRE ZZRREAE ZREIREBAE
To@ERZHEREBRAHNTE - REHH=
E——FNB—BE-_Z—RFENA=+—H-
BREEZEBEZDZEBRLTEEEARGIFTE
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EESWREE(E)

Share Option Schemes (Continued)

Share Options of subsidiary of the Company

Hong Kong Energy (Holdings) Limited (“HKE”), a subsidiary of the Company,
adopted a share option scheme (the “HKE Option Scheme”) on 27 May 2008.
Particulars of the HKE Option Scheme are set out below:

@)

(b)

(c)

@

Purpose

The principal purposes are to recruit and retain high caliber Eligible
Persons (as defined below) and attract human resources that are
valuable to the HKE Group or any entity in which any member of the
HKE Group holds an equity interest (“Invested Entity” or “Invested
Entities”), to recognise the significant contributions of the Eligible
Persons to the growth of the HKE Group or Invested Entities by
rewarding them with opportunities to obtain ownership interest in HKE
and to further motivate and give incentives to these Eligible Persons to
continue to contribute to the long term success and prosperity of the
HKE Group or Invested Entities.

Eligible Persons

Any employee (whether full time or part time), senior executive or officer,
manager, director (including independent non-executive director) or
consultant of any members of the HKE Group or any Invested Entity
who, in the sole discretion of the board of directors of HKE, have
contributed or will contribute to the growth and development of the
HKE Group or any Invested Entity.

Maximum number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares of HKE available for issue under the HKE
Option Scheme is 63,103,475 shares which represent approximately
7.36% of the issued share capital of HKE as at the date of this Annual
Report.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person

The total number of shares of HKE issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options (whether exercised or outstanding) granted in any
12-month period to:

(i) each Eligible Person must not exceed 1% of the shares of HKE
in issue;

(ii) a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of HKE must not exceed 0.1% of the shares of HKE in
issue and not exceed HK$5 million in aggregate value.

HKC (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2010

BRETEI(E)

RATIME DR 2 BARE
ARAMBARNEEHLRER) BERAA(E
BERR DR -FE/\FRA-HLARA—H
PR B ([ EB 37 SR ARt 81 ) - BB %
SRR AT B2 R HII T

@

(b)

()

(@

BA#Y
TZEHNREBEELREERFZABRAL
(BER T ARRSIHEEHEEREEK
ENERR B RRRARA R A ER
(REERDABEZANER  EiBRM
BEERQERALTIS TR G
s RERSHBEEHMERREINEE
RERMELEAER - LE BN
BRZEAERATEELTBHEREE
FREBRRERELER -

BEMAL
ERMEREFTEERPNBRARTADEX
e HEEFEREEIEIREER 218
ENBRIFLERCBEMEREBE T E
AR EARSREER 2 2BIFEIES
SRITBRAERTEAES KB FR(E
EEFMITES )M -

ARZBITIRGZR=EE

RIEBE BN RBRES ST HREITZE
AR D 4280 563,103,4750% - FHER
EEFERNAFRA Y BBEITRAL
7.36% °

EEEMALZRERE

REHBZEA+ —EASE TRERHE
Pt (M em BT TR SR A ART TR BFEIA T A
TEBITRETFEITZERNERRD &
2

) SEAERAL  FEBBE S
TREEITIRGN 1%

iy EEBRRKXBEEFERBILIENTE
£ TEBBEBHERDETRG
0.1% % 48{&5,000,00078 7T



Share Option Schemes (Continued)
Share Options of subsidiary of the Company (Continued)

(e)

®)

@)

(h)

()

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option

An option must be exercised within 10 years from the date on which it
is granted or such shorter period as the board of directors of HKE may
specify at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must be held
At the time of the grant of an option, the board of directors of HKE
must specify the minimum period(s), if any, for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised.

Period open for acceptance of an option and amount
payable upon acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for
a period of 10 business days from the date of offer and a consideration
of HK$1.0 must be paid upon acceptance.

Basis of determining the subscription price of an option
The exercise price must be at least the higher of (i) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant; (i) the average closing prices of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value
of a share.

Remaining life

The HKE Option Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire on 27
May 2018 unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the terms of
the HKE Option Scheme.
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EEEREE(E)

Share Option Schemes (Continued) IEMRREsT 8l (&)

Share Options of subsidiary of the Company (Continued) Z~2 BB B 2 B AR AE (48)
Movements of share options granted under the HKE Option Scheme during ~ FRIRIEEBFEIREREASIE R LBRE 2

the year are as follows: BEFBFOT
Number of share options
EhEss
Exercise
Adjustment QOutstanding Price per
Outstanding made during at 31 share
Nature of at1January  Granted Cancelled/ the year December Exercise period (HK$)
Name interest 2010 (note?)  Exercised Lapsed (note 1) 2010 Date of grant (note 3) (note 1)
W-Z2-%E ERfet  W-E-%F BRTEE
-A-A B Bil/ ZHE  tZR=t-A i (E7)
i EaiE WAGE (W2 B B&M (Rtz1) HATE RLAH (Kizta) (RizH1)
CHANG LiHsien,  Personal - 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 1 September 2010 1 September 2011 to 0570
Leslie Director) ~ AA “2-FFNA-A 31 August 2013
FuB(EE) 2HAA-RE
ZE-=§\F=1-R
- 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 1 September 2010 1 September 2012 to 0570
“Z-55nA-A 31 August 2014
“E-CENA-RE
ZE-MENE=T-R
- 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000 1 September 2010 1 September 2013 to 0570
“Z-55nA-A 31 August 2015
“E-CENA-RE
Z3-RENA=T-H
YUNG Pak Keung, ~ Personal - 1,000,000 - - 100,000 1,100,000 20 January 2010 20 January 2011 to 0.764
Bruce(noted) A “E-5F-f-tH 19 January 2013
A (i) 2 A-igE
“5-5-AthA
- 1,500,000 - - 150,000 1,650,000 20 January 2010 20 January 201210 0.764
ZE-FE-fC1H 19 January 2014
ZFCF-RITRE
5-RF-AthA
- 2,500,000 - - 250,000 2,750,000 20 January 2010 20 January 201310 0.764
“3-2F-A21H 19 January 2015
TE-CE-fITRE
ZZ-nE-AtAR
LEUNG Wing Sum,  Personal - 500,000 - - 50,000 550,000 20 January 2010 20 January 2011 to 0.764
Samuel hote d) A —Z-E5F-f-tH 19 January 2013
25 (MiE) ZB—H-AtRE
ZE-ZE-ATAA
- 750,000 - - 75,000 825,000 20 January 2010 20 January 201210 0.764
“F-2F-A21A 19 January 2014
ZE-CE-AZTRE
ZE-RE-ATAA
- 1,250,000 - - 125,000 1,375,000 20 January 2010 20 January 201310 0.764
“F-ZF-A21A 19 January 2015
ZE-CE-fITRE
ZE-RE-ATAA
Total &3 - 12,500,000 - - 750,000 13,250,000
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Share Option Schemes (Continued)
Share Options of subsidiary of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1. In accordance with the HKE Option Scheme, the exercise price of the share
option was adjusted from HK$0.840 per share to HK$0.764 per share, and
the total number of shares to be issued upon exercise of the outstanding share
options was also adjusted correspondingly on 1 June 2010 as a result of the
bonus issue of shares by HKE in June 2010. Such adjustments took retroactive
effect from 30 April 2010, being the day immediately following the record date.

2. The closing price of the shares of HKE immediately before the date on which the
share options were granted on 20 January 2010 and 1 September 2010 were
HK$0.727 (adjusted) and HK$0.530 respectively.

3. The share options will be vested and exercisable subject to the attainment of the
performance target as determined by the board of directors of HKE.

4. Mr. YUNG Pak Keung, Bruce and Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel are directors
of HKE, the listed subsidiary of the Company.

Using the Binominal Valuation model, the fair value of 7,500,000 share
options granted on 20 January 2010 (adjusted to 8,250,000 share options)
was HK$2,939,697 for the year under review. The significant inputs into the
model were share price of HK$0.764 (adjusted) at the grant date, exercise
price of HK$0.764 (adjusted), volatility of ranging from 60% to 72%, dividend
yield of 0%, an expected option life of 3 years to 5 years and on normal risk-
free interest rate ranging from 1.003% to 1.877%. The volatility measured at
the standard deviation of continuously compounded share returns is based
on statistical analysis of weekly share prices over the last 12 months. The
vesting period is between 20 January 2011 to 19 January 2015.

The fair value of 5,000,000 share options granted on 1 September 2010 was
HK$1,375,985 for the year under review. The significant inputs into the model
were share price of HK$0.570 at the grant date, exercise price of HK$0.570,
volatility of ranging from 65% to 69%, dividend yield of 0%, an expected
option life of 3 years to 5 years and on normal risk-free interest rate ranging
from 0.507% to 1.071%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation
of continuously compounded share returns is based on statistical analysis of
weekly share prices over the last 12 months. The vesting period is between 1
September 2011 to 31 August 2015.

The value of the share options is subject to a number of assumptions and
with regard to the limitation of model. Therefore, the value may be subjective
and difficult to determine.

Save as disclosed above, no share option was granted, exercised, cancelled
nor lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2010 under the HKE Option
Scheme.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEEREE(E)

Directors’ Interests In Securities

At 31 December 2010, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules adopted by the
Company were as follows:

ESENESF2ER

RZFB-ZFFEF_A=+—HB KEFERARQH
T2THABRARBSEEMEEREECEER
B MR RG([FH5RHEERR]) ) EXVEEZ i
o~ HERDREFTHEECNESRBPERE
BIE3B2MEREFENECTM R KR R
BARRBERMZ TR RIS ATE L EITA
EFRETEFRNRETA(MEETADRE
AN AR B MR P2 e FOARIAT

() Long positions in the shares and underlying shares () RARXTRHGD RIEER G 25
of the Company: B

Approximate

Number of shares percentage of

and underlying the existing issued

shares of share capital of

Name of Directors Nature of interest the Company the Company

NN EERATRE

RHEE R 2RITRAE

EEHA HERME HERNEHE BRBEDL

OEl Kang, Eric Personal {EA 20,897,310 1 0.201%

= Corporate ~ 7] 4,529,345,273 2 43.637%

Joint F[A 126,242,591 3 1.216%

Family &% 3,630,000 4 0.035%

CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie Personal {EA 30,000,000 *° 0.289%
RAE

FAN Yan Hok, Philip Personal & A 3,630,000 6 0.035%
BIES

CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico Personal & A 3,630,000 7 0.035%

CHENG Yuk Wo Personal & A 3,630,000 & 0.035%
ZhEAn

Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior Personal {EA 3,630,000 ° 0.035%
&Yl A
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Directors’ Interests In Securities (Continued)

(i) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares
of associated corporation of the Company:

Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEEWEE(H)

EENEF 2B (E)

(i) WD TIRBSEER SRR
B2FR

Approximate
percentage of

the existing issued
share capital of the

Number of shares
and underlying
shares of

Name of associated Nature of the associate associated
corporation Name of Directors interest corporation corporation
1EEEEE {LAEESEE
ZBRB R RECBITRA
HESEE ST EFEMR EmME R EE BABEDH
Hong Kong Energy (Holdings) OEI Kang, Eric Corporate A 7] 2,088,349,249 10 243.664%
Limited (“HKE”) =l Personal & A 1,190,848 0.139%
BBFLIR(ER)BRAF Joint A 18,001,085 12 2.100%
([BEEFEIR])
HKE CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie Personal & A 5,000,000 12 0.583%
BBFEIR R
Notes: izt -

The personal interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an interest in
17,267,310 underlying shares in respect of warrants issued by the
Company and an interest in 3,630,000 underlying shares in respect of
options granted by the Company as detailed in “Share Option Schemes”
section above.

The corporate interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an interest in
1,321,841,532 shares of the Company and held by Creator Holdings
Limited (“Creator”) and an interest in 2,730,623,382 shares of the
Company and an interest in 476,880,359 underlying shares in respect of
warrants issued by the Company held by Genesis Capital Group Limited
(“Genesis”). Both Creator and Genesis are wholly owned by Claudio
Holdings Limited (“Claudio”), a company owned as to 50% by Mr. OEl
Kang, Eric and as to the remaining 50% by his wife, Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau.

The joint interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an interest in
91,195,648 shares of the Company and an interest in 35,046,943
underlying shares in respect of warrants issued by the Company jointly
held with his wife, Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau.

The family interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an interest in 3,630,000
underlying shares in respect of options granted by the Company as
detailed in “Share Option Schemes” section above.

1. FMFEEZ BN B IERA L AT E# 7757
RIEFF 17,267,310 1EF K 17 =
R_FX[ AR #E5 &) )— AT K 2 Bl AT
R IEF ] 2 3,680,000 185 % 17 12

e

2. EHEEZ RN Em LB EEEER
RE]([BIE])#FE.21,821,841,682 8 4
Bl R 17 1 75 - 2,730,623,382 BF AKX A
ARG EmRAEZEEEEFR LA (#
Bl ) fE HELA N AT # TR RIEER
2 476,880,359/ 1B K 17 ## 7 ° Claudio
Holdings Limited([ Claudio |) & & 1# 4 B
RZE| - ClaudioZ 50% 125 /1 2 ) 75 AL 1
B BHBo0% #Em iR ZFEZEL L1
,ﬁ °

3. ZFMEAEZ R F#EEERAE DA
91,195,648 KR 7.2 #an + XK EHAK L 7]
P #1758 R 5 B B, 2 35,046,943/ 16
R - TR A EEEFEZEL+
LS -

4. ERELZ KGR R X IR
73 U NI Vo s a1/ G 2
3,630,0000%1E B /R 17 1 7 °

BRER (ER) ARAF o —T-TFFRH
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEEREE(E)

Directors’ Interests In Securities (Continued)

(i)

Long positions in the shares and underlying
shares of associated corporation of the Company:
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

5.

10.

11.

The personal interest of Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie represents an interest
in 30,000,000 underlying shares in respect of options granted by the
Company as detailed in “Share Option Schemes” section above.

The personal interest of Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip represents an interest
in 3,630,000 underlying shares in respect of options granted by the
Company as detailed in “Share Option Schemes” section above.

The personal interest of Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico represents an
interest in 3,630,000 underlying shares in respect of options granted by
the Company as detailed in “Share Option Schemes” section above.

The personal interest of Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo represents an interest
in 3,630,000 underlying shares in respect of options granted by the
Company as detailed in “Share Option Schemes” section above.

The personal interest of Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior represents
an interest in 3,630,000 underlying shares in respect of options granted
by the Company as detailed in “Share Option Schemes” section above.

Since as at 31 December 2010, the Company was held as to
approximately 39.04% by Claudio Holdings Limited (“Claudio”) (via its
wholly-owned subsidiaries, Creator Holdings Limited (“Creator”) and
Genesis Capital Group Limited (“Genesis”)), a company owned as to
50% by Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and as to the remaining 50% by his wife, Mrs.
OEl Valonia Lau. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric is deemed to be interested in the
same parcel of shares in which the Company is interested. The corporate
interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents (i) an interest in 507,179,732
shares held by the Company in HKE; (ii) an interest in 70,579,593
shares held by Genesis; (iii) an interest in 43,292,891 underlying shares
in respect of warrants held by Genesis; (iv) an interest in a zero coupon
convertible note issued by HKE to the Company with a principal amount
of RMB73,500,000 carrying rights to convert into 82,126,965 ordinary
shares in HKE at a conversion price of HK$1.0113 per share, subject to
adjustment; and (v) 1,385,170,068 convertible preference shares issued
by HKE to the Company carrying rights to convert into shares at the initial
conversion rate of 1 convertible preference share to 1 share of HKE,
subject to adjustment.

The personal interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an interest in
1,190,848 underlying shares in respect of warrants issued by HKE.
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Directors’ Interests In Securities (Continued)

(i) Long positions in the shares and underlying
shares of associated corporation of the Company:

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

12. The joint interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an interest in 3,949,614
shares of HKE and an interest in 14,051,471 underlying shares in respect
of warrants issued by HKE jointly held with his wife, Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau.

13. The personal interest of Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie represents an interest
in 5,000,000 underlying shares in respect of warrants issued by HKE.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code contained in the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Right To Acquire Shares Or Debentures

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that enabled the Directors
of the Company or any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ And Controlling Shareholders’ Interests In
Contracts Of Significance

Saved as disclosed under the headings “Continuing Connected Transactions”
in this Report of Directors and “Related Party Transactions” in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EESWREE(E)

Directors’ Interests In Competing Businesses

Mr. OEl Tjie Goan is the chairman and a director of PT. Sinar Mas, a company
together with its subsidiaries, associates, including Asia Pulp & Paper
Company, Ltd., and its holding companies (if any) (the “Sinar Mas Group”) are
engaged in, among other things, general trading and, property development
and investment. One of the business activities of the Sinar Mas Group is
property development and investment in the PRC. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, a
member of the Oei family and a son of Mr. OEl Tjie Goan, does not have any
directorship in the Sinar Mas Group.

Mr. OEI Kang, Eric and Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie are the executive
directors of HKE whose principal business activities are alternative energy
business.

Mr. LI Xueming is a director of China Everbright Group Limited, China
Everbright Holdings Company Limited and China Everbright International
Limited, together with their subsidiaries, associates, and holding companies
(the “China Everbright Group”). Part of its business activities includes
alternative energy business, infrastructure and property investment,
development & management.

Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip is a non-executive director of China Everbright
International Limited and Hysan Development Company Limited. Part of
its business activities includes alternative energy business, infrastructure,
property investment, development and management and construction and
engineering.

Mr. LIU Guolin and Mr. XU Zheng (who resigned as a non-executive Director
of the Company on 6 April 2011) are directors and senior management
in Shanghai Construction (Group) General Corporation (together with its
subsidiaries, associates and holding companies (if any), the “Shanghai
Construction Group”) which is a former substantial Shareholder (as defined
in Part XV of the SFO) as well as a sub-contractor and a joint venture partner
for certain construction projects of the Group. One of its business activities is
construction business in the PRC.

Having considered that the Company itself has its own management
supervising the daily operation and making financial and business decisions,
the Company can operate its business independently of, and at arm’s length
from the businesses of the Sinar Mas Group, China Everbright Group and the
Shanghai Construction Group.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors was interested in any

business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests In Securities

At 31 December 2010, the following persons (other than a director or chief
executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be

kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of

the Company

Report of the Directors (Continued)
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percentage of
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Number of shares
and underlying

shares of share capital of

Name of Shareholders Nature of interest the Company the Company

A EARDAERE

RMEE KR 2ETRAE

BREE, LB ERME HEROHE BRBEDL

OEl Valonia Lau Personal fEA 3,630,000 0.035%

e Corporate A & 4,529,345,273 2 43.637%

Joint 2£[A] 126,242,591 3 1.126%

Family =& 20,897,310 * 0.201%

Claudio Holdings Limited Beneficial owner Bz5#A A 4,529,345,273 © 43.637%

Genesis Capital Group Limited Beneficial owner Bz A A 3,207,503,741 ¢ 30.902%
FERIEBBER AT

Creator Holdings Limited Beneficial owner Bz A5 A 1,321,841,632 7 12.735%
BIESEBBR AR

Stephen A. FEINBERG Corporate X &) 1,883,414,280 18.145%

Cerberus Institutional Associates, L.L.C. Corporate ‘A 7] 1,883,414,280 & 18.145%

Promontoria Europe Investments XIl LDC Corporate X &) 1,883,414,280 18.145%

Promontoria Holding Cooperatie U.A. Corporate X &) 1,883,414,280 18.145%

Promontoria Holding XXI B.V. Beneficial owner Bz A A 1,883,414,280 18.145%

Penta Investment Advisers Limited Investment manager % & #& 32 1,707,087,230 ° 16.446%

Penta Master Fund, Limited Beneficial owner Bz A5 A 617,623,529 5.950%

BRER (ER) ARAF o —T-TFFRH
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EEEREER)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests In Securities
(Continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company (Continued)

Notes:

The personal interest of Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau represents an interest in 3,630,000
underlying shares in respect of options granted by the Company to her.

The corporate interest of Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau represents an interest in
2,730,6283,382 shares and an interest in 476,880,359 underlying shares in
respect of warrants issued by the Company held by Genesis Capital Group
Limited (“Genesis”), an interest in 1,321,841,532 shares held by Creator Holdings
Limited (“Creator”). Both Creator and Genesis are wholly owned by Claudio
Holdings Limited (“Claudio”), a company owned as to 50% by Mr. OEl Kang, Eric
and as to the remaining 50% by his wife, Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau.

The joint interest of Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau represents an interest in 91,195,648
shares and an interest in 35,046,943 underlying shares in respect of warrants
issued by the Company jointly held with Mr. OEl Kang, Eric.

The family interest of Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau represents an interest in 17,267,310
underlying shares in respect of warrants issued by the Company and an interest
in 3,630,000 underlying shares in respect of options granted by the Company to
Mr. OEl Kang, Eric.

The beneficial interest of Claudio includes an interest in 2,730,623,382 shares
and an interest in 476,880,359 underlying shares in respect of warrants issued
by the Company held by Genesis, an interest in 1,321,841,532 shares held
by Creator. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau are the directors of
Claudio.

The beneficial interest of Genesis represents an interest in 2,730,623,382 shares
and an interest in 476,880,359 underlying shares in respect of warrants issued
by the Company. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau are the directors
of Genesis.

The beneficial interest of Creator represents an interest in 1,321,841,5632 shares.
Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau are the directors of Creator.

The beneficial interest of Cerberus Institutional Associates, L.L.C. includes an
interest in 1,726,463,090 shares and an interest in 156,951,190 underlying
shares in respect of warrants issued by the Company held by certain funds of
Cerberus which are managed by Penta on a discretionary basis.

The investment manager interest of Penta Investment Advisers Limited includes
an interest in 1,452,163,127 shares and an interest in 254,924,103 underlying
shares in respect of warrants issued by the Company held by certain funds of
Cerberus which are managed by Penta on a discretionary basis.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests In Securities
(Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, the Company had not
been notified by any person, other than directors and chief executive of the
Company, who had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which are required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Details of the continuing connected transactions entered into by the Group
during the year are set out below:

M

On 12 January 2009, Yangpu Water Supply Company Limited (held
as to 65% indirectly by the Company) entered into a supplemental
agreement with Jinhai Paper Pulping Industrial Company Limited
(“Jinhai”) for, among others, extending the term of the water supply
agreement dated 13 January 2004 (which was amended and
supplemented on 23 November 2005 and 25 April 2006 respectively)
for a further period from 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2011. Jinhai is
an associate of a connected person of the Company by virtue of being
indirectly controlled by the Oei family (the family members of Mr. OEI
Tjie Goan, the Chairman of the Company), including Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric
(an Executive Director of the Company), which is in turn a connected
person of the Company. The provision of water supply services
contemplated under the water supply agreement and the supplemental
agreement constitute a non-exempt continuing connected transaction
under the Listing Rules and is subject to the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule
14A.35 of the Listing Rules. For the year ended 31 December 2010,
the Group received an annual revenue of HK$32.7 million for provision
of the water supply services to Jinhai.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

(i)

On 2 March 2009, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a consultancy services agreement with M 'Y Wan and
Associates Limited (“MYW Limited”) in respect of the provision of
certain consultancy services to the Group for a consultancy fee of
HK$7.2 million per annum. As MYW Limited is solely and benegficially
owned by Mr. WAN Man Yee, it becomes a connected person of the
Company upon Mr. Wan’s appointment as a Director on 4 September
2009. The provision of services by MYW Limited under the consultancy
services agreement constitutes continuing connected transaction for
the Company under Rule 14A.14 of the Listing Rules, and is subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. For the year ended 31 December 2010, the
consultancy fee paid was HK$7.0 million. Mr. WAN Man Yee resigned as
an Executive Director of the company on 20 December 2010. Following
the resignation of Mr. WAN Man Yee, the consultancy services
agreement with MYW Limited had been ceased on 20 December 2010.

Opinion from the Independent Non-executive Directors
on the continuing connected transactions

In accordance with rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company have reviewed and approved the
continuing connected transactions described in () and (i) above (“Continuing
Connected Transactions”) and confirmed that the Continuing Connected
Transactions were carried out in accordance with the following principles:

(@)

(b)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms no less favourable than terms available to
(or from) independent third parties;

in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements governing the
Continuing Connected Transactions; and

on a fair and reasonable basis and in the interest of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

Report from the auditor on the continuing connected
transactions

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the abovementioned continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in accordance with the Main
Board Listing Rule 14A.38. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided
by the Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Financial Assistance And Guarantee To Affiliated
Companies

The Group had provided financial assistance to, and guarantee for, affiliated
companies in the aggregate amount of HK$1,914.8 million which represented
approximately 9.54% of the Group’s total assets value as at 31 December
2010. In accordance with the requirement under Rule 13.22 of the Listing
Rules, the pro forma combined balance sheet of those affiliated companies
and the Group’s attributable interests in those affiliated companies based on
their latest financial statements available are presented below:

Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEEWEE(H)

HERERS (E)
BEBEBRER S 2RHBRE

ARRZEEMCERREREEHMASHMDN
BB ZE TE4ERIZE30005% [ 25 4% o BIE 2 8t
BERIAINOIZRE TIE I M2 RIEMESIET7405%
[ B & LT R B Pl 55 48 3EE 52 5 A B0 B
HIREAEENFERER S - REMERIET
R ETARAISE 14A 38R HERE B LKt - 1K
HEBAZBEE ERAKE LR ENS AR
BERGNERRER - ARFICABBBERS
A IR A IR S AZERAM B BIAS

B Bk R 1 AR B RS IR B R IR 4R

REBE D MHE A TREL S5 /1,914,800,000
B2 MR RER hAAKRERZZ—ZF
+ A=+ —BZEELENIS4% - BIELET
RANE13. 2218 2 RE - REZFHBRTI RAEE
2RI ISHRERAMZS)  ZEHMB AR IEE
EHEEBBERRAEERZEHE QR ZEL
MR

The Group’s
Combined balance sheet attributable interests
EHEEARR AEEELER
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBIT EX-im
Non-current assets FEREEE 16,213.0 4,381.8
Current assets REEE 2,962.3 1,052.2
Current liabilities POEN=NE (5,692.2) (1,593.2)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (3,202.0) (1,391.2)
10,281.1 2,449.6

Management Contract EEEN

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEGREE(E)

Major Customers And Suppliers

The percentages of the Group’s purchases and sales for the year attributable
to its major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

The largest supplier
Five largest suppliers in aggregate

Sales

The largest customer
Five largest customers in aggregate

Jinhai Paper Pulping Industrial Company Limited (“Jinhai”) is one of the five
largest customers of the Group. Jinhai is an associate of a connected person
of the Company by virtue of being indirectly controlled by the Oei family
(the family members of Mr. OEl Tjie Goan, the Chairman of the Company),
including Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric (an Executive Director of the Company), which is
in turn a connected person of the Company.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors, any of their associates, or
shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the
Group’s five largest suppliers or customers noted above.

Purchase, Sale Or Redemption Of The Company’s Listed
Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Company repurchased its
ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:

Total number

ITREFPRMEER

TEHERREPREANLAESEBEENHEE
BZBEDLIT

RAMER 5.5%
ARBEEERT 11.9%
HERE

BRARP 13.0%
AREFAR 45.5%

BELEREEERQR (28 AREERK
EPEFZz— - AR EBAERRK(AARQR
IRFESRELEZRGREER  BREAREH
TESEMNEE(ALBARRREAL) REE
B MEER/ARRMEALZBEAL -

B EXEEEI  EF - WEERABBA LR
AR RBEEMAEE AR R D EHITRAEB
5%E VBN Ll RSB R R HERE P #
BT -

BE - HEIEEARLQE LHES

T BE+L-A=t+—RAILEE AR

R
A JPEEE Z EmAR T

2=
R

Price paid per ordinary share

of ordinary BREBRZEAER Aggregate

Date of repurchase shares repurchased Highest Lowest consideration paid
§5[E B A EEEEEREE BS 5303 ENEARE
HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT

12 January 2010 2,000,000 0.63 0.63 1,260,000.00

—E-ZTF—A+=H

The repurchased shares were cancelled during the year and the issued share
capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value thereof.
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Purchase, Sale Or Redemption Of The Company’s Listed
Securities (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

Corporate Governance

The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 15 to 24.

Model Code For Securities Transactions By Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specified employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information of the
Group are also subject to compliance with guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code. A Code for Securities Dealings by Employees
has also been adopted in this regard.

Retirement Benefits Schemes

Information on the Group’s retirement benefits schemes is set out in note 11a
to the consolidated financial statements.

Sufficiency Of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, there is sufficient
public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required
under the Listing Rules.

Review Of The Audited Financial Statements By Audit
Committee

The audit committee of the Company comprises four independent non-
executive directors with written terms of reference in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules, and reports to the Board. The audit
committee has reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2010.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEEREEE)

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution
for the reappointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors of the Company is
to be proposed at the AGM.

Update On Directors’ Information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, change in the information of
the director of the Company since the date of the 2010 Interim Report is set
out below:

Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie (Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. CHANG was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Pou
Sheng International (Holdings) Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange on 7 March 2011.

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo (Independent Non-executive
Director)

Mr. CHENG was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Top
Spring International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange on 23 March 2011.

Mr. LI Xueming (Deputy Chairman and Non-executive
Director)

Mr. LI will retire as Deputy Chairman and non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 1 June 2011.

Mr. LIU Guolin (Non-executive Director)
Mr. LIU will retire as non-executive director of the Company with effect from 1
June 2011.

By Order of the Board
CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 March 2011
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Independent Auditor’s Report

_&

pwec

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of HKC (Holdings)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out
on pages 63 to 179, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888 Fax : +852 2810 9888
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BIZEEMRE (E)

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2010, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2011
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Consolidated Income Statement

n‘/-ﬁ ,E\ J/IIﬁ %

For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-_Z-—ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE

2010 2009
—E-BE —BTNEF
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million
b BEBT AEAT
Revenue & 5 499.1 378.0
Cost of sales SHE R (347.3) (238.3)
Gross profit EF 151.8 139.7
Other income HAp A 6 54.7 143.8
Fair value adjustments on KEMENFEAE
investment properties 16 (98.9) 1,085.4
(Provision for)/reversal of impairment BERARE(BE) /Bl
losses on assets 7 (38.0) 408.0
Selling and distribution costs SHE R SHA AN (9.7) (4.9)
Administrative expenses THEA (258.3) (281.3)
Other and general expenses HE & —fRE B (83.9) (132.2)
Operating (loss)/profit K (F5R), 5l 8 (282.3) 1,353.5
Finance income BAFEUE A 9 18.9 111
Finance costs BhE A 9 (225.6) (183.5)
Finance costs — net AR AN FE RS 9 (206.7) (172.4)
Share of profits less losses of FEIGEE & N alE R R Es1E
associated companies 22 89.9 44.2
Share of profits less losses of [E1E & &R almAREE
jointly controlled entities 23 (14.9) 810.9
(Loss)/profit before income tax PR Al (&), H#F (414.0) 2,036.2
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisFiife, (i) 12 17.8 (334.0)
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(ER),Sa5F (396.2) 1,702.2
Attributable to: DA e -
Equity holders of the Company AARIRRIERETFE A 13 (293.8) 1,456.7
Non-controlling interests Eaaliig (102.4) 245.5
(396.2) 1,702.2
(Loss)/earnings per share for (loss)/profit QTR RERIFE AEMN
attributable to equity holders (F518) /EN 2 8K
of the Company, expressed in (E518),/BA
HK cents per share PLgRRAEWLDIR 14
Basic AR (2.8) 14.5
Diluted = (2.9) 14.2
Dividend [g=A 15 - _
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
MeETHEBERRK

For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE_Z-ZEF+-_A=+—HILFE

2010 2009
—E-EF —EThF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BBEBT BEBT
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(FR),S5R (396.2) 1,702.2
Other comprehensive income Hith2mEUA
Fair value gains on available-for-sale financial assets At ESREEA T ERKE 3.2 3.7
Currency translation differences M B =5 519.1 7.7)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, REEHMEEMBA (EA)
net of tax MR IE 522.3 (4.0)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEREBALEE 126.1 1,698.2
Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to: LU AR 2 EUWA (B8 ) 485 :
Equity holders of the Company RATIRRIERITA A 178.8 1,452.4
Non-controlling interests el (52.7) 245.8
126.1 1,698.2
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
meBEEAER

As at 31 December 2010
R-_E—ZEF+-_A=+—H

As restated As restated

LED| w7
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
“E-TF ZZTNE ZZTNE
+ZA=t+—H +=-A=t+—H —A—H
Note HKS Million HKS Million HK$ Million
sk BEBT BEBT BEAT
ASSETS &E
Non-current assets FreEE
Investment properties REME 16 6,187.0 6,944.3 2,827.4
Prepaid land lease payments BN LAER 17 3,283.6 3,324.5 5,889.0
Property, plant and equipment M - BB R
— Other property, plant and equipment —HihE - ERRE 18 912.9 940.1 1,017.8
— Construction in progress —fEETE 18 496.3 482.3 160.3
Intangible assets EWEE 19 1,163.6 1,191.6 1,217.2
Properties under development BRAME 20 456.3 271.0 624.3
Interests in associated companies i A=YNGIPL " 22 1,583.6 1,520.9 1,233.1
Interests in jointly controlled entities NREDNR R 23 1,916.5 1,854.8 1,024.0
Derivative financial instrument FTESRTE 24 5.0 5.0 5.0
Available-for-sale financial assets AP ESREE 25 31.3 27.2 238
Total non-current assets FRBEELTE 16,036.1 16,561.7 14,021.9
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 27 12.7 12.9 43.2
Properties held for sale EHERR Y% 28 370.8 491.4 9.1
Financial assets at fair value through BATEERERIIEY
profit or loss SREE 29 13.6 75.2 391.4
Trade and other receivables FEURBR S N A MR 30 385.1 382.4 4438
Restricted cash XRHHES 32 320.6 309.0 674.9
Cash and cash equivalents RERALEED 33 1,903.3 2,210.0 1,836.9
3,006.1 3,480.9 3,399.3
Assets of disposal group classified FEFENRER
as held for sale NEE 46 1,022.8 = =
Total current assets REEELHE 4,028.9 3,480.9 3,399.3
Total assets BEHE 20,065.0 20,042.6 17,421.2
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)

RREERERGE)

As at 31 December 2010
R-Z—ZF+-A=+-H

As restated

As restated

LED| BT
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
“E-TF ZZTNE ZZTNE
t=A=t-A +-A=1+-"H —A-A
Note HKS Million HKS Million HK$ Million
Bz BEAT BEAT BEBTL
EQUITY B
Capital and reserves attributable to equity AN\ FIRERERZA A
holders of the Company FIEEAR R
Share capital R 34 103.8 93.9 825
Reserves =4 89 12,398.5 12,335.6 10,756.4
Equity attributable to equity holders of the ~ KAFRFEERIZE A
Company FElh iR 12,502.3 12,429.5 10,838.9
Non-controlling interests RS 1,142.6 974.4 742.9
Total equity ERAm 13,644.9 13,403.9 11,581.8
LIABILITIES afg
Non-current liabilities =N
Borrowings T 36 2,942.6 3,330.1 3,197.1
Other non-current payables HiIEREN BN 323.9 325.7 299.3
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFEHAR 38 1,117.8 1,110.2 7769
Total non-current liabilities FREEBEE 4,384.3 4,766.0 4,273.3
Current liabilities V=N
Trade and other payables FERTBRT R E A FE I3 37 902.0 1,083.7 1,154.6
Borrowings B 36 739.8 466.2 399.0
Derivative liability PTHETABE 39 75.5 - _
Amount due to a shareholder R —ZREIE 40 - 362.1 =
Current income tax liabilities HHFEHAR 32.9 10.7 12.5
1,750.2 1,872.7 1,566.1
Liabilities of disposal group classified HEFENRER
as held for sale HaE 46 285.6 - -
Total current liabilities MEBERLE 2,035.8 1,872.7 1,566.1
Total liabilities BEAE 6,420.1 6,638.7 5,839.4
Total equity and liabilities EnkEE8E 20,065.0 20,042.6 17,421.2
Net current assets RBEERE 1,993.1 1,608.2 1,833.2
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERABEE 18,029.2 18,169.9 15,855.1

OEIl Kang, Eric
CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie
Directors

=H)
RAEF
BE=x
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Balance Sheet
EEBER

As at 31 December 2010
RZZE—ZTF+_A=+—H

2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million
MisE BEETT AEBT
ASSETS BiE
Non-current asset FERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETBRRE ZI%E 21 168.0 164.1
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG E O 21 10,162.1 10,576.4
Financial assets at fair value through BEATEEBERYEZ
profit or loss CREE 29 0.3 62.5
Other receivables H UG 30 1.7 0.5
Cash and cash equivalents ReREEEEY 33 4.9 8.5
Total current assets RENVEEHRE 10,169.0 10,647.9
Total assets EEHALE 10,337.0 10,812.0
EQUITY B
Capital and reserves attributable to equity 7N TR ERAEZEIFE A B
holders of the Company BARKR#E
Share capital %N 34 103.8 93.9
Reserves G 35 10,222.9 10,293.5
Total equity FERAARE 10,326.7 10,387.4
Current liabilities REIEE
Other payables HAbFE K 37 10.3 62.5
Amount due to a shareholder JES — R FIE 40 = 362.1
Total liabilities BEHE5E 10.3 424.6
Total equity and liabilities BakaEEs 10,337.0 10,812.0
OEI Kang, Eric =
CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie RV
Directors B5E
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

n‘/T\ * e \ = @J 7:»%

For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE_Z-ZEF+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable
to equity Non-
holders of the controlling Total
Company interests equity
P /N
RRERE
B AL Bl A%
Note HK$ Million HKS$ Million HK$ Million
PiEE BEATT BEAT BEAT
Balance at 1 January 2009 R=ZZZNE
— A —B#8k 10,838.9 742.9 11,581.8
Comprehensive income 2HEBA
Profit for the year REE R 1,456.7 245.5 1,702.2
Other comprehensive income Hitt2mEKRA
Fair value gains on available-for-sale —H,fEH:' TRUEE
financial assets N ERE 85 3.7 - 3.7
Currency translation differences lEHME =58 35 (8.0) 0.3 (7.7)
Total comprehensive income AEEZEIRALEE
for the year 1,452.4 245.8 1,698.2
Transactions with owners BEBAZRS
Employee share option benefits & B FE A #EtE T 35 28.1 = 28.1
Exercise of bonus warrants 1TIELI R R REE 34,35 1171 _ 1171
Repurchase of shares 88 [0 f%1n 34,35 (3.2) = (3.2)
Release of reserves FERR
— upon disposal and liquidation of —HEREENB
subsidiaries NGIiSS £85 8.9) (12.7) (16.6)
— upon disposal of available-for-sale  —HERHHE SR
financial assets BER 85 0.1 - 0.1
Increase in non-controlling interests ~ ZARA &2 _EHHEBEA
upon exercise of bonus warrants FrE&rT4I A |Jnuﬁx$§ p‘
issued by the listed subsidiary of the 1T 8 FEH A%
Company Rz IE AN - 5.8 5.3
Gain on deemed disposal of equity ~ f8/EH & —RE# L A T
interest in an associated company XA RE RS 2 Wzs - (6.7) (5.7)
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT IEERARIRE
shareholders - (8.4) (8.4)
Decrease in amounts due from RIS RR
non-controlling shareholders AR R IER - 2.2 2.2
Total transactions with owners HEEBAZR S HEEE 138.2 (14.9) 123.9
Balance at 31 December 2009 R-ZENEF
TZR=+—H#&&H% 12,429.5 974.4 13,403.9
Balance at 1 January 2010 R=ZZ—FF
—B—H& 12,429.5 974.4 13,403.9
Comprehensive income 2HEBA
Loss for the year REEEE (293.8) (102.4) (396.2)
Other comprehensive income Hitt2mEKRA
Fair value gains on available-for-sale —H,\Hj SREE
financial assets N ERE 35 3.2 - 3.2
Currency translation differences PE R ME =58 35 469.4 497 519.1
Total comprehensive income AEEZEBALE
for the year 178.8 (52.7) 126.1
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SRAEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-_Z-—ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE

Attributable
to equity Non-
holders of the controlling Total
Company interests equity
NN
RERERE
B AL FEIER RS A%
Note HK$ Million HKS$ Million HK$ Million
PiEE BEATT BEBT BEAT
Transactions with owners BEBAZRS
Employee share option benefits {E B i Ak i a1 35 6.4) 1.6 (4.8)
Exercise of bonus warrants 1T AT AR AR AE RE 34,35 15.3 - 15.3
Repurchase of shares BEE D 34,35 (1.9 = (1.3
Release of reserve upon liquidation of A —EE & A 5)/5 A&
an associated company R AR 0.1) = ©.1)
Changes in ownership interests AT RE BB S
in subsidiaries that do not result RN EEER
in a loss of control arising from the BB REF L E
following factors eI
— issue of preference shares by a —AEE NS
subsidiary of the Group to NS
non-controlling shareholders IR BITB AR = 103.6 103.6
— exercise of a listed subsidiary’s —{IEAREE DR
bonus warrants, distributed Z Fﬁiﬁﬂfﬁ%
by the Group AN RZALNRA
= (1.4) 3.7 2.3
— distribution of certain shares of —DIRASEFTIFE
a subsidiary held by the Group —fEBAEZ
AT (39.3) 39.3 -
— disposal of alternative energy —BEBRERER
business to a non-wholly owned %Z!S%@*F'EEJ
subsidiary of the Group FEEEHEAR] 35 8.1 (8.1) -
Proposed distribution of proceeds i F"J B H“Hx%
from sale of equity interest of HERATHE—MH
a subsidiary to a non-controlling M8 A mIAR A i 2
shareholder FriS 58 35 (80.9) 80.9 -
Dividends paid to non-controlling SERE 21 Hxﬂxﬁﬂx SA
shareholders = @.4) 2.4)
Decrease in amounts due from e — 2 FEFE AR
a non-controlling shareholder AR FIRR A - 2.3 2.3
Total transactions with owners B A 2 R Z4EE (106.0) 220.9 114.9
Balance at 31 December 2010 N-E—FF
+=ZA=t+—RB4& 12,502.3 1,142.6 13,644.9

BEER (ER) ARAE o —T-THEER 69



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

AN é\‘t = ;E
ERRERE
For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-ZT-FF+-A=t+—BLFE

2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million
MfaE BEET AEAT
Cash flows used in operating activities REEBRERE
Cash used in operations EEARS 44(a) (98.0) (121.0)
Income tax paid, net B TS HFRE (2.5) (3.1)
Net cash used in operating activities 4R IR AT PR IR 4 VR R (100.5) (124.1)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHZRERE
Interest received BHFIE 18.9 11.1
Dividend received B8 76.3 -
Construction costs paid for investment B EEAEEE 2 ZERR
properties under development (9.9) (14.0)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEEYE  WERERE (1.5) (184.4)
Purchase of intangible assets BERVEE = (8.6)
Proceeds from the disposal of HEATSIRIA
— Prepaid land lease payments — BN T HEER 33.7 =
— Property, plant and equipment o JE =Y S & 1.1 4.0
— Financial assets at fair value through —BAFEEEBRKRIERZE
profit and loss BEE 58.7 68.0
— Available-for-sale financial assets —AHHESREE - 0.4
— Subsidiaries —KIBAR] 44(c) - 30.3
Payments for the acquisition of interests/ W BB R 2 N RS
additional interests in associated companies ~ EESMEZE 2 (3K - (243.8)
Decrease in net advances to associated REE R R TFRE
companies L = 1.1
Increase in net advances to jointly controlled  [A1& & A B EA S S EE1E N
entities (1.7) (17.9)
Net cash generated from/(used in) WEEEE(FTR )R E/F58
investing activities 175.6 (353.8)
Cash flows from financing activities RMETEH2RERE
Proceeds from exercise of share warrants 1T{E R 2 TS 2R 17.3 119.8
Payment for repurchase of ordinary shares EAEIRSSEE AN E (1.3) (3.2)
Repayment of bank borrowings and other loans 1& i $877 & 7% & Eqth & 5% (542.5) (446.8)
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash SRS (gm) SEd (11.6) 365.9
Increase in bank borrowings and other loans #8778 7 52 Eofth & ZX32 A0 511.2 641.1
(Decrease)/increase in amount due At — BB ERFRIBOR A ) N
to a shareholder (362.1) 362.1
Contribution from a non-controlling KE—EMNBARTZ—%
shareholder in a subsidiary FEZEAR PR T & 195.0 =
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders 1< 3% A% % 5 A% 2. (2.4) (3.4)
Interest paid BEFE (249.7) (183.5)
Net cash (used in)/ generated from MEEH(FTA) FTEE S F58
financing activities (446.1) 852.0
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRESZEEY
cash equivalents GRA) B InFEEE (371.0) 374.1
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B—HAZIHRENRESEED 2,210.0 1,836.9
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes FEREE) & 75.6 (1.0)
1,914.6 2,210.0
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December HR+-—A=+—H2Z
e RIRESEEY 1,903.3 2,210.0
Cash and cash equivalents of disposal group FEFENEREEANIE S
classified as held for sale NMREEEY 11.3 -
1,914.6 2,210.0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General information

HKC (Holdings) Limited (the “Company” or “HKC”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The address of its registered office
is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the business of property development and
investment, alternative energy investment and operation, infrastructure
and construction. The investments of the Group are mainly located in
the Mainland China.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in million of units
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ Million), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 30 March 2011.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of HKC (Holdings) Limited
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of investment properties, available-for-sale financial assets,
and financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
financial instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

e IR R AR M R

— s
EEERGER)BERAR( AR KBS
BRDARBREIMRI2EREEA
7] o FEfy SRR i AClarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda °

AREREMBEAR(AEIAEEDEER
EMEFERARE  BHAERRENREE -
HERPARTRER AKBZREXTEN
P B A -

ARBBRORERB AR ZHMAR DA (5
LR DERET ©

BREFAIN  NrEUBBRABEET
(BEBT))REMIITR EFEEN_F
—— = A=+ BHETIBERGS M BHR
= o

IR HRME
BEAGAMBRERNZ EEGHEER

ST - BRR BN - RFBRERE
ERFENERER -

2.1 REHEE
EARR(ZER)ERDAZEANSB
HE TIRIEE BB SRS LR ([ B
HBREER RE - ZERARTS
MEIRELRAEBORE - HERR
B  THEESBEE RAT
BEEBRNEIE Y SMEERSRE
E(REMESBTA) Y BHELE
HE
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RAELHIE o P RRS HE K EE
FERVERS - SRR R GRS A B 7S
BRABRTENHBNRE4E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A RAR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continveq)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(@)  New and amended standards adopted by the Group

For the financial year beginning on 1 January 2010,
the Group has adopted the following amendments to
standards and interpretation of HKFRS, which are relevant

to its operations.
HKAS 7 (amendment)
HKAS 17 (amendment)
HKAS 27 (revised)
HKFRS 3 (revised)
HKFRS 8 (amendment)

HK(FRIC) - Int 17

HK Interpretation 5

Statement of cash flows
Leases

Consolidated and separate
financial statements
Business combinations

Operating segments

Distributions of non-cash assets
to owners

Presentation of financial
statements — classification by
the borrower of a term loan
that contains a repayment on
demand clause

The Group has assessed the impact for the adoption of
these amendments to standards and interpretation and
considered that there was no significant effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements except for the
amendments as set out below.

o HKAS 17 (amendment),

‘Leases’, deletes specific

guidance regarding classification of leases of land,
so as to eliminate inconsistency with the general
guidance on lease classification. As a result, leases
of land should be classified as either finance or
operating lease using the general principles of HKAS
17, i.e. whether the lease transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset to the lessee. Prior to the amendment, land
interest which title is not expected to pass to the
Group by the end of the lease term was classified
as operating lease under “Prepaid land lease
payments”, and amortised over the lease term.

HKC (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2010
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continved)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

AP RAR M ()

2 FESHBEREEw)
2.1 REEE m)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures BiTHRRIEEZEE ()

(Continued)

(@) New and amended standards adopted by the Group @  EEEERN AT RACNEETE
(Continued) AI(E)

HKAS 17 (amendment) has been applied
retrospectively for annual periods beginning 1
January 2010 in accordance with the effective date
and transitional provisions of the amendment. The
Group has reassessed the classification of unexpired
leasehold land as at 1 January 2010 on the basis of
information existing at the inception of those leases,
and recognised the leasehold land in Hong Kong
as finance lease retrospectively. As a result of the
reassessment, the Group has reclassified certain
leasehold land from operating lease to finance lease.

The Hong Kong land interest of the Group that is
held for own use is accounted for as property, plant
and equipment and is depreciated from the land
interest available for its intended use over the shorter
of the useful live of the asset and the lease term.

The effect of the adoption of this amendment is as
below:

BRGEAETR(E
RIA)EREERIAZE
MEBPEEGR - A=
T—TF-H-HRKZ
FEBEEPEM - RE
BEEEMFER T %
F—H—BBEOHEKRER
HE iz 28R R
MFRREREFEZER
EITRHE) - X EWE
RNEBHE L AR
BHE - ZEHHE UL
AEBIEETHE LR
REMEEHMORERE
HE -

AEBEESRG 2B
THEREE ARIEY
¥ HBEERELDRE
B2 B Al R H R
EHRE 7 BIEREAE
LIRS TITE

R SEFI Rz 8 m
T

31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
—2-%F  “TTAF  CFTNF
t=A=t-8 +-A=t-H —A—H
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEAT BEBT BEBT
Decrease in prepaid land BT wAETRD
lease payments (76.9) (78.8) (80.7)
Increase in property, WIS HEER RN
plant and equipment 76.9 78.8 80.7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ERERMET (&)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continveq)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(@) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)

HKAS 27 (revised) requires the effects of all
transactions with non-controlling interests to be
recorded in equity if there is no change in control and
these transactions will no longer result in goodwill
or gains and losses. The standard also specifies
the accounting when control is lost. Any remaining
interest in the entity is re-measured to fair value, and
a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group has applied Hong Kong Interpretation 5
“Presentation of financial statements — classification
by the borrower of a term loan that contains a
repayment on demand clause” effective on 29
November 2010. The adoption of this interpretation
has no significant effect on the financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2009. Accordingly no
retrospective adjustment has been made.

As at 31 December 2010, HK$192.5 million has
been classified as current liabilities under Hong Kong
Interpretation 5.

Other new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations, which are mandatory for the first time for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2010, are not relevant for the
Group or do not have material impact on the Group in the year
ended 31 December 2010.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FRE BRI (&)

2  Summary of significant accounting policies (continve)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)
New and amended standards, and interpretations
mandatory for the first time for the financial year beginning
1 January 2010 but not currently relevant to the Group
(although they may affect the accounting for future

(b)

transactions and events)

HK(FRIC) 18

HK(FRIC) 9

HK(FRIC) 16

HKAS 1 (amendment)

HKAS 36 (amendment)

HKAS 39 (amendment)

HKFRS 2 (amendments)

HKFRS 5 (amendment)

Transfers of assets
from customers

Reassessment of embedded
derivatives

Hedges of a net investment
in a foreign operation

Presentation of financial
statements

Impairment of assets

Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement

Group cash-settled share-
based payment transactions

Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ERERMET (&)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continveq)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

©

New standards, amendments and interpretations have
been issued but are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2010 and have not been early
adopted.

The following standards and amendments to existing
standards have been published and are mandatory for
the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2011 or later periods, but the Group has not early
adopted them:

2

FESTTERBEw)

2.1 REEE m)
BRI B (48)

© R-F-—FF-—H—HFHZ
BB F B B AR 1A 15 K A 3K
AR E TR SE PR #TE
B (EET AR -
NTRERMBABAEE T
——F—RB—BHaAERIRZ
AEEEGTHBMRBKL MR
B - AR E Y EIE IR
N R M SERB R 2 ER]

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
WT5 AEs 2%
Bz ast AN

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2013
BBUTEREERFEN SEIA —Z—=F—-H—H
HKAS 24 (revised) Related party disclosures 1 January 2011
BRAGEERIFE245 (FIEFT) AR Ty R R —E2—%F—H—H
Amendment to HKAS 32 Classification of rights issues 1 February 2010
BARTERFERR 2B HRSHR e =
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: 1 January 2012
B SRR E12% 75T Recovery of underlying assets —E——_—F—H—H
JEAERE -
W EIiER &
HK (IFRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity instruments 1 July 2010
A (BERVBREREZEY) - UERIAKHEERARE —Z-TF+HA—H
REZ195%

Amendments to HK (IFRIC) - 14

ah(BERMBmEREEEE)
F1458 2 EFT

Annual improvements project

FEBEER

REEEHRE AN

The Group has not early adopted the new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretations, which have
been issued but are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2010. The Group has commenced
an assessment of the related impact but is not yet in
a position to state whether any substantial changes to
the Group’s accounting policies and presentation of the
financial information will be resulted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continveq)

2.2 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to
31 December.

(@) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying
a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the group controls another
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The group uses the acquisition method of accounting to
account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and
the equity interests issued by the group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in
subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising
from contingent consideration amendments. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ERERMET (&)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continved)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

@

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the
case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the statement of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with equity owners of the
group. For purchases from non-controlling interests,
the difference between any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets
of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

When the group ceases to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continveq)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)
(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

()

(Continued)

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

Associated companies

Associated companies are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Investments in associated companies
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting
and are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment
in associated companies includes goodwill (net of any
accumulated impairment loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associated companies’
post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive income. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associated company
equals or exceeds its interest in the associated company,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associated
company.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associated companies are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the associated companies. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associated companies have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ERERMET (&)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continveq)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(©

(@)

Associated companies (Continued)

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in
associated companies are recognised in consolidate
income statement.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
associated companies are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of associated companies
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is a contractual arrangement
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an
economic activity which is subject to joint control and none
of the participating parties has unilateral control over the
economic activity.

Investments in jointly controlled entities are accounted for
by the equity method of accounting. The consolidated
income statement includes the Group’s share of the
results of jointly controlled entities for the year, and the
consolidated balance sheet includes the Group’s share of
the net assets of the jointly controlled entities and goodwill
(net of any accumulated impairment loss) on acquisition.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in
jointly controlled entities are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses. The results of jointly controlled
entities are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continveq)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)
(d) Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy
The group has changed its accounting policy for
transactions with non-controlling interests and the
accounting for loss of control or significant influence from
1 January 2010 when revised HKAS 27, ‘Consolidated
and separate financial statements’, became effective. The
revision to HKAS 27 contained consequential amendments
to HKAS 28, ‘Investments in associates’, and HKAS 31,
‘Interests in joint ventures’.

Previously transactions with non-controlling interests were
treated as transactions with parties external to the group.
Disposals therefore resulted in gains or losses in profit or
loss and purchases resulted in the recognition of goodwill.
On disposal or partial disposal, a proportionate interest in
reserves attributable to the subsidiary was reclassified to
profit or loss or directly to retained earnings.

Previously, when the group ceased to have control or
significant influence over an entity, the carrying amount of
the investment at the date control or significant influence
became its cost for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interests as associates, jointly
controlled entity or financial assets.

The group has applied the new policy prospectively to
transactions occurring on or after 1 January 2010. As
a consequence, no adjustments were necessary to any
of the amounts previously recognised in the financial
statements.

2.3 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker (“CODM”). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the steering committee that
makes strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mE MR (&)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continved)
2.4 Foreign currency translation

@

(®)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The Company’s functional
currency is Renminbi and the Group’s presentation
currency is Hong Kong dollars to facilitate analysis of the
financial information of the Group, which is listed in Hong
Kong.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as available-
for-sale are analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the
security, and other changes in the carrying amount of the
security. Translation differences related to changes in the
amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other
changes in the carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Translation difference on non-
monetary financial assets such as equities classified as
available for sale are included in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continveq)

2.4 Foreign currency translation continued)

(©

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each consolidated income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and

@iy all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations are
taken to other comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is partially disposed of or sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity are recognised in
the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

r e IR AR Y ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continveq)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Properties are interests in land and buildings other than
investment properties. Leasehold land classified as finance
lease, other property, water utility plant and equipment,
electric utility plant and equipment, other plant and equipment,
comprising plant and machineries, motor vehicles and furniture
and fixtures are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

No depreciation is provided on properties under development.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest becomes
available for its intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land
classified as finance lease and depreciation on other assets is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land classified
as finance lease

shorter of remaining lease
term or useful life

Buildings 50 years
Water utility plant and equipment 15 years
Electric utility plant and equipment 20 years

Other plant and equipment 3to 15 years
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

All direct and indirect costs relating to the construction of
property, plant and equipment, including borrowing costs during
the construction period are capitalised as the costs of the assets,
which are classified as construction in progress. On completion,
the construction in progress is transferred to property, plant
and equipment at cost less accumulated impairment losses. No
depreciation is provided on construction in progress.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continveq)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount of the asset
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated will flow to
the Group and the cost of item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
other income or other and general expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land and
office buildings, is held for long-term rental yields and is not
occupied by the Group. Land held under operating leases are
accounted for as investment properties when the rest of the
definition of an investment property is met. In such cases, the
operating leases concerned are accounted for as if they were
finance leases.

Property that is being constructed or developed as investment
property is carried at fair value. Where fair value is not
determinable, such investment property under construction
is measured at cost until either its fair value becomes reliably
determinable or construction is completed (whichever is earlier).

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition at cost investment
properties are carried at fair value, representing open market
value determined at each reporting date by external valuers. Fair
value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If the information is not available, the group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections. These valuations
are reviewed annually by Knight Frank Petty Limited (“Knight
Frank”), an independent professional valuer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continveq)

2.6

2.7

Investment properties (continued)

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other
things, rental income from current leases and assumptions about
rental income from future leases in the light of current market
conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows
that could be expected in respect of the property. Some of those
outflows are recognised as a liability, including finance lease
liabilities in respect of land classified as investment property,
others, including contingent rent payments, are not recognised in
the financial statements.

Subsequently expenditure is included in the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost
of the asset can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recorded in the income statement as
part of a valuation gain or loss in other income.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments which are stated at cost and
subsequently are amortised in the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
or when there is impairment, the impairment is expensed in
the consolidated income statement. During the course of the
properties development, the amortisation is included as part of
the costs of the properties under development.

HKC (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2010

2

x
2.6

2.7

EESTHEREBE )

BREYZE @)

BEYE Y ATERBR(ER0E)K
BEEREZRSMA  URIEEE
TSRS AR & R RS S U A
ZBE -

DHETRAROTT R IE B B YY)
XZEABRESRL - HRETRER
HHERREE  BRIBRRENE
ZBEMERE  HMIAR (%
KBS) TS EMBRRER -

EEMEECARREEMNSREATEE
MAAREE - MEEKABESI T 5t
AHER - ARAXTEFABEZR
EfE - ARG E RRERARE
2 B BHRANER S BRRH o

NHEZEE  NMESXRTERMGE
WEn sk B IE 2 Bh D HERR A E AR A -

AT+ IREH

BN TR E TR AT - H1EA
REMAEREERE B R EH -
skitd HIRAE - REGERSBER
X - RYIRBERBRES - #HI
TER R YRR AR D ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continveq)

2.8

2.9

Completed properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are initially measured at the carrying
amount of the property at the date of reclassification from
properties under development. Properties remaining unsold
at the end of the year are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost comprises development costs attributable to the unsold
properties.

Net realisable value represents the management’s estimated
selling price based on prevailing market conditions less costs to
be incurred in selling the property.

The Company transfers a property from investment property to
inventories/properties held for sale when and only when there is
a change in use, evidenced by commencement of development
with a view to sale. The deemed cost of the properties held for
sale transferred from investment property is the fair value of the
property at the date of change in use.

Properties under development

Properties under development including the properties developed
for self use or resale comprises development cost of properties
and the costs paid to acquire land use rights which are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Development cost of properties comprises construction
costs, borrowing costs and professional fees incurred during
the development period. Upon obtaining the land use right
certificates, the costs paid for land use rights are transferred
to prepaid land lease payments. On completion, the properties
under development are transferred to completed properties held
for sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mE KRR (&)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continved)
2.10 Intangible assets

@

(b)

Gooawill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Separately recognised goodwill is tested
for impairment at every reporting period end and carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment
losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose.

Concession rights

The costs incurred for the construction or upgrade
work or the acquisition of the toll road under the service
concession arrangements of the Group with relevant local
governments are accounted for an intangible asset if the
Group receives a right to charge users of the toll road.

These expenditures are amortised on an units-of-usage
basis, making reference to the proportion of actual traffic
volume achieved for a particular period over the total
projected traffic volume throughout the periods within
which the Group is granted the rights to operate the
toll road. The total projected volume of the respective
concession right is reviewed regularly with reference to
both internal and external sources of information and
appropriate adjustments are made should there be a
material change.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2  Summary of significant accounting policies (continve)
2.10 Intangible assets (Continued)

(b) Concession rights (Continued)
Land use rights acquired in conjunction with the service
concession arrangement which the Group has no
discretion or latitude to deploy for other services other than
the use in the service concession are treated as intangible
assets.

(c) Biomass technology
Separately acquired biomass technology is shown at
historical cost. Biomass technology has a finite useful life
and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment and
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line basis over its estimated useful life of five years.

(d) Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Other
intangible assets have a finite useful life and are carried
at cost less accumulated impairment and amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives of five years.

2.11 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,

associated companies, jointly controlled
entities and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment. Assets which are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

r e IR AR R ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continveq)

2.12 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held

for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets
held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered
highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell if their carrying amount is to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable.

2.13 Construction contracts

Contract costs are recognised as an expense in the period when
they are incurred. When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be
recoverable. When the outcome of a construction contract can
be estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract will be
profitable, contract revenue is recognised over the period of the
contract. When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are
included in contract revenue to the extent that may have been
agreed with the customer and are capable of being reliably
measured.

The Group uses the “percentage of completion method” to
determine the appropriate amount to recognise in a given period.
The stage of completion is measured by reference to contract
costs incurred up to the balance sheet date as a percentage of
total estimated costs for each contract. Costs incurred in the
year in connection with future activity on a contract are excluded
from contract costs in determining the stage of completion.
They are presented as inventories, prepayments or other assets,
depending on their nature.

HKC (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2010

FESHHERHME 2
2QI12EESHEREZERBERE

(HEEH)
EIERBEE(FREA) 2 RHER
IRERRHERZHWEMBEZHE
WRBRBRAFRLELR - FWORA
FHEHERGE ZEE  WIFRBEE
(HEREH) < REEFEREB IR
HERZMIEEBHEERAKE A%
HERRRRARERLE - AERE
BE(KRER) RREERAFHER
HERAR 2 BIEETII

213EEEH

BHNAREEHEERBREZ - &
BESONERT ] EMET - Bl
B EZRBER KRB ZEEES
HIPNATER - BRREAKEREHN]
S8R BEASERAE - 84K
=RNENHEER - E6HKAETE
RAEMREBLE WS BRER - 85T
EEeRERAMX

BHIR RERERSZEE 5
FIREBE PEMK R AL Al SERT B2
BERRT AR HUER ©

REB AT TR B 2 LA I EER I E
HfR R A BN - TTHER2R
HEAEHEEESHRTIEHEH
BRBBEIRAZBOLAE - FA
RENBRBBEL KA  REE
SETREERE - TRHARKIKA Rt
BREE  ANFRSEMEEZS -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FREM BRI (&)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies continvesy 2 FEESETBERME )

2.13 Construction contracts (Continued) 213BEEN#)

The Group presents as an asset the gross amount due from
customers for contract work for all contracts in progress for
which costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised
losses) exceed progress billings. Progress billings not yet paid
by customers and retentions are included within trade and other
receivables.

The Group presents as a liability the gross amount due to
customers for contract work for all contracts in progress for
which progress billings exceed costs incurred plus recognised
profits (less recognised losses).

2.14 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivable and available-for-sale. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determine the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current
assets.

(b) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than twelve months after the
balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group’s loans and receivables comprise “trade

and other receivables”, “cash and cash equivalents” and
“restricted cash” in the balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mE MR (&)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continveq)

2.14 Financial assets (Continued)
(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless management intends to dispose of
the investment within twelve months of the balance sheet
date.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss” category are presented
in the consolidated income statement within other income or
other and general expenses, in the period in which they arise.
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement as
part of other income when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in a
foreign currency and classified as available-for-sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in
amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. The translation differences on monetary
securities are recognised in the consolidated income statement;
translation differences on non-monetary securities are recognised
in equity. Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FREM BRI (&)

FESTTERBE )
2QI4EREE #7)

2  Summary of significant accounting policies (continves) 2
2.14 Financial assets (Continued)

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised
in equity are included in the consolidated income statement as
other income or other and general expenses.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of other income. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of other income which
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

For the purposes of assessing the fair value of unlisted securities,
the Group established fair value by using valuation techniques.
These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
reference to other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models, making
maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on
entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as
available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is considered as an indicator
that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence exists
for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in the consolidated income statement — is
removed from equity and recognised in the consolidated income
statement. Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated
income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through
the consolidated income statement.

2.15 Derivative financial instrument

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value at each balance sheet date. The
change in the fair value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continveq)

2.16 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. The cost of finished goods comprises raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

2.17 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables, including deposit paid for a property
development project, are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables is established when
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are
considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The
amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
amount of the provision is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against other expenses in the consolidated income statement.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to other income in the consolidated income statement.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
income statement over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

HKC (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2010

2

FESTTERBE )
216178

FERKANER] Z IR 5E 2 REET
AR o BADASTHESE HHUARERE © B
ZRABERMH - BEEST - it
BEERARBBEEELT R (K&
EREEENFE)  ERITE%EE
A - AJERFERERRERFB
R ZEFTHEERER ZZ2EHE
A -

2.17FEWBRFR & H fih FEUR TR

FEM BRI A FE YR - BRI
RIEBZEMNERE AT E

R B AB BRI SRR IR SRR
SORBREIBE R ERE - BURRK
REM YR 2 RERFER HREE
BREXRAREERBEZEERZRE
BRI Bl FT A SRR RER o REBA
HIREABREE - 18 AR E K
ETHKER  ABRHSERERS
AR REURFORETR - Bz
BEREEREERGARAADRE
ZHRERRERNEERAE) 22
B BMBEENRAEaR TR
BRI m B - SRR SR
MmARRNEMFE SR - BT E M
ZeREHREOR R AGSSBE
R ZEHAYA -

2.181E 5K

ERVFRAFEHREEERSK
REHER - fERERIREIH AT
Bk IS FOR(HIRR R ZA) SR
BEEMERINMERARNAER
MEERFARBRRATER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2  Summary of significant accounting policies (continve)

2.18 Borrowings (Continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

2.19 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. Other
borrowing costs are expensed.

2.20 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities
on the balance sheet.

2.21 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

222 Trade payables
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.23 Financial liability at fair value through profit or
loss
Financial liability at fair value through profit or loss is financial
liability held for trading. A financial liability is classified in this
category as designated by the Group upon initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continveq)

2.23 Financial liability at fair value through profit or

loss (Continued)

Gain or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial liability at fair value through profit or loss” category are
presented in the consolidated income statement in the period in
which they arise.

2.24 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the Group’s subsidiaries and
associated companies and jointly controlled entities operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries, associated companies and jointly
controlled entities, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continved)
225 Employee benefits

@

(®)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the balance sheet date. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
(“MPF”) and employee pension schemes established by
municipal government in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”) for the eligible employees in Hong Kong and the
PRC respectively.

The Group’s and the employees’ contributions to the MPF
comply with the related statutory requirements. The Group
has no further payments obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The Group’s contributions to the MPF are
expensed as incurred and are not reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave MPF prior to
vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or
a reduction in the future payments is available. The assets
of MPF are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

The Group’s contribution to the employee pension
schemes in the PRC is at a percentage in compliance with
the requirements of respective municipal governments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AN
=8

2

BRI M ()

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.25 Employee benefits (continued)

(c) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan in which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments of
the Group. The fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted, excluding the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions which are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to become
exercisable. At each balance sheet date, the entity revises
its estimates of the number of options that are expected
to become exercisable. It recognises the impact of the
revision of original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
income statement, and a corresponding adjustment to
equity over the remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are exercised.

2.26 Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration and the resurfacing and
maintenance cost are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated. Where
the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, for example
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised
as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

HKC (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2010

2

FESTTEERBE )
2.25EEER @)

© LR IEIREN

AEEREABRESE - UK
PIERB 2518 - Bt - T2
B & B WEURE (AR £ M %
ATAZRE - BIESRMUR
B R E Y AT EER
BRI o BREBHA L
BEBEDH2ERBFHERES
AFPEEE  ERTEHITT
AT 2 IR N B B - &5t
AETISME > BB &M o
SEER - ARSREYES
B T UAT{E 2 BE IR 2 B P E
2ffiEt  YEGABRERER
(BT R GETFREE 2 (M
B) RHETHRBHREERE
HARETE -

B WIBE MR E R E BT
R PRI TE I A s
BB (H1E) BB (E o

2.26%45E

EASERCHAECEHEMELARA
HERIMERME REFIEFTER
HERAENEE - WAL S
SHEBESREE - ASERRRBIREN
RE# RRERABYE - HAKER
HIR IR A BN - Pl R RR
BREHLEN  RIeESE A REN
ZIERN N ER BB EE °

WEZHEELUEE SZEERAE
BRI ERREEREEHE R
IR - AMERBEEHEEEA I8
T Z FTREIEAE - TRAERRIE S



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FREM BRI (&)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies continvesy 2 FEEESFTBERE )
2.2684E #)

2.26 Provisions (continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

2.27 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods, properties and services in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net
of business tax and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities as described below. The amount
of revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved. The Group
bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration
the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of
each arrangement.

(i) Revenues from infrastructure and alternative energy are
generated from water supply, electricity supply and the toll
road. They are recognised based on the following:

(@  Revenue arising from water supply is recognised
based on water supplied as recorded by meters
read during the year.

(b)  Revenue arising from electricity supply is recognised
when electricity is supplied to the provincial grid
companies.

(c)  Revenue arising from toll road is recognised when
services are rendered.

(i) Rental income from investment properties is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the terms of the respective leases.

(i)  Revenue from individual construction contracts is
recognised under the percentage of completion method.

(iv)  Sales of food and beverages are recognised in the income
statement at the point of sale to customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mE KRR (&)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continveq)

2.27 Revenue recognition (Continued)

V)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Revenue from sales of properties held for sale is
recognised upon completion of the sale and purchase
agreements or the issue of an occupation permit, by the
relevant government authorities, whichever is the later.
Deposits and instalments received on properties sold
prior to the date of revenue recognition are included in the
balance sheet under “trade and other payables”.

Revenue from provision of software development services is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Property management fee income is recognised when the
services are rendered.

2.28 Leases

@

(b)

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the
lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a
constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges,
are included in liabilities. The finance charges are charged
to the income statement over the lease periods so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the less or are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continved)
229 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or
the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a change
in the probability of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

2.30 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved.
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3 Financial risk management 3 WIEERERERE
3.1 Bk EZE

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk,
commodity price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, cash and bank balances, derivative
financial instrument, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, available-for-sale financial assets, trade and other payables
and bank loans. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes.

It is the policy of the Group not to enter into derivative
transactions for speculative purposes. The derivatives held are
not for speculative purpose and cannot be traded in the market.
They are part of an embedded investment rights to investment
assets and are not exposed to market risk (including commodity
price risk) since the gains and losses on the derivatives are offset
by the losses and gains on the underlying assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e SRR MEE (E)

3

Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continueq)
The Group’s Board of Directors focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance. The Board of Directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

(@ Market risk

()

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and
the Mainland China. Entities within the Group are
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and monetary assets and
liabilities that are denominated in a currency that is
not the entity’s functional currency.

The Group currently does not have any foreign
currency hedging activities. However, the
management of the Group monitors the foreign
exchange exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

If Renminbi had strengthened/weakened by 5%
against the Hong Kong dollars with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s loss before income tax
would have been HK$23.0 million higher/lower (2009:
the Group’s profit before income tax would have
been HK$32.5 million lower/higher).

Price risk

In prior years, the Group was exposed to price risk
in relation to its investment in a fund classified by
the Group on the consolidated balance sheet as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
The investment fund was disposed of in 2010 and
the Group’s exposure to price risk is minimal.

As at 31 December 2009, if the price of the
investment fund held by the Group had increased/
decreased by 5%, the Group’s profit before income
tax would have increased/decreased by US$0.4
million (equivalent to approximately HK$3.1 million).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Commodity price risk

The Group’s exposure to commodity price risk
relates primarily to the cost of building materials
which are influenced by supply and demand
conditions. The Group historically has not entered
into any commodity derivative instruments to hedge
the exposure. Management will monitor such risk
and consider hedging significant commodity price
risk exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from bank
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
due to fluctuation of the prevailing market interest
rate. The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially dependent of changes in market
interest rates.

The Group does not use any derivative contracts to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However,
management will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposures should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2010, if the interest rate had
increased/decreased 100 basis points with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s loss before
income tax would have increased/decreased by
HK$33.1 million (2009: the Group’s profit before
income tax would have been decreased/increased
by HK$29.3 million).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mE KRR (&)

3  Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk
The Group is exposed to credit risk in its restricted
cash, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables.

The carrying amount of restricted cash, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other receivables, represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets.

To manage the credit risk associated with restricted cash
and cash and cash equivalents, most of the deposits are
mainly placed with certain state-owned banks in the PRC
which are high-credit quality financial institutions and banks
with high credit rankings in Hong Kong.

To manage the credit risk associated with trade and other
receivables and deposits paid for a property development
project, the Group adopts risk control to assess the credit
quality of the customers and debtors, taking into account
their financial positions and past experience.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect
to trade receivables from third party customers as the
customer bases are widely dispersed in different sectors
and industries.

In addition, the Group and the Company monitor the
exposure to credit risk in respect of the financial assistance
provided to subsidiaries, associated companies and jointly
controlled entities through exercising control and significant
influence over their financial and operating policy decisions
and reviewing their financial positions on a regular basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AT RAR M ()

Financial risk management (continued) 3 EJJ KREREE )
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 2y SN PSENE
(c) Liquidity risk (c) TEENE LR
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its nBEeRERANEEREE
current obligations when they fall due. The Group measures TEEBAIHREFEZER o &
and monitors its liquidity through the maintenance of SEpEREEE  BfE - BEX
prudent ratios regarding the liquidity structure of the overall MAEEZ RBE &4 %i@
assets, liabilities, loans and commitments of the Group. HHEELRFERERER
The Group also maintains a conservative level of liquid PED AKETAEFTHE
assets to ensure the availability of sufficient cash flows to EREREKT - UEREEGER
mest any unexpected and material cash requirements in WIESREEN A EEBHE
the course of ordinary business. fAIREETER 2 ERREHK ©
The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company’s TRAMAEE KA R R B
contractual maturity for their financial liabilities. The BEZALOEEH - Ti‘%ﬁﬁg
amounts disclosed in the table have been drawn up with ZHEDZREREERARD
reference to the undiscounted cash flows of the financial AR &=FH ,Hﬂﬂﬂ%i%fafz
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group REGARESRERE -
and the Company can be required to pay.
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—-FR  -EZmE —2EF  RENE @it
HK$ Milion ~ HK$ Milion ~ HK$ Milion ~ HK$ Milion ~ HKS Million
BEAL BEAT AEAT  ASAT  BEATL
Group pin-4E]|
At 31 December 2010 R-E-Z#
+ZA=t-H
Bank borrowings with callable terms ~ ELR&R @ ANE B 16T 2 B 1T
figak 206.1 - - - 206.1
Bank borrowings and other loans RITETREMET 740.0 4116 1,126.1 1,764.0 4,047
Finance lease liabilties mEREaE 108 1.1 35.3 714 128.3
Trade and other payables RS e ARE 902.0 - - - 902.0
Other non-current payables HIEREREN 264.9 - 59.0 3239
Liabiliies of disposal group classified ~ #EFER R EAE
as held for sale HafE 295.6 - - - 295.6
At 31 December 2009 RZBERE
+=A=1-~H
Bank borrowings and other loans {7 REMEHK 636.6 545.1 1,172.3 23959 4,7499
Finance lease liabilities HEHERRE 10.0 10.3 32.7 79.3 132.3
Amount due to a shareholder BN —2RR A 374.8 - - - 3748
Trade and other payables AN & 1,033.7 - 1,033.7
Other non-current payables HIERERENT - - 266.3 59.4 325.7
BEARER (EBR) ERQF ¢ —TTFF®H



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mE KRR (&)

3 Financial risk management (continueq) 3 EJJ BRERERE )
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) B Rk R E )
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) BN DR ()
Between Between
Less than 1and 2and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—FR —-EmE C"ERfE  AEfNLE #st
HK$ Milion ~ HK$ Milion ~ HK$ Milion ~ HK$ Milion  HK$ Million
BEATL BEAT AEAT RASAT  BEARL
Company NG|
At 31 December 2010 R-B-F&
+=A=t+-A
Other payables Hn IR 10.3 - - - 10.3
At 31 December 2009 RZBZNE
+:HE+—H
Amount due to a shareholder BN —R R 374.8 - - - 374.8
Other payables BN 62.5 - - - 62.5
With regard to the bank borrowings with callable terms, the F%E’\\‘Elﬁf iR A ER R R
maturity with reference to the schedule of repayments set TER  EREGERBETRH
out in the respective loan agreements is as follows: ‘i?;%'ﬂ R RET D ERNE A
LU
Between Between
Less than 1and 2and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—FR —EWE CZ2RF¥  AFME H)
HK$ Milion ~ HK$ Milion ~ HK$ Milion ~ HK$ Milion ~ HKS Million
BEATL BEAT AEAT RASAT  BEARL
Group K&EE
At 31 December 2010 RZB-ZF
+ZA=1-H
Bank borrowings with callable terms  EBER BAE R 155 2 3R1T
fiEk 180 149.8 105 38.2 2165
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Financial risk management (continued)
3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, raise new
debt financing issue new shares, share options and warrants or
conduct share buy-backs.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing its gearing
ratio and cash flows requirements, taking into account its future
financial obligations and commitments for this purpose. The
Group defines gearing ratio as net debt divided by total equity.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less loans from non-
controlling shareholders (including current and non-current
borrowings shown in the consolidated financial statements) less
cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash. Total equity is as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2010 and 2009 were as
follows:
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Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEAT
Current borrowings mENfE R 739.8 466.2
Non-current borrowings IEREIE X 2,621.7 2,945.9
Amount due to a shareholder FER— B FKRIA - 362.1
Total borrowings (excluding loans from BB (e IEIHER R E )
non-controlling shareholders) 3,361.5 3,774.2
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and B BERIREEEBYMAK
restricted cash RS S (2,223.9) (2,519.0)
Net debt position BEFEEN 1,137.6 1,255.2
Total equity RS 4ATE 13,644.9 13,403.9
Gearing ratio BEEREE 8.3% 9.4%
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3 Financial risk management (continueq) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

= Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that
are measured at fair value at 31 December 2010.

IR )

3.3 A EMLE
TRERGEEERATEIES S
BMIAETHN - FRAZIIEEN
T

- BABBHEERREN LR
Mz HRE(CKRERAER) (F1
AR

—  REBEIRFAZREAINTER
(AMEBER) MR (AEBE
RELR)BREEXABHF
BAIRE (F28) -

—  AHRAEREMSHE (BT
BEMBRARB)ZEEXA
EHRAIRR (E3R) -

TREIAREER —T—ZTF+ _F=+—
HRAFEFEZEERAE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE1ER EPE E3R #E
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HKS$ Million
BEBT BEBT BEBT BEBT
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets Al HE S RIEE - 7.8 23.5 31.3
Financial assets at fair value BATEREERIIEZ
through profit or loss SREE 0.3 - 13.3 13.6
Total assets BEMAE 0.3 7.8 36.8 44.9
Liabilities =i
Derivative liability TTHETAEE = 75.5 - 75.5
Financial liabilities at fair value AT EEERRTIRS
through profit or loss THaf - - 264.9 264.9
Total liabilities BfERE - 75.5 264.9 340.4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3 Financial risk management (continueq) 3 BXEREE

3.3 A {EMEt@
TREIR-EEAF+-A=1—
BRATEN R AEEEE -

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
The following table presents the Group’s assets that are
measured at fair value at 31 December 2009.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B B2 B3R 4z
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEAT BEBET BEET
Assets BE
Available-for-sale financial assets Al ESRIEE 5.0 22.2 27.2
Financial assets at fair value BATEEBERIIEZ
through profit or loss SREE 62.4 12.7 75.2
Total assets EEHAE 67.4 34.9 102.4
Liabilities af&
Financial liabilities at fair BRTEEERRIRS
value through profit or loss ERERE - 266.3 266.3

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1. Instruments included in level
1 comprise primarily equity investments classified as trading
securities under financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market
data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

RERTSMERESRMTAZAFE
TIRER&E AR MISERTE -
e BNEs R ERF B BR BT - XHM -
&L - FARMAR - MERGHEEH
BESRE  ARZEBRRBRER
REBRANFEEET2TERS B
MIZARRER - AEBAFSRE
EMAMSRESBRZEAE - it
STAEHAZIR  ZTEBEIE
REBATFERBERIIEZEREE
ATRHEHFZBARE -

AEEEREMSEEESRTAZAY
BNHRAGEELEE - SRERSH
BRmS BT RIS IKEE R
RE A - WWERETNEREER
AEEmSEE - MAAFTE—AT
B2 RFEMFERBAZEEE
= AETASIAZE2R -

BEER (ER) ARAE o —T-THEER

109



110

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3

r e IR AR R ()

Financial risk management (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments
include:

Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the
present value of the estimated future cash flows based on
observable yield curves.

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined using forward exchange rates at the balance
sheet date, with the resulting value discounted back to
present value.

The fair value of derivative liabilities is determined using
Binominal model.

Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis,
are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments
for the year ended 31 December 2010.

Available
-for-sale

3

Financial

at fair value

BIiE R SR )

N EGET )

ik —{E sk % (B 8 A8 A B IR 1B
ABRTISHIEHYE - SETASH
AZFE3M o

AREEmTAERHEZRERE
BB

e HEUTARBMEHRERR
HEHE -

. %‘Jﬁﬁﬁﬁé\%’ﬂzfaﬂ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁf
BRI R AR - AR
I/@ui//méfﬁﬁg ;%; °

s EHIEHESHNZIAFER
RERZEHREXRETF - E
EZEEMREBE -

« RA-EXBVETHEIA
2 AT -

. EfpHi - PIMFRRSRE
D7 - BIABEHTEBIA
2 AT

TEREIEHEE_ZT—ZFTF+_A
=t+—HIEFEZFEIRTALES -

Financial
assets liabilities at
fair value

financial through profit through profit

assets or loss or loss Total
BATEE RAVEE
AHHE BERIIEZ2 BERIERZ
SRIEE SREE = =R st
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT BEAT BEBTT BEBTT
Opening balance FEEH 22.2 12.7 (266.3) (231.4)
Net gain recognised in equity RIERIER 2 WS F5E 1.3 0.6 1.4 3.3
Closing balance HiR 48R 23.5 13.3 (264.9) (228.1)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

(a)

Valuation of investment properties/recoverable
amount of prepaid land lease payments

The fair value of each investment property, and the recoverable
amount of prepaid land lease payments for which there
impairment indicators, are individually determined at each
balance sheet date by an independent value based on a market
value assessment. Knight Frank was engaged to carry out the
independent valuation of the Group’s investment property and
prepaid land lease payments portfolio as at 31 December 2010.
This valuation was carried out in accordance with the Valuation
Standards on Properties of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
which defines market value as “the estimated amount for which
a property should exchange on the date of valuation between a
willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s-length transaction
after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted
knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion”.

Knight Frank has derived the valuation of the Group’s property
portfolio by capitalising the rental income derived from existing
tenancies with due provision for reversionary income potential
and where appropriate, by reference to market comparable
transactions. The assumptions are based on market conditions
existing at the balance sheet date.

For the prepaid land lease payments, management determined
the recoverable amount based on the valuation report prepared
by Knight Frank. Knight Frank has adopted a direct comparison
approach whenever market comparable transactions are
available and assumed sale of the interests with the benefit of
vacant possession.

4

AP RAR M ()
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stz @t EE D RERNERERA
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i o
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QIEACE/C Ay
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ERERMET (&)

4  Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continveq)

(@)

Valuation of investment properties/recoverable
amount of prepaid land lease payments
(Continued)

Management has reviewed the Knight Frank valuation and
compared it with its own assumptions, with reference to
comparable sales transaction data where such information is
available, and has concluded that the Knight Frank valuation
of the Group’s investment portfolio and prepaid land lease
payments is reasonable.

If the valuation of the investment properties (included investment
properties classified as assets held for sale) and recoverable
amount of the prepaid land lease payments had been 10%
higher or lower than the value stated on the valuation report, the
fair value adjustment and reversal of impairment losses for the
year arising from the Group’s investment properties and prepaid
land lease payments, in aggregate, would have been increased
by HK$878.9 million (2009: HK$855.7million) or decreased by
HK$1,010.3 million (2009: HK$987.2million).

Estimated impairment of concession right —
toll road

The Group tests annually whether intangible assets have suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy. The
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management.

The unit prices used for the analysis are determined by
management by reference to the agreements approved by the
government authorities. The weighted average growth rates used
are consistent with the forecasts expected in the industry. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant segments.

If the discount rate used in the value-in-use calculation had
been 10% higher or lower than management’s estimates at 31
December 2010, the reversal of impairment losses for the year
arising from the Group’s concession right (toll road) would have
been decreased by HK$50.7 million (2009: HK$119.8 million) or
increased by HK$294.8 million (2009: HK$207.4 million).

HKC (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2010
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4  Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continveq)

(©)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill is subject to any
impairment losses, in accordance with the accounting policy.
The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units with goodwill
being allocated have been determined based on the higher of fair
value less cost to sell and value-in-use calculations.

Estimated impairment of plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are reviewed by management for
impairment losses whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use of the plant and equipment. Management
makes judgements on whether such events or changes
in circumstances have occurred, and makes estimates in
determining the recoverable amount. In the situation where
the value in use of plant and equipment cannot be assessed
due to the uncertainties of the operation model in the future,
management has assessed the respective recoverable amount
solely based on the fair value less costs to sell. Provision is made
when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amounts may not be recovered.

If the recoverable amount of the plant and equipment had been
10% higher or lower than management’s estimates, the reversal
of impairment losses for the year arising from the Group’s plant
and equipment would have been increased by HK$59.5 million
(2009: HK$64.4 million) or remained changed (2009: remained
unchanged).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in the Mainland China.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determined is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for potential
tax exposures based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will affect the income tax and deferred tax provision in the period
in which such determination is made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ERERMET (&)

4  Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continveq)

(f) Fair value of derivatives, financial assets/
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
and other financial instruments
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The
Group uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at each balance sheet date. The Group uses discounted
cash flow analysis for various available-for-sale financial assets
that were not traded in active markets.

(9) Revenue recognition
The Group uses the percentage-of-completion method in
accounting for its fixed-price contracts to deliver construction
services. The use of the percentage-of-completion method
requires the Group to estimate the services performed to date as
a proportion of the total services to be performed.

(h) Determination of fair value of share-based

compensation

The Group uses the Binomial Model to determine the fair value of
share options issued during the year. Under this model, the value
of the share options is subject to a number of assumptions such
as the risk-free interest rate, the expected life of the options and
historical volatility based on annualised volatility of the closing
price of the share. Therefore the value may be subjective and
would change should any of the assumptions change.

() Allowances for bad and doubtful debts
The policy for allowance for bad and doubtful debts of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis
of receivables and management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer.

() Fair value of financial and equity instruments
Where the fair value of equity instruments or financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
derived from active markets, they are determined using valuation
techniques including the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
reference to other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing model and share
prices of the Company. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible. A degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values.

5 Segment information

Segment information disclosed in the annual report has been prepared
in a manner consistent with the information used by the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of assessing
segment performance and allocating resources between segments.
In this regard, the Group is organised into the following segments:
Properties under development (for sale or lease upon completion of
construction work), Property investment and leasing, Infrastructure,
Alternative energy, Construction, Hotel and catering services and Other
operations.

HKC (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2010
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Segment information (continued)

The Group’s most senior executive management assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on operating profit/(loss)
after interest income and expenses, taxation and share of profits/(losses)
of associated companies and jointly controlled entities. Corporate
expenses mainly include the employee expenses of the head office,
interest income and expenses arising from the holding companies and
other administrative expenses of the head office.

The Group’s segment assets exclude financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, available-for-sale financial assets as well as
derivative financial instruments which are managed on a central basis.
These are part of the reconciliation to total balance sheet assets.
Corporate assets mainly include the cash at bank, property, plant and
equipment and other receivables held by the head office. The assets of
each reportable segment comprise the inter-segment receivables.

Sales between segments are carried out on terms equivalent to those
that prevail in arm’s length transactions. The revenue from external

AP RAR M ()
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parties reported to management is measured in a manner consistent BIREIEmRMAE Bz ANGE - 9
with that in the consolidated income statement. Total segment revenue W BB E AR KRB B X8
also represents the Group’s turnover.
The segment information for the reportable segments for the years HEZ ?ﬁ& EENF+ZA=1T—
ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 is as follows: =] JJ:&J;—I WAz HEERAT
Properties under development
BRI
Shanghai Property Hotel and Total
and investment Alternative catering Other  reportable
Zhejiang  Shenyang Tianjin ~ Otherarea  and leasing Infrastructure energy  Construction services  operations  segments
NERE EER 125
EERIL &5 P AihE Ri& g BfaR BE  HREE EfH e
HKS Milion ~ HKSMilion ~ HKSMillion ~ HKSMillion ~ HK$Million ~ HK$Million ~ HK$Million ~ HKSMillion ~ HKS Million  HKS Million  HKS Million
BEAT BEET BEET BERT BERT BERT BERR BERR BERR BERR BEER
Yearended 31 December 2010 HZ-Z-3E&
TZAZT-BLEE
Revenue from extemal customers — REJMRZP 2Mi& 60.1 - - - 257.2 68.6 51.0 184 376 6.2 4991
Inter-segment revenue PHEkE = = = = 10 = = 21 = = 2841
Total revenue bt 604 - - - 282 636 51.0 105 376 62 5222
Operating (loss)/profit BE (58 /&7 (2189) 283 26.8) 69 2849 203 48 (624) 8.7 (315 (1132)
Finance income 7T N 15 18 27 16 06 - - 08 90
Finance costs BERA (17.9) - - - (48.7) 1) (254) - (15.) (89 (187.0)
Share of profts less losses of BT RNAEE
associated companies - - - - 61.6 - 282 - - 0.1 89.9
Share of profits less losses of jointly  [EEAZ A AIEFIFEE
controlled entlties (16.0) - - - - - - - - 11 (149
(Loss)/profit before income tax ~ FfEREA (§5i2) /6T (250.) (265) (239) (69) 2994 (508) 76 (624) (644) @77 (2162)
Income tax credit/expense) figtES /() 564 12 49 - (403) - 04 33 - 09 178
(Loss)/profitfor the year AEE (5B &R (194.2) 253 (190) 69 2501 (508) 80 (50.1) (64.4) 368) (1984)
Depreciation & 23 (19 07 = (1) @) 21) 30) 83) 30) 634)
Amortsation B (0.9 (142) (19.4) (31) - 8 (04) - - (1.0 (46.1)
Fair value adjustments on investment &4 #1% A F{E:3%
properties (225.4) (9 - 5 1314 5 5 5 5 S 989)
(Provision for)reversal of impairment  EEE(ElE) /&Ll
losses = = = s 1.1 . . 05) (339 (48 (380)
EBER (BR) BRAR ¢ —T—TFFHR

115



116

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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5 Segment information (continved)

Properties under development

RO
Shangha Property Hotel and Total
and investment Aftemative catering Other ~ reportable
Zhejlang Shenyang Tenjn ~ Otherarea  andleasng  Infrastructure energy  Construction services  operations segments
NERE BER CE=
HERAIT &5 RE EftHE K& £ BRER BE HRBRE  EtER 5PE%
HKSMilion  HKSMilion  HKSMiion  HKSMiion  HKSMiion  HKSMiion  HKSMilion  HKSMilion  HKSMilion  HKSMilion  HKS Milion
BEAT BEAT BERT BE#T BE#T BE#T BE#T BE#T BEAT BEAT BEAT
Yearended 31 December 2009~ HZ-ETNE
tzA=t-ALsR
Revenue from extemal customers —~ RESMAZF 2 = - - - 1772 539 536 325 34 %17 3780
Inter-segment revenue ARk - - - - 07 - 855 - 8.2
Total revenue fhesatd = = = - 1779 539 536 1180 3.1 5.7 4642
Operating (loss)/profit T (5E) /&7 973.7 980 258 %3 2314 38 79 44 (27.9) (64.1) 15184
Finance income BRIA 15 17 15 - 09 08 0.1 - 0.1 04 70
Finance costs BERNA (6.0) - - - (49.0) (732) (302) - (10.1) (115) (180.0)
Share of profits less losses of TR AR RER
associated companies - - - - 484 - 89 - - 03 42
Share of profits less losses of jointly  [EEAZAAIEFIFHER
controlled entlties 8015 - - - - - - - - 94 8109
(Loss)/profit before income tax ~ F{EEiAI (B518) /%A 1,707 97 267.3 253 217 (68.6) (26.1) 44 (37.9) (66.1) 22005
Income tax credt/{expense) Filghiie/ (k) (2346) (118) (123 - (158) - - - - 05 (3340)
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE (BB)/ &R 15361 87.9 1950 23 2159 (688) 26.) 41 (375 (658) 18665
Depreciation il ] (19 (17 07 - (1) (209 (30.7) 27 78) 2) (70.1)
Amortisation & - (131) (429 28 - 7.0 29 - - 21) (708)
Fair value adjustments on investment &£ AT(ERR
properties 9384 472 - - 998 - - - - - 1,085.4
(Provision forreversal of impaiment  EEB(%f) /&R
losses 5.7 733 3163 16.0 (08) (02 - (95) (6.7) (46.1) 4030
Properties under development
R
Shanghai Property Hotel and Total
and investment Attenative catering Other  reportable
Zhejiang  Shenyang Tianjin ~ Otherarea  andleasing Infrastructure energy  Construction services  operations  segments
IES EER 2§
LRI 5 & Eft#E RHEE 2B ERER BE  HREE  EmEE HRER
HKSMilion  HKSMilion  HKSMiion  HKSMiion  HKSMiion  HKSMiion  HKSMillon  HKSMilion  HKSMilion  HKSMilion  HKS Milion
BEAT  BEAT  BEAT  BEAT  BEER  BEER  BEER  BEER  BEER  BEER  BEER
As at 31 December 2010 R=Z-BE+ZA=1-A
Total assets BELE 6,143.2 14518 30206 2580 5,556.5 14793 22118 1,976.4 7029 3.1 22,895.6
Total assets includ: BEGERE:
Interests in associated companies  REE AT 2185 - - - - 2886 - 7130 - 588.6 (6.8) 1,583.6
Interests in jointly controlled entites ~ RAEAT]Z 1R 1,9164 - - - - - - - - 0.1 1,9165
As at 31 December 2009 REBENETZA=T-H
Total assets EElE 6,108.1 1,4208 28129 1328 51638 14498 2,1400 18170 695.3 543 21,7948
Total assets include: EEEEaE:
Interests in associated companies  REE AT ZfER - - - - 3064 - 656.2 - 5649 (65) 15209
Interests in ointly controlled entities F\\é%NZ%éTﬂ 1,866.2 = = = = = = - - (14 18548
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBIRRME(E)

Segment information (continueq) 5 DEHER
A reconciliation of (loss)/profit for the year of reportable segments to A 2HHP 2 FE(EEB),SEF EAEEF
(loss)/profit for the year of the Group is provided as follows: FE(E518), (S FS RN T
2010 2009
—E-2F ZEENF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BAEAT
(Loss)/profit for the year of reportable segments 7] 2%/ 204 E (E518) % A (198.4) 1,866.5
Unallocated amounts: KOS
Corporate expenses EMAE (88.9) (154.6)
Intra group elimination =B EPE (108.9) 9.7)
(Loss)/profit for the year of the Group REFFEE(EIR) T (396.2) 1,702.2
Reportable segments’ assets are reconciled to total assets as follows: AI2HHPEEMRE ELEBHIRNAT ¢
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BESAT
Total segment assets DEPE EAAEE 22,895.6 21,794.8
Head office assets B E R A E 1,151.8 1,523.0
Intra group elimination E BRI 5 (4,032.3) (3,416.4)
Derivative financial instrument PTESRTE 5.0 5.0
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE 31.3 27.2
Financial assets at fair value through ERAFEEERRIECEREE
profit or loss 13.6 75.2
Other unallocated amounts HivRDBEL &5 = 33.8
Total assets per consolidated balance sheet HEBEBBRIINEERTE 20,065.0 20,042.6
Analysis of revenue representing turnover by category: BB D 2 W AT
2010 2009
—E2-EF —ETNEF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT AEAT
Infrastructure Hig 68.6 53.9
Alternative energy BRER 51.0 68.7
Rental income A UWA 100.4 122.2
Contract revenue ol g 18.4 32.5
Sales proceeds from properties held for sale SR EHE MEATS IR 216.9 55.0
Catering services R BRTS 37.6 35.1
Others EHAh 6.2 10.6
499.1 378.0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ERERMET (&)

5 Segment information (continued) 3

Revenue from external customers in the Mainland China for the year
ended 31 December 2010 are HK$475.3 million (2009: HK$336.9
million) and the total of revenue from external customers from other
areas is HK$23.8 million (2009: HK$41.1 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2010, revenue of approximately
HK$51.0 million (2009: HK$53.6 million) derived from a single external
customer is attributable to the alternative energy business.

HEZTTF+-A=1T—HIEFE ' K
B B AN R 2 Was A475,300,000
Bt (ZZT T NF : 336,900,000 7T)
mAREEMENREE 2 RS BEA
28,800,000 7T (= ZZ N4 © 41,100,000
PBIL) ©

HE_ZT-TFE+-_A=+—HILFEE kK
B ¥ —INREF IR EE451,000,0007 70 (=
TEHE ¢ 53,600,000 7T ) JhIR B &AL
TREETS o

6 Other income 6 HlA
2010 2009
—E-EF —EENF
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEAT
Write back of provision for B LA = IR B
— impairment losses on trade receivables — FEYER R E & 1B = 1.3
— management fee for vacant units —MEEEEUERE
in properties - 65.6
— Mainland China business tax — FR B 3 A ZE R 6.9 -
Gain on the completion of liquidation PR ElERRTERK 2 W s
of subsidiaries - 24.3
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz - 7.2
Gain on deemed disposal of equity interest BIEH & — Bt A B IR AN FE RS 2
in an associated company Wzs - 5.7
Property management fee income YIHEEBEIA 11.4 14.5
Net exchange gain PE 5 W28 B 58 1.0 12.8
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - a8 REERE
plant and equipment 11.9 2.6
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair BRAFEERRRIERZ SR
value through profit or loss and derivative BERMETIEBEATE
liability — net Was — %8R 13.5 -
Others Hith 10.0 9.8
54.7 143.8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FRE BRI (&)

7  (Provision for)/reversal of impairment losses on 7 EEREEEEE) EE
assets
2010 2009
—E-EF —TThE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEAT
(Provision for)/reversal of impairment losses on SR &5 18 (145 [0l
— prepaid land lease payments, net — A LA EFOFRE = 465.2
— property, plant and equipment o ER Y G (0.3) -
— intangible assets — B EE (4.5) ©.8)
— goodwill —EmE (33.8) -
— other receivables — H fth FE IR (0.5 (9.6)
— trade receivables — ERBR X 0.8 (6.4)
— other —E At 0.3 (45.4)
(38.0) 403.0
8 Operating (loss)/profit 8 R (EE) EH

Operating (loss)/profit is arrived at after (charging)/crediting the following e (B18) 8RB (F0k) K 2 R 518
items: H:

2010 2009

—E-FF ZEThEF

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEET BAEAT

Employee benefit expenses (Note 11) EE/AMNFL (KfzE11) (154.8) (157.8)

Employee share option benefits (Note 11) & S BERRRER I (MisE11) 4.8 (28.1)
Amortisation B

— prepaid land lease payments (Note 17) —Taft i E K (HEE17) (40.8) 62.7)

— intangible assets (Note 19) —mPEE(MFE19) (7.5) (10.3)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #7% - #2828 & 2 @& E (Mf:E18)

(Note 18) (70.9) (78.3)
Cost of inventories FEKA (13.5) (40.4)
Cost of properties sold BEEMEKR (163.9) (56.1)
Direct operating expenses arising from investment 7] BtERFE S U A 2 18 B EEE 2

properties that generate rental income BEREEERY (2.9) ©.2)
Auditor’s remuneration — audit service IZERET BN — 1B AR TS (6.9) (4.8)
Operating lease payments ST E TR (12.8) (16.1)
Research and development expenses HERHEER - 0.3
Write down of inventories FEMR = (4.2)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ERERMET (&)

9 Finance income and costs 9 BIEWARBLE KA
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BESAT
Interest expenses: FEFAE
Bank loans wholly repayable within 5 years RITER - ARAFAEIEE (82.4) (86.5)
Bank loans not wholly repayable within 5 years ~ $R1TE R - HEARAFAE HER (117.8) (119.0)
Other loans wholly repayable within 5 years HiER - ERAFAZEEE (39.0) (3.8)
Other loans not wholly repayable within 5 years ~ Hh &7 - BERTFENZ ZHEE (10.5) (5.5)
(249.7) (214.8)
Less: capitalised in construction-in-progress & : fEiZ T2 EAR(LZH 241 31.3
Finance costs &R A (225.6) (183.5)
Finance income — interest income MBWA —RITERLZ
on bank deposits FEUA 18.9 11.1
Net finance costs RE Bk A F e (206.7) (172.4)
Note: The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed was between 5.94% M RAFERAERCZECERAZBRER
and 6.40% per annum during the year. REFF5.94%%E6.40% °

10 Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments 10 EBRSHEEEMS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a E=Me
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 EEEREE-ZT—ZTF+=A
December 2010 is set out below: =+—HIEFENMSIT
Employer’s
Salary contribution Share-based
and other Discretionary to pension compen-
Fees benefits bonuses scheme  Sub-total sation® Total
Name of director/ Bg/ I Bif&3E
ex-director AEZHS we  HER  BERL  2EZHR Mgt RbEEe ELEe

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Tién TiEn TiEn Ti#n TiEn TiEn TEx

OEl Tjie Goan LR - - - - - - -
LI Xueming 8 100.0 - - - 100.0 - 100.0
XU Zheng BRI 100.0 - - - 100.0 - 100.0
OEl Kang, Eric &l 175.0 9,175.0 1,560.0 24.0 10,934.0 157.2 11,091.2
CHANG Li Hsien, Leslig KB 58.3 2,800.0 5,800.0 8.0 8,666.3 1,154.7 9,821.0
WAN Man Yee @ B R 97.2 6,987.1 1,000.0 - 8,084.3 - 8,084.3
TANG Sau Wai, Tom @ B0 66.7 1,705.0 - 8.0 1,779.7 - 1,779.7
YEN Teresa BaH 100.0 - - - 100.0 - 100.0
WAN Ming Sun FHL 100.0 - - - 100.0 - 100.0
LIU Guolin 2IBIHk 100.0 - - - 100.0 - 100.0
FAN Yan Hok, Philip B 200.0 - - - 200.0 314.2 514.2
CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico Erz 200.0 - - - 200.0 314.2 514.2
CHENG Yuk Wo syl 200.0 - - - 200.0 314.2 514.2
Albert Thomas DAROSA, Junior ~ ZE$1E 200.0 - - - 200.0 3142 514.2

1,697.2 20,6671 8,360.0 400 30,7643 2,568.7 33,333.0
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10 Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

(Continued)

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31
December 2009 is set out below:

AN
=8

@ EE=EME@w

BEEEREE

PR ML ()

10 EZRSHREEENE »)

—EEAET-A

=t+—HIEFENMSHT -

Employer's
Salary contribution Share-based
and other Discretionary o pension compen-
Name of director/ex-director EEVEIE 2 Fees benefits bonuses scheme  Sub-total sation® Total
Hek RN
#e  HEbEN  BETL  ZEXER P RRES &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TR TATL TAL TR TATL TAL
OE! Tjie Goan o 100.0 - - - 100.0 - 100.0
LI Xueming ZE8H 100.0 - - - 100.0 = 100.0
XU Zheng BT 100.0 - - - 100.0 - 100.0
OEl Kang, Eric Efil 175.0 9,280.0 2,600.0 24.0 12,079.0 352.7 12,431.7
WAN Man Yee @ B ER 33 2,340.0 3,000.0 - 5,373.3 - 53733
TANG Sau Wai, Tom @ H<r{Ee 100.0 1,848.0 1,165.0 12.0 3,125.0 1,234.1 4,359.1
YEN Teresa i 100.0 - - - 100.0 - 100.0
WAN Ming Sun FHRW 100.0 - - - 100.0 - 100.0
LIU Guolin 2B 1000 - - - 100.0 - 1000
FAN Yan Hok, Philip BB 200.0 - - - 200.0 579.5 7795
CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico 23 200.0 - - - 200.0 579.5 779.5
CHENG Yuk Wo il 200.0 - - - 200.0 579.5 779.5
Albert Thomas DAROSA, Junior ~ Z&3liA 200.0 - - - 200.0 579.5 7795
TSANG Sai Chung, Kirk LR 118.1 4,915.6 - 17.5 5,061.2 9785 6,029.7
CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph BRI 118.1 42170 - 16.6 4,351.7 963.3 5,315.0
1,944.5 22,600.6 6,765.0 70.1 31,380.2 5,846.6 37,2268
EHRER (BR) ARAT o —T—TFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mE MR (&)

10 Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

(Continued)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
Notes:
1. Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie was appointed as an executive

director on 1 September 2010.

2. Mr. WAN Man Yee was appointed as an executive director on
4 September 2009 and resigned with effect from 20 December
2010.

8, Mr. TANG Sau Wai, Tom resigned as an executive director with

effect from 1 September 2010.

4. Mr. TSANG Sai Chung, Kirk and Mr. CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph
resigned as executive directors with effect from 4 September
2009.

5. The balance represented the estimated value of share options
granted to the directors under the share option schemes of the
Company and a subsidiary. The value of these share options is
measured according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-
based payment transactions and, in accordance with that policy,
includes adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous
years where grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to
vesting.

During the year, Mr. OEI Tjie Goan voluntarily waived annual
director’s fee of HK$100,000.

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include three (2009: five) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining two individuals (2009: Nil)
during the year are as follows:

10 EZRSHREEEMNE 2

(a)

(b)

BE=EME )
B 5E -

1. RUBEENR-ZT—ZTFANLA—H
BRERNITES -

2. BXEBELER-_TETAFNANA
EZITANTEERNR_T—TF
T A=+ HRBEIE -

3. BFEEER=_T-—TFNA—A
EEENITES -

4 BHBEERRENEEL-TT
NER AN B ERHEHITES -

5. HBRERBEARRK-—HHBEAR
ZBRREAANEERHEREL
AEtEE - ZEEREZEER
EAKERRONRAR S Z 5K
RETE - MIREZEER - EFEE
REOHMARERAT ARG S
AIE R BEFE R MELZ

B -

TR BERTEBMHAEFEES
#£100,000% 7T

EEMEHES AL

FR - AEBALREHFALRES
H(ZBENF BR)EFE ®EZ
MEER EX 252 HMRB « FA
BB TME(CTTASF - &) @5
ALZBEWT :

2010

—E-TF

HK$ Million

BEBT

Salary and other benefits e REMET 4.0
Discretionary bonus BIBTEAL 1.2
Share-based compensation HmEE 1.4
6.6
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A RAR M ()

11 Employee benefit expenses EERAFEX
2010 2009
—E-2F ZEENF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEAT
Wages, salaries and other benefits TITE - e kHAER (153.6) (156.1)
Employee share option benefits 12 B R ErE A 4.8 (28.1)
Pension costs — defined contribution plan RIRE AR — ERAHRGEE
(Note a) (Ff5Ea) (1.3) (1.8)
Write back of unused annual leave accrual AME B FREHEE B 0.1 0.1
Charged to income statement, net BB RNRIFE (150.0) (185.9)
Notes: Bi%E
(@  The Group operates the MPF scheme under the Hong Kong Mandatory @ AEERBEASRIEATESFHEIKAZ

Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement scheme administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employee’s relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$20,000. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately. The
Group’s contribution to the employee pension schemes in the PRC is at
a percentage in compliance with the requirements of respective municipal
governments.

Contributions totaling HK$0.1 million (2009: HK$0.2 million) were payable
under the MPF scheme at 31 December 2010.

MERY —HRESTE - BIREESE
BIEPIZIEZEE MR - EELFTEIR A
B ETEABTEZ EBEERRASEE -
BIERESTE - EXREEEHEER
EEHBABZS% AT EEHER : BF
A 2 #R A B LA20,000/8 7T 4 LR o 5t &)
HREERNEHENES - AEBRTEE
BRI SFTE 2 AR TYIR R & B TR
BMEZBDLIEL ©

4 #£100,0007% 7t (ZZ T N4 : 200,000
BT 2 ERBRBRESTERN =22
F+-A=+—BZff-

BRER (R) ARAR o —T—TFFRH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e SRR MEE (E)

12 Income tax credit/(expense)

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as the Group has
sufficient tax losses brought forward to offset taxable profit for the
year (2009: Nil). Mainland China income tax has been provided on the
estimated assessable profits of subsidiaries operating in the Mainland
China at rates ranging from 22% to 25% (2009: 20% to 25%).

Mainland China land appreciation tax is provided at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds of sale of properties less deductible expenditures (including
costs of land use rights and property development expenditures).

12 FrfEHiER /(i)

AR B R B SR AT R T S 18 AR S AR
FERERFEAN - M EREBFEHIED
BE(ZTTNE  |&) o EPIWifEFJ’T S A
12 BRTE AR B A A 4 P BB 1 B 2 AT FERR TR
HWA BN TF22% E25% 2 FHER(ZEE N,
& 20%ZE25% ) 1R B o

B At 1 IR (E R B I FHE R T F-30%
EB60%H 2 RER B - THAEIHE
VRSB ER MBS (B E
FRRERN A R ) B RFAST) -

2010 2009
—E-FF —TTNF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEBT
Current income tax BNERF1SH

Mainland China income tax FR B A M TSR (10.7) (1.1)
Over provision in prior years AR FE B = 0.5
(10.7) (0.6)

Mainland China land appreciation tax R B R 3 £ A Y
Provision for the year FRNEHE (14.4) -

Deferred income tax (Note 38) EIEFTS R (MI3E38)
Credited/(charged) to the income statement ~ RBza&at A/ (F1K) 42.9 (333.4)
17.8 (834.0)

Note:

Share of income tax expense of associated companies amounting to HK$10.8
million (2009: share of income tax expense of HK$10.4 million) and share of
income tax credit of jointly controlled entities amounting to HK$4.1 million
(2009: share of income tax expense of HK$267.2 million) are included in the
consolidated income statement as share of profits less losses of associated
companies and share of profits less losses of jointly controlled entities
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

12 Income tax credit/(expense) (continued)

The tax of the Group’s (loss)/profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate
applicable to (losses)/profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

A RAR M ()

12 FrisBiiEe, () @)

AEEASHAT(ER), 8 2 BUE - BT
AmETHBEmMERRNA % (EBER),
A BRI  EBRAT

2010 2009
—E-FF ZETNF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEATT
(Loss)/profit before income tax and share FriSFian (B518),m A LA K
of results of associated companies and BB E AR REENREE
jointly controlled entities (489.0) 1,181.1
Tax calculated at the domestic rates applicable 1zBBEER 2 &E1E, (&H)
to losses/(profits) in the respective countries B3 FR B N HH R 51 & 2 Fi 18 117.5 (281.7)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes A%~ £ (56.2) (69.4)
Income not subject to tax BERBUWA 20.4 58.0
Tax losses not recognised RIER 2 FIEEE (49.5) (41.4)
Mainland China land appreciation tax R A 3+ SR (E (14.4) -
Over provision in prior years BEFEBEERE = 0.5
Tax credit/(expense) HIEE R (X H) 17.8 (334.0)

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 24.0% (2009: 23.8%).

13 (Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company to the extent of HK$410.1
million, including provision for impairment losses on investment in and
amounts due from subsidiaries amounting to HK$64.0 million (2009:
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$777.6
million, including reversal of impairment losses on investment in and
amounts due from subsidiaries amounting HK$803.9 million).

IEFEEBHE R A24.0%( —ETNE ¢
23.8%) °

13 ARARRESZFTRAER
(E518), &

AARBREEZFAEAERGEERA
410,100,000 % JT R AN A 7 B 7 ] & &2
B BREAWNBARKERERKE A
A) 7B R (B & 18 7 564,000,000/ 7T (=
TTNGF KRR EERIEE AEN
& A1 777,600,000 7T+ B IEA M B A 7
& & T U B A B IR R (B 5 18 1| B
803,900,000/ 7T ) °

BEER (ER) ARAE o —T-THEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mE KRR (&)

14 (Loss)/earnings per share

(a)

Basic (a)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
(loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

14 gR(ER) B

EZZIN
SHREAR(BR), /B REBEAAF]
BR i E ARG (BR) & A
BRE T BT T B2 hAE D Bat
o

2010 2009
—E-TF —TTNF

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders AARRRESFE ARG

of the Company (HK$ Million) (B518),/ 5 (BB (293.8) 1,456.7
Weighted average number of ordinary shares B 21T & 8% 2 intE 192

in issue (Million) (88) 10,359.7 10,057.4*
Basic (loss)/earnings per share GRREAR(ER), BT

(HK cents per share) (FRAL) (2.8) 14.5

Diluted (b) #=

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares
including the share options and bonus warrants. A calculation
is made in order to determine the number of shares that could
have been acquired at fair value (determined as the average
market share price of the Company’s shares during the year)
based on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached
to outstanding share options and bonus warrants. The number
of shares calculated as above is compared with the number of
shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise of the
share options and bonus warrants.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FREM BRI (&)

14 (Loss)/earnings per share (contineq) 14 SR(E8),BR@
(b) Diluted (continued) (b) #E=)
2010 2009
—®2-2F -TTHE

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders 7R A BRI R E RSB AFE(S

of the Company (HK$ Million) (B18), /&8 (E&%Er) (293.8) 1,456.7
Effect of assumed conversion of convertible {55 — &M B A & ATE1T

preference shares issued by a subsidiary AREBEREER Bz FE

(HK$ Million) (B8%T) (3.3) -
(297.1) 1,456.7
Weighted average number of ordinary shares & 21T E 8% 2 HfE 192
in issue (Million) (B&) 10,359.7 10,057.4*
Adjustment for share options and B S N AT SR RS A 7 S
bonus warrants (Million) (B8) - 178.1
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 512 &k (E518),/ BF 2
for diluted (loss)/earnings per share (Million) E3@XINEFHE(EE) 10,359.7 10,235.5
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share SiEE(EE), &T)
(HK cents per share) (R (2.9) 14.2
Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2010 did BE_Z-ZF+_HA=1+—HLF
not assume the exercise of the share options and bonus warrants 3 Zlﬂﬁﬁﬁ%’gﬂglﬂfﬁj mzﬁ Al
of the Company and the share options, warrants, convertible 10 AT 158 B P A S AL 7 SR A R A I
note and subscription rights for convertible preference shares LR AR R u«uﬂﬂg@
of its listed subsidiary outstanding during the year since the AR & A AR R TR RAEE
exercise would have an anti-dilutive effect. For the year ended 31 RERCETE - BRBEBTERR
December 2009, diluted earnings per share did not assume the REBRE - BE_TTAF+ A
exercise of the share options of the Company outstanding during =T HLEFE  SREERTIRE
the year since the exercise would have an anti-dilutive effect. BREBARR R Z BMARITEBRERERN
BETE - AREHETHEEARES
RUFE o
* Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue for 2009 was * ZETNFEBETEBERZMNETE
adjusted for a bonus issue in 2010. HAYER T —TFHITAREL
15 Dividend 15 RE
The Board of Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for EEe fEakNEE_E—ZEFER_
the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009. NETZRA=+—RHILEFEZRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mE KRR (&)

16 Investment properties

16 REW=

Group

REE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNEF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BESAT
At 1 January Kn—H—H 6,944.3 2,827.4
Currency translation differences e s 288.6 3.5
Additions NE 15.7 14.0
Transfer from prepaid land lease payments BIE LA EREA - 2,916.9
Transfer from properties under development BERFYFEEA - 264.5

Transfer to assets of disposal group classified #EH EiEAHFENREANEE

as held for sale (Note 46) (B¥5+46) (1,009.9) -
Transfer to properties held for sale (Note a) I EEHE g 2 W (HiiFa) (134.4) (167.4)
Transfer from properties held for sale (Note b)  B{EHER G 2 WEEA (MiFb) 181.6 =
Fair value adjustments, net N EFARFERE (98.9) 1,085.4
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 6,187.0 6,944.3

Notes:

(@) Management changed its intention to sell the investment properties and
the change in use was evidenced by commencement of development.
The deemed cost of the properties held for sale transferred from
investment property is the fair value of the properties at the date of
change in use.

(b) Management intended to lease out certain properties initially classified as
“properties held for sale” in 2010.

(c) The valuations were based on independent assessments made by Knight
Frank. The valuation techniques adopted are described in the Note 4 to
the consolidated financial statements.

(d) At 31 December 2010, investment properties in the Mainland China of

HK$1,594.8 million (2009: HK$1,898.1 million) were pledged as securities
for the Group’s borrowings (Note 36).

(e) The Group’s interests in investment properties at their carrying values and

BAE

@ EEERZEZER  LEREVEKRFAS
BRISFEARANRE - AREMEE AR
BARBEHEMEZR AN BZEMERA
BNEERZAFE -

) R-ZE—ZF BEERLHEOTHES
[SELEME 2 S TmE -

©  HETIARTIFEBILFHE BELE - PIER
MHEBMERN AR MR 4 -

@ R-E—ZFF+-_A=+—H HERK
(B {8 1,594,800,000/8 L (Z T N4
1,898,100,000/8 7T ) 2 EWZX - BEEAR
N5 B P S SR 2 3R (BT 5E36) ©

@ AEEREREWEZ iR HREERE

the lease terms are analysed as follows: HADHTIAT -
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEBT
In Mainland China, held on: REABERHREFE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years NF10E50FE 2 HE 6,187.0 6,944.3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

17 Prepaid land lease payments 17

The Group’s interest in leasehold land and land use rights representing
prepaid operating lease payments and their net carrying values is
analysed as follows:

AT RAR M ()

R L tmEER

REBEPEE 30 N+ i R 2 iR TR
NEwBEER - EREFEDTAT

Group
REE
2010 2010 2009 2009
—T-BE  —B-TE _TTHF _TTNF
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEET BEAT BEAT
At 1 January, as previously reported A—H—H -
FIFERIPAZE 4R 3,403.3 5,969.7
Effect of the adoption of HKAS 17 PN BB SR E1758
(amendment) (BRIR) 22 (78.8) (80.7)
At 1 January, restated N—HA—H  &&5| 3,324.5 5,889.0
Currency translation differences EmE = 137.6 4.2
Additions NE 1.5 0.9
Transfer from deposit paid B MREEA 1.9 -
Transfer to properties held for sale  EHE{EHE R 2 W%
(Note 28) (Pt3E28) (79.4) (65.6)
Transfer to investment properties BHEREE - (77.5) (2,916.9) (2,982.5)
Disposals HE (32.8) =
Reversal of impairment losses B ETIE 2 [E - 494.0
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR - (16.4)
Amortisation L
— Capitalised in properties under —BREEFMEEARL
development (28.9) 2.0)
— Charged to income statement —BEBRRMG
(Note 8) (K¥7E8) (40.8) (69.7) (62.7) (64.7)
At 31 December wW+=—A=+—H 3,283.6 3,324.5
In Mainland China, held on: KBRS
Leases of over 50 years BiBS0F 2 HEH 1,299.9 1,266.8
Leases of between 10to 50 years M F-10E504E 2 2 EH] 1,983.7 2,057.7
3,283.6 3,324.5

Certain bank borrowings are secured by the Group’s prepaid land lease
payments with carrying values of HK$1,113.9 million (2009: HK$100.8
million) (Note 36).

ANEFBREET,113,900,000/8 T ( —EF S
£ : 100,800,000 7t ) 2 FE AT £ FA & 5
BIIF ARG E TR TE R (KI5ES6) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RIS RAR M ()

18 Property, plant and equipment

18 % - R KkfE

Group
A5E
Electric utiity ~ Water utility Other
Construction plant and plant and plant and Land and
in progress equipment equipment equipment buildings Total
EEMR kR  AtEER
ERIE R B RfE THRETF o
HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
At 1 January 2009 RZEENE-A-H
Cost as previously reported FWERAZ R A 160.3 660.9 269.0 288.0 2242 1,602.4
Effect of the adoption of HKAS 17 R R HEAE7
(amendment) RBIR) 2 %8 = - - - 839 839
Cost as restated HEF| 2P 1603 6609 2690 2880 3081 16863
Accumulated depreciation and FERFE R 25t
impairment as previously reported FERRE - (121.8) (58.3) (218.2) (106.7) (505.0)
Effect of the adoption of HKAS 17 BB e:ER$17
(amendment) FEIA) 22 = = = = (32 (32
Accumulated depreciation and SHTERRME
impairment, as restated K] - (121.8) (658.3) (218.2) (109.9) (608.2)
Net book amount, as restated REE - LE3 160.3 5391 2107 69.8 108.2 1,178.1
Year ended 31 December 2009 HE-ETNE+ZA
=+-RLEFE
Opening net book amount, as ENREHE - A%
previously reported AIFT2R 160.3 539.1 2107 69.8 175 1,007.4
Effect of the adoption of HKAS 17 BB e:ER$17
(amendment) FER) 22 = = = = 807 807
Opening net book amount, FRETE - L3
as restated 160.3 539.1 210.7 69.8 198.2 1,178.1
Currency translation differences ERBEZER 0.2 0.7 0.2 2.9) (19) (2.5)
Additions NE 321.8 0.1 0.1 6.7 338 332.5
Transfer to properties held for sale ENSERERANE - - = = (47 (47)
Disposals e = = = (0.7) (0.7) (14)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - = 0.2) - 0.2)
Depreciation e - (30.5) (19.9) (20.6) 9.2) (79.4)
Closing net book amount FRERFE 482.3 509.4 191.9 52.7 186.1 1,422.4
At 31 December 2009 RZBZRE
TZA=1-A
Cost as previously reported HMERFTZRZBA 482.3 661.9 269.5 288.2 2025 1,924.4
Effect of the adoption of HKAS 17 RmEBEERE7
(amendmen) K(EeTA) 278 = - - - 839 839
Cost as restated BB 7R 482.3 661.9 269.5 288.2 306.4 2,008.3
Accumulated depreciation and HERFE R 25t
impairment as previously reported FERRE - (152.5) (77.6) (235.5) (115.2) (580.8)
Effect of the adoption of HKAS 17 BB ST
(amendment) FEIA) 22 = = = = (.1) (6.1)
Accumulated depreciation and BEHZ ZHTER
impairment as restated B = (152.5) (77.6) (235.5) (120.3) (585.9)
Net book amount, as restated RE#E =5 482.3 509.4 1919 52.7 186.1 14224
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FREM BRI (&)

18 Property, plant and equipment (ontinueq) 18 W2 - WEBERFRE @)
Group
rEE
Electric utility ~ Water utility Other
Construction plant and plant and plant and Land and
in progress equipment equipment equipment buildings Total
BHR HkER  HiEER
EEIR B & B TiRET Lk

HK$ Milion ~ HKSMillion ~ HKS Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HKS Million
BEAR BEAR BEAR BEAR BEAR BEAR

Year ended 31 December 2010 HE-E-BF

+-A=t+-ALEE

Opening net book amount, EYRmFE

as previously reported HOFRIFTZR 482.3 509.4 191.9 52.7 107.3 1,343.6
Effect of the adoption of HKAS 17 SRMVE B & 31 EBIF175

(amendment) (IR 252 - - - - 788 788
Opening net book amount, restated ~ FAIEREFE + LS5 482.3 509.4 191.9 52.7 186.1 14224
Currency translation differences ERREER 20.3 2.7 75 14 39 53.8
Additions AE 16.2 0.6 - 5.4 - 22.2
Cost adjustments AR (22.5) - - - - (22.5)
Transfer from properties BIEHERE L

held for sale VIESZUN - - - - 18.3 18.3
Transfer to properties held for sale  BHEER{EHER Rz NE - - - - (11.8) (11.8)
Transfer to assets of disposal EHERAGEN

group classfied as held for REANEE

sale (Note 46) (izk46) - - - (0.8) = (0.8)
Disposals & - - = (1.0) - (1.0)
Depreciation & - (219 (194 (205) ©3) 71.)
Impairment losses AEBE - - - (0.3) = (0.3)
Closing net book amount EREETE 496.3 508.8 180.0 36.9 187.2 1,409.2

At 31 December 2010 RZZ-ZF
+=B=1+-H

Cost A 496.3 691.1 281.5 285.3 320.7 2,074.9
Accumulated depreciation and ZEMENRAE

impairment - (182.3) (101.5) (248.4) (133.9) (665.7)
Net book amount REFE 496.3 508.8 180.0 36.9 187.2 1,409.2

BRER (R) ARAR o —T-TFFH 131



132

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R RAR M ()

18 Property, plant and equipment (continueq) 18 W12 - HBERFHE =)

Depreciation expenses for property, plant and equipment of HK$0.2
million (2009: HK$1.1 million) have been capitalised in properties
under development and included as part of the additions. Depreciation
expenses of HK$70.9 million (2009: HK$78.3 million) have been
charged in operating (loss)/profit (Note 8).

Certain bank borrowings are secured by certain of the Group’s
properties, plant and equipment with carrying values of HK$1,038.9
million (2009: HK$538.1 million) (Note 36).

The Group's interests in land and buildings at their carrying values and

200,000 75 (Z T Z N4 : 1,100,0007%8
T2 MEREETERSIERERE
RYEBRTER  (ERABZ &9 W
1 I 32 7R 70,900,000/ T (

TENF -

—=

78,300,000/ 7T ) B 1E A& (B8 ) % F

AR (PffE8) °

RECER ARG E TRITE

AL EBRM(E1,038,900,000/8 L (=2 Z
£ : 538,100,000 70) 2 & T - #2sk

(et
A

(FHf7E36) °

AREERRREES IR L RET 2 #a

the lease terms are analysed as follows: LARFAHS AT ¢
2010 2009
—E-FF ZEENF
HK$ Million HKS$ Million
BEBT BEAT
In Hong Kong, held on: REBS  IWANFEHES -

Leases of between 10 to 50 years LN F102505F 88.9 91.0

In Mainland China, held on: RARBIRM - RA T FEEE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years LN TF10250F 98.3 95.1
187.2 186.1
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19 Intangible assets

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FREM BRI (&)

19 BFEE

Group
rEE
Concession Other
rights - Biomass intangible
Goodwill toll road technology assets Total
R - Hith
B WENE MBI BVEE ok
HKS Million HK$ Million HKS Million HKS$ Milion HK$ Million
BEAT BEBT BEAT BEAT BEAT
At 1 January 2009 R=ZZENF-A—H
Cost KA 409.5 1,692.1 315 53.0 2,086.1
Accumulated amortisation and S S )l
impairment (375.7) (448.6) (4.2) (40.4) (868.9)
Net book amount REHE 33.8 1,143.5 27.3 12.6 1,217.2
Year ended 31 December 2009 W E_EENE
TZA=t+-BLEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 33.8 1,143.5 27.3 12.6 1,217.2
Currency translation differences ERpE=s - 1.7 - - 1.7
Additions NE - 8.5 - 0.1 8.6
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHRBEAR - - (24.8) - (24.8)
Amortisation (Note 8) 5 llR) = (5.5) (2.5) 2.9 (10.3)
Impairment losses (Note 7) REEE(ET) - - - (©.8)
Closing net book amount FIRIREFE 33.8 1,148.2 - 96 1,191.6
At 31 December 2009 R-EZNE
+=A=+-8
Cost B 409.5 1,603.1 - 53.1 2,085.7
Accumulated amortisation and E S )l
impairment (375.7) (454.9) - (43.5) 874.1)
Net book amount REFE 3338 1,148.2 - 9.6 1,191.6
Year ended 31 December 2010 BE_Z-—EF
TZA=t+-BLEE
Opening net book amount FNREFE 33.8 1,148.2 - 9.6 1,191.6
Currency translation differences EHEERE - 48.1 - - 48.1
Cost adjustments AR - (30.3) - - (30.3)
Amortisation (Note 8) 25 (ftzke) = (6.3) - (1.2) (7.5)
Impairment losses (Note 7) REERE ) (33.8) = = (4.5) (38.3)
Closing net book amount FIRIREFE - 1,159.7 - 3.9 1,163.6
At 31 December 2010 WoZ-—EfF
+ZA=t-H
Cost BA 409.5 1,640.1 - 53.1 2,102.7
Accumulated amortisation and ZEtHRELAE
impairment (409.5) (480.4) - (49.2) (939.1)
Net book amount REFE - 1,159.7 - 3.9 1,163.6
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AN
=8

19

20

B g R Y 5k (48)
Intangible assets (continueq) 19 BEEE@)
Impairment tests for goodwill B RERI
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units identified B SREEFEBREB D BAEBRR SR
according to country of operation and business segment. For the EREEZERARSEEEN o FLRER
purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount of the HAERME @ EFBEMN 2 JRESEETIRE
business unit is determined based on value-in-use calculations. The FREBENEET - sTEEAEERERE
key assumptions adopted for growth rates and discount rates used in RTRERMN s EERBZDIBEBEEREEZ
the value-in-use calculation is based on management best estimates. REMEE - AERAANRNESRE
The calculation uses pretax cash flow projections based on financial BRI AE R EMAtZ T —F M RER
budgets approved by management covering a 12-year period cash ZReRERERE - WIRITEEN F5.75%
flow and based on a discount rate of 5.75% to 10.04% (2009: 5.75% £10.04% (ZZFZNF : 5.75%%9.8% )7t
to 9.8%) taking into account the risk level of the business unit. Growth AEBER 2 RBKTE - MRENFI%ZE
rates with range from 3% to 10% (2009: 3% to 10%) are determined 10%(ZZZNF : 3% E£10%) Jiat B AES
by considering both internal and external factors. RINBEREE
Properties under development 20 BRPYIE
Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZEThF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEBT
Properties under development comprise: EEBYERIE
Construction costs and capitalised expenditure &R AN & B AN 431.8 269.0
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments  TB1< + i FE & 2 45 24.5 2.0
456.3 271.0

The properties under development are all located in the Mainland
China.

At 31 December 2010, properties under development with carrying
value of HK$211.8 million (2009: Nil) were pledged as securities for the
Group’s borrowings (Note 36).

HKC (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2010
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FREM BRI (&)

Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due from

21

R B2 B2 RE R BB

subsidiaries YNGIEIRE]
2010 2009
—E-FF ZEENF
HK$ Million HKS$ Million
BHEBTT BEBT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LT « FRAKAR 215.4 196.6
Provision for impairment losses BB IR (47.4) (32.5)
168.0 164.1
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURHT B A BIZRIE 10,214.1 10,578.5
Provision for impairment losses BIEEB R (52.0) 2.1)
10,162.1 10,576.4
10,330.1 10,740.5
The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free, and HtB A RM S AEERE - 22 RER
repayable within the next twelve months. Their carrying amounts ARTZEARNEE - BEHEEELEEQT
approximate their fair values. The balances are mainly denominated in BiEE - HRBFZUETEE -
Hong Kong dollars.
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages 171 to FEMBARZFERHREITIEITTE

177.

Interests in associated companies 22 REEERNT)ZER
2010 2009
—E-FF —ZETNEF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEBTT BEAT
Group’s share of net assets AEBELEEFE 904.7 865.7
Amounts due from associated companies, net & B ‘& A &) 2 I8 H5E 678.9 655.2
1,583.6 1,520.9

Amounts due from associated companies are unsecured, interest free
and not repayable within the next twelve months except for amounts
due from associated companies of HK$90.6 million (2009: HK$90.6
million) which bear interest at the Hong Kong dollar prime rate (2009:
Hong Kong dollar prime rate). Their carrying amounts approximate their
fair values. The balances are mainly denominated in Renminbi.

B & 290,600,000 T ( —ZEZ 1L F
90,600,000/ 7T ) & JE U Bt & N Rl SR = 1R

BAEATREENER(ZETNAF : BB
BRE)FEHN - EUEE Q] Iﬁl,ﬁa“fﬁ

- RBRBENRRET @A WL@J&

HiFmERER
REE#EH -

FEHRE

BRER (R) GRATF o

® ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi;ﬂ«/\/\

—E-TFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mE KRR (&)

22 Interests in associated companies (continueq) 22 MREERNRZER®)
The following financial information, after making adjustments to conform TAMBER S RABUATEASEEES
to the Group’s significant accounting policies, represents the Group’s SR - REAEESHERBEAR(R
aggregate share of assets, liabilities, revenue and results of associated HERIELMARNZEE - AfF - WmH
companies, all of which are unlisted, and is summarised as below: FERMIT
2010 2009
—T-%F —TENF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEBTT
Assets BE 3,999.3 3,387.5
Liabilities = (3,094.6) (2,521.8)
Net assets BEFE 904.7 865.7
Revenue Wz 150.4 61.6
Profit before income tax Fr 4535 /il £ 100.7 54.6
Income tax expense (Note 12) PS> (MisE12) (10.8) (10.4)
Profit for the year RF 5 Tl 89.9 44.2
Details of principal associated companies are set out on page 178. FEEENT ZHEENE178H ©
23 Interests in jointly controlled entities 23 NEENRZER
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZZETNF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEBT
Group’s share of net assets AEEERGEEFE 1,855.4 1,796.4
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities, net EULE &N B IBH 58 61.1 63.1
Provision for impairment losses REEE 2 B = (4.7)
1,916.5 1,854.8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

23 Interests in jointly controlled entities (continueq) 23

The following financial information, after making adjustments to conform
to the Group’s significant accounting policies, represents the Group’s
aggregate share of assets, liabilities and results of the jointly controlled
entities and is summarised as below:

AT RAR M ()

REE RN ZEXE )

TP BERDEHBATEAEETES
SRR - RRAKEEREIERERRIZE

= BEREERRIT

2010 2009
—T-%F —TENF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET AEBT
Assets BE
Non-current assets FEREEE 2,371.3 2,208.7
Current assets mENEE 5.9 9.1
2,377.2 2,217.8
Liabilities BfE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (293.8) (286.0)
Current liabilities mENBE (228.0) (135.4)
(521.8) (421.4)
Net assets BAEFE 1,855.4 1,796.4
(Loss)/profit before income tax SRt Al (E18) /&= F (19.0) 1,078.1
Income tax credit/(expense) (Note 12) SRR, (ZH)(MizE12) 4.1 (267.2)
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (FIR), = (14.9) 810.9
Notes: Fi%E
(@  Balances with jointly controlled entities are unsecured, interest free and (@) HEEEARMZAERLEERR  2EKRE
not repayable within the next twelve months. Their carrying amounts BERAR+ZEARNEER - BERAEMESE
approximate their fair values. The balances are mainly denominated in BEATHEES - ERBEFEUARKEH -
Renminbi.
()  There are no material contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interest b) SYEEEAEEMEEERFERZIEKR

in the jointly controlled entities and no contingent liabilities within the
respective entities.

() Details of the principal jointly controlled entities are set out on page 179.

AT
(==

HRNBE MBEEERARSBRTESK

RAIME -

TBERERRIZFHEHNEIT9R -

BRER (R) ARAR o —T-TFFRH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FE MK EmERMET (&)

24 Derivative financial instrument 24 $TAESRTA
Group
rEE
2010 2009
—ZT-ZF —TTNF
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEET
Put option FRoh A 5.0 5.0
The balance represents a put option right to sell the Group’s 45% ERERE A MR — R & 2 Al Hong
interest in Hong Kong Construction Kam Lung Limited, an associated Kong Construction Kam Lung Limited 45%
company, and was fair valued at 31 December 2010 and 2009. o AhHE  BER T ZEFR_FFT

NET-A=+—BRAFETIE -

25 Available-for-sale financial assets 25 AHHELREE
Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEATT
1 January =JE=F@ 27.2 23.8
Currency translation differences BEpE = 0.9 -
Disposals k= = (0.3)
Net gains recognised in equity (Note 35) R fERR 2 Was)F 58 (i 5E35) 3.2 3.7
31 December +=—A=+—~8H 31.3 27.2
Available-for-sale financial assets include the — AIftHESBEERIE N5)&1E -
following:
Unlisted securities I EMFES
Equity securities — PRC fRAFH — 23.5 22.2
Club debentures SHMES 7.8 5.0
31.3 27.2
Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the following A ESREEN T EBHE
currencies:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNEF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBET BESAT
Hong Kong dollars BT 7.4 4.5
Renminbi AR 23.9 22.7
31.3 27.2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FREM BRI (&)

26 Financial instruments by category 26 ZERIpzEMIA
Group
r5HE
Assets at fair Derivative
Loans and value through financial Available-
receivables profit or loss instrument for-sale Total
RAYER
Rk BaRIIER 1
JEY LBE SRIE e &t
HK$ Million HK$ Milion HK$ Milion HK$ Millon HK$ Millon
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEBT
Assets as per consolidated balance ~ GABEEERZEE
sheet
31 December 2009 RZZENEFT=RA=1—H
Available-for-sale financial assets A E SRA R (Fitios)
(Note 25) - - - 271.2 27.2
Financial assets at fair value through A TEEEHRIIEZ S8
profit or loss (Note 29) BE(Mizt29) - 75.2 - - 75.2
Derivative financial instrument (Note 24)  $74 £ B T & (HizEo4) - - 50 - 50
Amounts due from associated NG e
companies, net (Note 22) GEZX) 655.2 - - - 655.2
Amounts due from jointly controlled ~ [EIA S ARIZIEEE
entities, net (Note 29) GiEZX) 63.1 - - - 63.1
Trade and other receivables (Note 30)  FEUIBR N e E- At FE R
(Fi#3¥30) 3824 - - - 382.4
Restricted cash (Note 32) XRHIF S (iEs2) 300.0 - - - 309.0
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 33)  BH& KB ZBM([IE33) 2,210.0 - - - 2,210.0
Total FCh 36197 752 50 212 8,727.1
31 December 2010 RZZ-2E+-A=1-H
Available-for-sale financial assets M ES BAE(H25)
(Note 25) - - - 31.3 31.3
Financial assets at fair value through RATERERRIIRZ 2R
profit or loss (Note 29) R - 136 - - 136
Derivative financial instrument (Note 24) ~ #744£ BT A (Mizt24) - - 5.0 = 5.0
Amounts due from associated ANy
companies, net (Note 22) (KizE22) 678.9 - - - 678.9
Amounts due from jointly controlled ERALRAZERE
entities, net (Note 23) (tsros) 61.1 - - - 61.1
Trade and other receivables (Note 30) TEIRER R E
(t3E30) 385.1 - - - 385.1
Restricted cash (Note 32) RRHI5 S (3Es2) 3206 - - - 320.6
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 33) BeRRSEEM(MFF3I) 1,903.3 - - - 1,903.3
Total et 3,349.0 13.6 5.0 31.3 3,398.9
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AN
=8

PR ER AR M ()

26 Financial instruments by category (continued)
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26 RERETz2EMT A

Group
rEH
Other
Liabilities financial
at fair value liabilities at
through profit amortised
or loss cost Total
BRATHE R 5
friEm% B ANEHE
Rz BRE Hittemas #aEt
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT BEAT AEAT
Liabilities as per consolidated TREEABRCERE

balance sheet
31 December 2009 RZZEThF+=RA=+—H
Amount due to a shareholder ST — 2 AR FUE (B 5E40)

(Note 40) = 362.1 362.1
Borrowings (Note 36) &k (Fi3E36) - 3,796.3 3,796.3
Trade and other payables (Note 37) & BR 3k Kz EL{th B~ 7k

(M45E37) - 1,033.7 1,033.7
Other non-current payables (Note 37) Efth 3F7 8 & (~ 7% (B 5£37) 266.3 59.4 325.7
Total #Et 266.3 5,251.5 5,517.8
31 December 2010 R-_E—ZTE+-_A=+—H
Borrowings (Note 36) &R (F15£36) - 3,682.4 3,682.4
Derivative liability (Note 39) PTETABEMIEES9) 75.5 - 75.5
Trade and other payables (Note 37) & BR 2k & E fth fE 3%

(Pi&E37) - 902.0 902.0
Other non-current payables (Note 37) E #JE 7 B & (3 (P 5£37) 264.9 59.0 323.9
Total st 340.4 4,643.4 4,983.8




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FREM BRI (&)

26 Financial instruments by category (continued) 26 BB zeEMIR®

Company
PN
Assets at fair
Loansand  value through

receivables profit or loss Total
BAFE
= %\& Eiﬂmﬁ
FEMIER PR 2 BEE FEE
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BAEAT BEAT
Assets as per balance sheet ’ﬁ%ﬁfi?ﬁ ZEE
31 December 2009 RZZETENF+=A=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries, BB EERKNB AR Z
net of provision (Note 21) FIE(f1sE21) 10,576.4 = 10,576.4
Financial assets at fair value through  32/A (A BRI~
profit or loss (Note 29) SRS E (fEE29) - 62.5 62.5
Other receivables (Note 30) Eo Al Wk (B 5E30) 0.5 - 0.5
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 33) R4 &I844 (i F33) 8.5 - 8.5
Total 4t 10,585.4 62.5 10,647.9
31 December 2010 RZE—ZTF+_A=1+—
Amounts due from subsidiaries, 2 &%ﬁéﬁ&ﬁ%%ﬁf% AR 2
net of provision (Note 21) FIE (KMf5E21) 10,162.1 - 10,162.1
Financial assets at fair value through 12 A F(EEBZERIBE 2
profit or loss (Note 29) SEEE (H7E29) - 0.3 0.3
Other receivables (Note 30) At FEMGR (F13E30) 1.7 - 1.7
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 33) Eﬁﬁﬁfﬁfﬁiﬂﬁ ) (B 5E33) 4.9 - 4.9
Total wEt 10,168.7 0.3 10,169.0

BEER (ER) ARAE o —T-TEFH 14



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mE KRR (&)

26 Financial instruments by category (continued) 26 ZERIDzEMIAE®
Company
NG|
Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
FTHE 2 EAth
CRAE
HK$ Million
EL-Yov
Liabilities as per balance sheet BEEERZERE
31 December 2009 R-ZEENFE+=-A=+—8”
Amount due to a shareholder (Note 40) eI — R MR R A (MI5E40) 362.1
Other payables (Note 37) H A SR (HI7E37) 62.5
Total @5t 424.6
31 December 2010 R—ZE—ZTF+=-HA=+—8H
Other payables (Note 37) H A SR (HI7E37) 10.3
27 Inventories 21 FE
Group
REE
2010 2009
—E-EF —EENF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT BEET
Raw materials B 2.8 2.6
Consumables and others THE R E At 9.9 10.3
12.7 12.9
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 17 8E ThiE Ak A B A] B 5 FE < BIRE IR °
In 2009, inventories amounting to HK$4.2 million were written down R_ZZTNF » A24,200,0008 T2 FE
due to a fall in selling prices and were included in “other and general BB T B ORI 5T AT E s 2 — R &
expenses”. e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FREM BRI (&)

28 Properties held for sale 28. ESHERZE 2
At 31 December 2010, properties held for sale that are carried at RZZE—ZTF+RA=+—H ' k&
net realisable value amounted to HK$370.8 million (2009: HK$491.4 RazhERITERFEINE  HE
million). A write back of provision for impairment losses of HK$0.3 %6 /& 370,800,000 8 L (ZE T N &F
million was credited (2009: a provision for impairment losses of HK$5.8 491,400,000 7T ) © 4R & Bk B AT AR
million was charged) to the consolidated income statement. 1B /&5 18 % % [B] # 300,000 B L (ZZ T A,

F . BHIRBRE BB 55,800,000/ 7T )

At 31 December 2010, certain properties held for sale with the carrying RZE—ZFEFE+-A=+—H KREEAR
value of HK$115.8 million (2009: Nil) was pledged as securities against 115,800,000 L (ZTZTNF : )2 ET
the Group’s borrowings (Note 36). ESHE AR 2 MEBIEAREBFTERBRZ

R (HI7E36) °

29 Financial assets at fair value through profitorloss 29 A FEEEDRIIRZ S/

g
Group Company
rEH 2N
2010 2009 2010 2009
—2-%F “TTAF C—%-BF “ITNF

HKS$ Million ~ HK$ Milion ~ HKS$ Million ~ HK$ Million
BEEL BEAT BEBT BEAT

Equity securities: & A 3E 5
— Listed in Hong Kong —HALT  ZME
at market value 0.3 0.1 0.3 0.1
— Unlisted —3JEEm 13.3 75.1 - 62.4
13.6 75.2 0.3 62.5

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or BRATEEERRIIRZ @REENTES
loss are recorded in other income in the consolidated income statement &) - Gt AGREERRAEMYA (MEE6)
(Note 6).
The fair value of equity securities is based on the current bid price AT H 2 A FEDRIBREE A TI5FTHR
quoted in the market at the balance sheet date. EREAEE -

BRER (R) ARAR o —T-TFFH 143



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mE KRR (&)

30 Trade and other receivables 30 FEUBRFR R HAEWEK
Group Company
REE VNN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-EF —ZTNEF —E-EF —ZTNEF
HK$ Million HK$ Million HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEBT BEET BEBT
Trade receivables FEUTBRER 91.5 75.1 - -
Less: provision for impairment & : JBi{EE S (19.0) (19.9) = =
Trade receivables — net MR F =R 72.5 55.2 — =
Bills receivable eSS 26.0 14.8 - =
Retention receivables JFEU R E 3R 58 29.3 30.0 = =
Other receivables and deposits, — E b EWK R iEE
net of provisions (BBREE) 244.0 169.2 1.7 0.5
Gross amounts due from EWEFAATIZZIE4A%E
customers for contract works GEXID
(Note 31) 10.0 85.1 - -
Amounts due from related JRE sz BB ) 2508 (P sEc)
companies (Note c) 3:3 28.1 - -
385.1 382.4 1.7 0.5
Notes: MasE
(@) At 31 December 2010, retention receivables amounting to HK$29.3 @ R-ZE—ZE+-_F=+—8 " ERKIERE
million (2009: HK$30.0 million) were included in current other receivables. 28 TR %R 529,300,000/ TL( —BE 4 -
30,000,000/ 7T) °
()  The ageing analysis of trade receivables at year end, net of provision for ) RFELER  BEHRBEREEERRERZ

impairment, was as follows: BREC DATEAT :

Group

AEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EThF
HKS$ Million HKS$ Million
BEET BEAT
0 to less than 2 months ZELR2MEA 45.0 13.6
2 to less than 6 months 22 LR6MEA 2.3 3.6
6 to less than 12 months 6=V 12MEA 15.9 21.3
12 months and more 1218 A RIA E 9.3 16.7
72.5 55.2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

30 Trade and other receivables (continved)

Notes: (Continued)

(0)

(Continued)

The Group’s credit terms for the contracting business are negotiated with
and entered into under normal commercial terms with its trade customers.
Various group companies have different credit policies depending on the
requirements of their markets and the businesses which they operate.
Retention money receivables in respect of contracting services are settled
in accordance with the terms of respective contracts.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables, as
the Group has a large number of customers.

Amounts due from related companies are unsecured, interest free and
have no fixed terms of repayment. The balances are mainly denominated
in Renminbi.

AT RAR M ()

FEUR AR R R ELAth U R (42)

MisE : (48)

() (%)
NEBRESNES 2 EEIERIRB—K
BEERAEEZEFERLEL] - 8%

BRRZEERREREETHBREM
REXBMRE - BRREEAS QORBZEK
REBSTIRBES N AN ZIEREE -

HRARERP AEAD - BREYARRIL

BEESDZER

FEY RS A R 2 SR AEEIR - R BRI
EEEERD - REAAREFHE -

Depending on the line of business, trade receivables that are less than 12 0 BIEEBHEMmME  R12EHREEZ
months past due are not considered impaired. As at 31 December 2010, FEWEBERBERE R=2F—ZTF+=A
trade receivables of HK$9.3 million (2009: HK$16.7 million) were past due =+—H  BaHEEREZEKERS
but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for 9,300,000/ 7L (= ZZ L4 : 16,700,000
whom there is no recent history of default. No other receivables were past PETT) o It SF R SRR B I 5 B R KRR 8
due or impaired. BN B P AR o Eith FEUGRIE 2 38 B Sk
HERE
As at 31 December 2010, trade receivables of HK$19.0 million (2009: R-_TE—ZF+_A=+—"8" BH
HK$19.9 million) were impaired and provided for. A total provision of 19,000,000/ 7C( = ZZ AL.4F : 19,900,000
HK$19.0 million (2009: HK$19.9 million) was provided for the receivables. PBTT) 2 RS BURE I E B - FELIR
FREELEES 19,000,000 T (ZTF
JUEF 19,900,000/ 7T) °
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables are € 7N £ B > FE U BE 21 % E At e U 2R TEE LA
denominated in the following currencies: TFI| EHEEtE
2010 2009
—E-FF —ZTENF
HK$ Million HKS$ Million
BEET BEBT
Hong Kong dollars PBITT 61.0 161.2
Renminbi AR 3234 220.3
US dollars EVv 0.7 0.9
385.1 382.4
There is a bank borrowing secured by certain of the Group’s (f) 7K £ [ BR T (B 26,400,000 T ( ZEE h,

trade receivables with carrying values of HK$26.4 million (2009:
Nil) (Note 36).

F B 2ETRIEERREERARG —I8
RITEFR(HIFES6)

BRER (R) ARAR o —T-TFFRH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mE KRR (&)

30 Trade and other receivables (continued) 30 EWERMRKREAMEWR @
Notes: (Continued) MiE - (48)
(@  Movements on the provision for impairment of trade receivables are as (@ YRR ZREREZESHNT -
follows:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —TTNF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT HEBT
At 1 January wn—A—H 19.9 13.3
Currency translation differences [E R e =xE 1.5 0.4
Reclassification from provision for other receivables [ E fib g I i B E 3 5 48 - 1.7
Reclassification to assets held for sale BN REELERSR I EE (1.2) -
Provision for impairment losses EE RS = 6.4
Write back of provision for impairment losses BB ESTE B E B (0.8) (1.3)
Trade receivables written off during the year FAMEE AT AT B 2 R R X
as uncollectible (0.4) (0.6)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—8H 19.0 19.9
()  The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying (hy RBEEEHzEaEERRA EHEE
value of each class of receivable mentioned above. The Group does not Wk 2 BREIE - NEE W\ ERFFE
hold any collateral as security. AR o
31 Construction contracts in progress 3 EERIREN
Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEAT
Contract costs incurred plus attributable BRI INE FEREE R TR AT TR
profits recognised less provision for BiERE
foreseeable losses 1,908.9 3,032.3
Progress payments received and receivable U K P U 2 K (1,898.9) (2,947.2)
10.0 85.1
Representing: Rk -
Gross amounts due from customers for T AEUER R KR
contract works included in trade and Hits U FE IR P
other receivables (Note 30) AR TR (FE30) 10.0 85.1
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32 Restricted cash

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AP RAR M ()

32 ZRFRE

Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-EF ZEThF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEBT
Restricted cash represents: ZREIREHE
Deposits placed with banks BFEHRRERIRITZFR
— for securing banking facilities granted to —RAEEE TYHERER
certain buyers of properties of the Group RTTRLE 4.9 47
— for securing performance bonds and — B RELIRIE B S BAVRE
guarantees in respect of alternative R
energy projects 1.1 35.6
— for securing certain bank loans —RESE TRITER 155.0 196.0
Deposits placed with a bank FEHRR—RERIT 2 7R
— for the split of land title certificate in respect ~ —BL¥IZEIE B kD IR #EE
of property project 82.9 -
— for a third party in respect of an alternative =~ — Bt —IBEREERIBERE=
energy project (e 0.9 -
Escrow accounts relating to pre-sale deposits 558 ik B )4 Rk — B E BT &2
held for a property resettlement scheme BEE 75.8 72.7
320.6 309.0
33 Cash and cash equivalents 33 REeERAEEEY
Group Company
rEH ¥iN/NE|
2010 2009 2010 2009
—Z-ZF ZTThEF —Z-ZF ZTThF
HK$ Million HKS$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEBT BEAT BEABT BEBT
Cash and cash equivalents ReRASEBYRENAT
comprises the following: £I8
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERE 1,274.3 1,645.6 4.9 8.5
Short-term bank deposits BRI 949.6 873.4 - =
2,223.9 2,519.0 4.9 8.5
Less: Restricted cash (Note 32)  Ja = 2R %38 & (Fff:532) (320.6) (309.0) - -
1,903.3 2,210.0 4.9 8.5
EARER (EBR) BRQAF o —TTFFH

147



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ERERMET (&)

33 Cash and cash equivalents (continved) 33 BERBASEEN )
Group Company
REE /N
2010 2009 2010 2009
—2-%F “TTAF C—2-BF “ITNF
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEBT BEAT BHEBT BEAT
Cash and cash equivalents and  H&RELZEENR
restricted cash XBHIRE
(@ Placed in banks inthe PRC: () RHEKRITES :
— denominated in Renminbi —NARBES 1,279.7 1,342.4 = =
— denominated in — BT EHE
Hong Kong dollars 384.8 589.7 - -
— denominated in US —UETLEE
dollars 22.8 2.5 - -
(b) Placed in banks in b) REBERITFE
Hong Kong:
— denominated in — BT
Hong Kong dollars 476.2 582.9 4.9 8.5
— denominated in US —ETHE
dollars 60.4 1.5 - -
2,223.9 2,519.0 4.9 8.5
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows: REEB 2 BERNZNT
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNEF
HK$ Us$ RMB HK$ us$ RMB
ABIT = AREE BT ETT AR
Short-term bank deposits %2 BASE 1717 7K 0.01% - 1.00% 0.36% - 0.01% - - 0.36% -
1.07% 1.98% 0.97% 1.71%

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the

carrying value of the cash and bank balances stated above.

The short-term bank deposits of the Group and the Company have

original maturities of three months or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FRE BRI (&)

34 Share capital 34 BRI
Number of Ordinary
Note shares shares
MaE [ EER
(Million) HK$ Million
(B8) BEAT
Authorised ‘?a'E
At 1 January and 31 December 2009, R=—ZZNF—A—HBE&
1 January and 31 December 2010 +TZA=+—BUK
—ZEF—A—AK
+—A=+—8H 30,000.0 300.0
Issued and fully paid BRITRHAE
At 1 January 2009 RZZEZNF—H—H 8,254.8 82.5
Repurchase during the year FREERE (a) (6.1) 0.1)
Exercise of bonus warrants “314” TR AL IR R 314 ] (b) 0.4 0.1
Exercise of bonus warrants “407” 1TEALFRAR #ERE 407 (© 291.1 2.9
Issue of bonus shares BITAIIR (e 854.5 8.5
At 31 December 2009 RZEZENF+=_A=+—H 9,395.7 93.9
At 1 January 2010 R-ZE—ZFF—H—H 9,395.7 93.9
Repurchase during the year FREEE (a) (2.0 (0.1)
Exercise of bonus warrants “407” TR AL FIFRIRRERE 407 | (© 43.1 0.5
Exercise of bonus warrants “492” 1TEAI R ARE R 492 | (d) 0.4 0.1
Issue of bonus shares BITAIRR () 942.5 9.4
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE—FEEFE+_A=1+—H 10,379.7 103.8

Notes: Bz :

()  For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2010, the Company @ BE_ZTEAFE_T-ZTF+_A
repurchased a total of 5,115,000 and 2,000,000 of its own shares on the =T—HIFE KR 717\ Het 22 P B [B] &
Stock Exchange respectively, all of which have been cancelled as follows: K & & #£5,115,000 %.2,000,000 8% B 15

ZERGEPEWES - FRBEWT ¢
Purchase price per share

Number of Total HRRDEEE
shares repurchased purchase price Highest Lowest
Month/year % /RH fERIRNE B BIEEE &= b5 4i
HK$ Million HK$ HK$
BEBT BT BIT
December 2009 —TTNF+=A 4,115,000 2.6 0.63 0.62
December 2009 —TThF+=A 1,000,000 0.6 0.59 0.59

5,115,000 3.2

January 2010 —=-—FTF—H 2,000,000 1.3 0.63 0.63
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ERERMET (&)

34 Share capital (continueq)

Notes: (Continued)

)

On 30 November 2007, the Company issued 821,279,383 warrants
(Warrant Code: 314) on the basis of one warrant for every ten existing
shares of the Company held by the shareholders (‘bonus warrants “314"").
The holders of bonus warrants “314” are entitled to subscribe at any time
during 30 November 2007 to 30 November 2009 for fully paid shares at a
subscription price of HK$2.05 per share (subject to adjustment). 302,245
new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued upon the exercise of
302,245 units of bonus warrants “314” for the year ended 31 December
2008.

On 22 May 2009, the subscription price of bonus warrants “314” was
adjusted to HK$1.96 per share as a result of a new issue of bonus
warrants, and the subscription price was further adjusted to HK$1.95 per
share in the event of distribution in specie of the bonus warrants (Warrant
Code: 748) of Hong Kong Energy (Holdings) Limited to the shareholders
of the Company on 10 June 2009.

On 30 October 2009, the subscription price of bonus warrants “314” was
adjusted to HK$1.77 per share as a result of the issue of bonus shares.
359,075 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued upon the
exercise of 359,075 units of bonus warrants “314” for the period from 1
January 2009 to 30 November 2009 and the outstanding bonus warrants
“314” expired on 30 November 2009.

On 22 May 2009, the Company issued 825,481,451 warrants (Warrant
Code: 407) on the basis of one warrant for every ten existing shares of the
Company held by the shareholders (“bonus warrants “407””). The holders
of bonus warrants “407” are entitled to subscribe at any time during 22
May 2009 to 21 May 2011 for fully paid shares at a subscription price of
HKS$0.40 per share (subject to adjustment).

On 30 October 2009, the subscription price of bonus warrants “407” was
adjusted to HK$0.36 per share as a result of the issue of bonus shares.

291,091,328 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued upon
the exercise of 291,091,328 units of bonus warrants “407” for the year
ended 31 December 2009. As at 31 December 2009, 534,390,123 units
of bonus warrants “407” remained outstanding.

On 30 April 2010, the subscription price of bonus warrants “407” was
further adjusted to HK$0.313 per share as a result of the issue of bonus
shares.

43,072,732 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued upon the
exercise of 43,072,732 units of bonus warrants “407” for the year ended
31 December 2010. As at 31 December 2010, 491,317,391 units of
bonus warrants “407” remained outstanding.
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34 BAz)

(®)

(%)
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#[B8141]) - AIFRAIEE314 1A A
ﬁ%ﬂ_?%‘\tiJr A=+RAZ=Z%
NE+— A= B B E R R E A REE
BRI 2.05% 7T (A F A% ) REEHUE IR
D BEZTTENFF+A=F+—HILF
& » 302,245 R EIE0.01 B L 2 5 &
EARF 302,245 AL AR HERE [ 314 11T
{FRFEETT ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

34 Share capital (continueq)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

On 9 June 2010, the Company issued 942,466,221 warrants (Warrant
Code: 492) on the basis of one warrant for every ten existing shares of the
Company held by the shareholders (‘bonus warrants “492””). The holders
of bonus warrants “492” are entitled to subscribe at any time during 9
June 2010 to 8 June 2011 for fully paid shares at a subscription price of
HK$0.50 per share (subject to adjustment).

482,240 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued upon the
exercise of 482,240 units of bonus warrants “492” for the year ended 31
December 2010. As at 31 December 2010, 941,983,981 units of bonus
warrants “492” remained outstanding.

The Company approved the issue of 854,514,642 bonus shares and
942,466,221 bonus shares on 30 October 2009 and 9 June 2010
respectively. Both bonus shares were issued on the basis of 1 bonus
share for every 10 ordinary shares held. The bonus shares are issued and
credited as fully paid upon issue and are rank pari passu in all respects
with the existing shares with effect from the date of issue. The issue
of bonus shares is funded by way of captialisation of certain amounts
standing to the credit of the Company’s contributed surplus account.

Share options are granted to employees, senior executives or officers,
managers or consultants of any members of the Group or any Invested
Entity.

The exercise price must be at least the higher of

0] the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant;

(ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a share.

An option must be exercised within ten years from the date on which
it is granted or such shorter period as the Board may specify at the
time of grant. An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of ten business days from the date of offer and a
consideration of HK$1 must be paid upon acceptance.

AP RAR M ()

34 BAz)

Bt - ()

©)

R-ZZT—ZTEANA  ARERBE
BHEE10KIRE KD Al E A (5 R E
B2 HAE - E1T942,466,221 1) BRI AEE
(GRRRREBREE - 402 - ([ALHRREHEE
[492]) o ATF|RAREE 492 |58 A B #
RZE—ZFNANLHEBE=-_ZT——FA
J\ B HA R ({7 B P DA AR BB B = AR %19 0.50
ST (Al TR ) REBEZ R -

HE-_Z—ZSF+_A=+—HILtEFEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ERERMET (&)

34 Share capital (continueq) 34 BRAE#
Notes: (Continued) Misx : (&)
) (Continued) () (&)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their related mARTTEE 2 BEARME SN B R A B i e 1T
weighted average exercise prices are as follows: EEZEINT -
2010 2009
—E-ZF —TTNF
Average Average
exercise exercise
price in price in
HK dollar Number of HK dollar Number of
per share options per share options
FIRF1Y RS
BITITEE BRERE BITITEE MEAREER
At 1 January n—A—H 1.465 235,840,000 1.593 320,900,000
Granted before the issue of BITA IR R
bonus shares 0.630 30,000,000 = =
Lapsed before the issue of BITAIRRATE KA
bonus shares 1.431 (53,350,000) 1.654 (90,000,000)
Issue of bonus shares BEITALRR - 21,249,000 - 23,090,000
Granted after the issue of BITHREBEE
bonus shares 0.488 30,000,000 - -
Lapsed after the issue of BATAIRIZRE KK
bonus shares 1.227 (6,655,000) 1.421 (18,150,000)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 1.145 257,084,000 1.465 235,840,000
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34 Share capital (continueq)

Notes: (Continued)

() (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Number of share options outstanding at 31 December 2010 and 2009

are as follows:

AP RAR M ()

34 BAz)
fieE : (&)

() (&)
RIE-—TFER=

Exercise price

per share At 31 December

TTHE+—_A=1—
B RARTTE 2 AR T

At 31 December

Date of grant Exercise period (adjusted) 2010 2009
BRITEE T RIZTNF
KB H 17152 HA A (BAE) +=A=t+—H —R=1+—H
(HK$)
(&)
15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 14 December 2016 1174 14,792,250 18,067,500
—EERE+ZATARE T+ F+-A+RAE=T—~F+=-A+MA
15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 14 December 2016 1.174 25,077,250 34,127,500
—ZEZF+=-A+AR 2T N\E+A+AREZ—"FTATEA
15 December 2006 15 December 2009 to 14 December 2016 1.174 17,847,500 22,275,000
—EENF+=-A+HA —EENF+-_A+TRBEE-_E—"F+-A+WmH
3 July 2007 15 December 2007 to 2 July 2017 1.901 6,050,000 5,500,000
—TTHEHA=H —TT+F+-A+RAE=T—+tFtA=H
3 July 2007 15 December 2008 to 2 July 2017 1.901 3,025,000 2,750,000
—ZTtF+HA=R —EEN\E+A+ABREZT—tFtHAZH
3 July 2007 15 December 2009 to 2 July 2017 1.901 3,025,000 2,750,000
—EELELA=H —ETNE+-_A+ARE=_E—tFtA=H
1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 31 January 2018 1.368 24,858,400 30,074,000
—EEN\F-A—H —EENEFE-_R—HE-_T—\&—A=1+—H
1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 31 January 2018 1.368 37,280,100 45,111,000
—EEN\F-A—H —TTHF-_A-AE-_T-)/\F—HA=1+—H
1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 31 January 2018 1.368 62,133,500 75,185,000
—ZT)\&-H—H —E——4%-f-HBE=FT-\F-A=1+—H
20 January 2010 20 February 2011 to 19 January 2013 0.573 6,600,000 -
—T-ZTHF—-A=+H —T——F-A-t+HEZZ-=F-A+NH
20 January 2010 20 February 2012 to 19 January 2014 0.573 9,900,000 -
I e = —E-CHF-AZtTRE-ZT-MF-A+NH
20 January 2010 20 February 201 3to 19 January 2015 0.573 16,500,000 -
S = - =f-A-tHRE-T-RF—At+AhA
1 September 2010 1 September 201 1to 31 August 2013 0.488 6,000,000 -
—T-TFNA—H —E——HNA-BET—=F/\A=1+—H
1 September 2010 1 September 2012 to 31 August 2014 0.488 9,000,000 -
—E-TFNA—H T —FNA-RAET-MFENA=FT—H
1 September 2010 1 September 2013 to 31 August 2015 0.488 15,000,000 -
—T-TFNA—H T -FNA-HE_Z—HAF/\A=1+—8H
Total #85T 257,084,000 235,840,000
Number of options exercisable  #+= A=+—BA[{H{EERESE
at 31 December 131,950,500 160,655,000
Other details of the share option schemes are set out in the Report of the BRI EMFRINESTSRSE -
Directors.
EARER (EBR) BRQAF o —TTFFH

153



154

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ERERMET (&)

35 Reserves

35 fEfE

Group REHE
Capital Capital Employee Available- Retained
Share reduction  redemption Contributed ~ share-based for-sale Eamings/
premium reserve reserve Capital surplus  compensation Exchange  investments  (Accumulated
(Note a) (Note ¢) (Note b) reserve (Note d) reserve resenve reserve losses) Total
RVEE BAHEEE EABERRE BARE  DRORE AiE  REEFH/
(Fizta) (BEc) (GED) BAGE (FiFd) EEMEERE B REGE  (ZER) &5
HKS Millon ~ HKSMilion ~ HKSMilion ~ HKSMilion ~ HK§Milion  HK§Milion ~ HKSMilion  HKSMilion  HKSMilion  HK$ Milion
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEET BEAT BEAT
Balance at 1 January 2009 RZEENE-F-R&#H 10,183.7 594.1 146 1474 = 1149 1,084.8 (7.0) (1,376.1) 10,7564
Fair value gain on avallable-for-sale A/ HESREE 2
financial assets ATENE = - - - - - - 37 - 37
Currency translation differences ~ ER#EZE - - - = = = 80) - - (80)
Employee share option benefits ~ [ESBRIERA - - - - - 28.1 = = = 28.1
Transfer between reserves Mk (1248) - - - 1248 - - - - -
Issue of bonus shares BTAR = = = = 85) - - - - (85)
Exercise of bonus warrants EARRRES 114.1 - - - - - - - - 1141
Repurchase of shares BRI (31) - - - = = = = = (81)
Release of reserves BRIREE
- upon lapse of share options ~BREX N 25 - - - - (49.6) - - 471 -
- upon disposal and liquidation of ~ — K& KRB A TR
subsidiaries - - - - - - 89 - = 8.9
- upon disposal of ~HETRIESREER
avalable-for-sale financial assets = = = = = = = 0.1 = 0.1
Profitfor the year REREF - - - - - - - - 1,456.7 1,456.7
Balance at 31 December 2009 R=ZENE
t-A=t-R&K 10,1724 5941 146 1474 1163 934 10729 (32) 1217 1233%6
Retained by: FHHRE -
Company and subsidiaries AARRKEAT 10,1724 5041 146 1474 1163 94 9369 62 6683 114036
Associated companies N - - - - - - 16.8 - 66.1 829
Jointly controlled entities AELA - - - - - - 119.2 - 7299 849.1
10,1724 594.1 14.6 1474 116.3 934 1,072.9 8.2 121.7 12,335.6
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FRE BRI (&)

35 Reserves (continued) 35 RE
Group (Continued) REE (=)
Capital Capital Employee Available- Retained
Share  reduction  redemption Contributed Other ~ share-based for-sale  Earnings/
premium reserve reserve Capital surplus reserve compensation  Exchange investments  (Accumulated
(Note a) (Note c) (Note b) reserve (Note d) (Note €) reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
RVEE RAHERE EARERE AR EitRE  URGRH uftE  RERR/
(Hizta) (HzEe) (Hfzb) R (Hf&d) (Wite) EEMERE  EXRE  RERE (2HFR) a3
HK$Milion ~ HKSMilion ~ HKSMilion ~ HKSMillion ~ HKS Million ~ HKSMillion ~ HK$Milion ~ HKSMilion ~ HKSMilion ~ HKS Millon  HKS Million
BERT BE%T BE%T BE%T  BEAT  BE%n BE®n BERn BERR BEER BEAR
Balance at 1 January 2010 RZ2-Z5-A-R&EH 10,1724 594.4 146 1474 1163 - 934 1,0729 (39 1217 12306
Fair value gain on avallable-for-sale ~ AIEHESREE,
financial assets NERE - - - - - - - - 32 - 32
Currency transiation differences EifEEE - - - - - - - 4695 (04) - 4694
Employee share option benefits EEERERT = = = = = = (64) = = o (64)
Transfer between reserves GEER (350.0) - - - 3500 - - - - - -
Issue of bonus shares ¥k - - - - (94) - - - - - (0.4)
Exercise of bonus warrants (TR ER 147 - - - - - - - - - 147
Repurchase of shares () (1.2 - - - - - - - - - (1.9)
Release of reserves upon RT5I& ERGEREE
- upon liuidation of anassociated  —I-TEREATEER
company - - - (0.1) - - - - - - (0.4)
- upon lapse of share options — BRI R - - - - - - (128) - - 128 -
Changes in ownership inferests in ETSIREEBHEAZ
subsicfaries that do not resultin a ERERIHEREN
loss of control arising from the SEimHiE
following factors
- exercise of alisted subsiclary's ~ RSN~
bonus warrants, distributed by the kAR AR
Group AR - - - - (1.4) - - - - - (1.4)
- distrioution of certan shares o~ —~AIRALEMEE—FHE
subsidiary held by the Group NAZAETRA - - - - (39.3) - - - - - (39.9)
- disposal of aternative energy -HEERERERTAET
business to anon-wholly owned - EE
subsidiary of the Group - - - - - 8.1 - - - - 8.1
Proposed distribution of proceeds  #RFEERREAE
from sale of equity interest of a At E-FHBAR
subsidiary to a non-controling RAE R EFUR ()
shareholder (Note f) - - - (80.9) - - - - - - (60.9)
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - - - - (2938) (2938)
Balance at 31 December 2010 R=3-%F
+-f=1-Bis 98359 5941 146 66.4 4162 81 M2 1544 04) (1533 12395
Retalned by: FIMRE -
Company and subsidiaries AARRHEAT 948359 5941 146 664 4162 81 M2 1300 04) 008 114216
Associated companies BELT - - - - - - - 453 - 59.0 1043
Jointly controlled entities AEAA - - - - - - - 194.1 - 6785 8726
9,835.9 594.1 146 66.4 416.2 8.1 742 15424 0.4) (153.3) 12,398.5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ma

BB IR P T ()

35 Reserves (continued)

35 RE)

Company ¥iN/NE]|
Employee
Share  Contributed ~ share-based
premium surplus — compensation Exchange  Accumulated
(Note a) (Note d) reserve reserve losses Total
PARR (7
R (E N ZfHES
(MizEa) (Mizkd) MeeE FE B RiER ik
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Milion HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
Balance at 1 January 2009 REIBTNE-A—REH 10,183.7 - 107.2 - (879.7) 9,411.2
Employee share option benefits EEBRERT - - 28.1 - = 28.1
Transfer between reserves FERER (124.8) 124.8 = = = =
Release of reserves upon the lapse BB RIS il
of share options 25 - (41.9) - 39.4 -
Exercise of bonus warrants A RR R 114.1 - - - - 114.1
Distribution of bonus warrants issued ~ 2TEAA T EHMBAT
by the listed subsidiary BT AR MR
of the Company - (25.9) - - - 5.9
Issue of bonus shares FAR - (8.5) - - - (8.5)
Repurchase of shares RN 8.1) - - - - 3.1)
Profit for the year REFRA - - - - 7776 7776
Balance at 31 December 2009 RZEENE
+-f=+-B&# 10,1724 90.4 934 - B27) 102935
Balance at 1 January 2010 R-Z-TE-P-BEE 101724 90.4 93.4 - 627) 10,2935
Currency translation differences ERREER - - - 4305 - 4305
Employee share option benefits RERRERER = - (6.4) - - (6.4)
Transfer between reserves FHiERER (350.0) 350.0 - - - -
Release of reserves upon the lapse  BERVIE R MBS (1S
of share options - - (12.8) - 12.8 -
Exercise of bonus warrants TR MIRRR i 147 - - - - 14.7
Distrioution of bonus warrants and PERARF LTHBAR
certain shares issued by the listed BT A FIARER |
subsidiary of the Company AT - (88.7) - - - (88.7)
Issue of bonus shares BITHR - (9.4) - - - (9.4)
Repurchase of shares Bk (1.2 - - - - (1.2
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - (410.1) (410.1)
Balance at 31 December 2010 i
+-A=t-RE&H 9,835.9 3423 74.2 4305 (460.0) 10,222.9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

35 Reserves (continued)

Notes:

(@)

The application of the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

The application of the capital redemption reserve account is governed by
section 49H of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

On 30 September 2005, by virtue of special resolutions of the Company
with the sanction of an order of the High Court of the Hong Kong SAR,
the nominal value of all the issued and paid up capital was reduced from
HK$1.00 to HK$0.01 each, thereby reducing the issued and paid up
capital of the Company by HK$2,305.1 million and such amount was
transferred to the Capital Reduction Reserve Account.

By a special resolution passed on 1 June 2010, the share premium
account was reduced by HK$350.0 million and the reduced amount was
credited to the contributed surplus account.

By a special resolution passed on 10 June 2009, the share premium
account was reduced by HK$124.8 million and the reduced amount was
credited to the contributed surplus account.

On 12 May 2010, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary entered into a
sales and purchase agreement (“S&P”) with the Group’s non-wholly-
owned subsidiary to dispose of the alternative energy business (“Target
Business”). Based on the S&P, the purchase consideration is settled by
way of issuing and allotting 1,385,170,068 convertible preference shares
by such non-wholly-owned subsidiary. The fair value of which, on the
S&P date, was HK$1,018.1 million. On 31 August 2010, the acquisition
was completed and the fair value of the respective convertible preference
shares changed to HK$853.8 million. As the Target Business remains
as the Group’s subsidiary upon the disposal, such disposal transaction
is considered as a transaction with non-controlling shareholders. As a
result, the Group has recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests
of HK$8.1 million and an increase in other reserve in equity of the same
amount.

On 19 October 2010 and 31 December 2010, the Group has entered
a Memorandum of Understanding (“MoU”) and a Supplementary MoU
with a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary respectively. The
supplementary MoU has set out the principles on the distribution of
proceeds arising from the disposal as in note 45. The Group recognised
an increase in non-controlling interests of HK$80.9 million and a decrease
in capital reserve of the same amount.

e MBIRRME(E)

EA10D)

)
=
H—ﬁ

R ERz AR BEFRE—
SEERTAPTESE ©

BRERFEERZAERIBEERRIGROISE
AOHIGFTEEE ©

R-ZZZRFNA=1+H - BEREEES
Eﬁﬁ/ﬂmﬁ%ﬁm&zawET%%IJS?&E%

AR RTRERRA ZHEHEK
1.005%77:;‘@350.01%7‘1 C B AAFR
BT R BRANR 402,305,100,000/ 7T
ARG RERERALR AR

ﬁﬂﬁf\ TfIE/\)E] EL@Z%‘E'JJ&
BRER @ﬁﬁﬁaﬂ9%mmmm%
T MERD 2 & BOAREHAZRIE -

Fi

Bl G:ZTH%\H +HBBZERR
%%-kf % 18 BR B 4> 124,800,000
TC MEBRD 2 SBEAREEHARKE -

i %

AZE—FBERTA+-R  AEEXEW
BAREALEFE2EWNBRARILES
wE((BEEHE])  BEBRERER
(TEZEK] - REEEWHZH - BENRE
i IE 2 & M & A &) BL 35 1,385,170,068 1%
AMREER 2RI - REE &
A BEREARFER,018,100,0007%
T R-_ZE—ZTFNA=+—8 " KE
TR MAHBAIRRELRZ AFER
853,800,000/8 7T - HR B ZEFRHE
BNAREEZREAR  REBHER
PR BHEFERBRE RS o Flt + &
& BB R IEE A i 25 R 4> 8,100,000 7
JL + iR 2 EAb RIS AR £ 58

R-ZE—ZF+ATNBR=-ZT—ZF
+=ZA=+—8 A&EE—FHKHBEA
A — B IEIERR AR IR D B 5T 3 57 R 5 & 8%
([E=ex]) R BT - BT
BRK 4T A EMELREBEZ D

IRER BN o RSB fERIEE R AE = 0
80,900,000/ 7T R E AR RS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R RAR M ()

36 Borrowings — Group 36 fER—AEKE

2010 2009
—E—FF —EENF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEATT

Non-current ERE
Bank borrowings RITERK 2,463.3 2,775.2
Other loans H &0 72.0 88.3
Finance lease liabilities BEHEAE 86.4 82.4
Loans from non-controlling shareholders FEIERG AR R B X 320.9 384.2
2,942.6 3,330.1

Current TRED

Bank borrowings RITE 672.1 382.1
Other loans HmER 62.8 74.9
Finance lease liabilities MEHEAE 4.9 9.2
739.8 466.2
Total borrowings R 3,682.4 3,796.3

Bank borrowings are secured by the investment properties, prepaid
land lease payments, properties, plant and equipment, toll road
income, properties under development, properties held for sale, trade
receivables and pledged deposits of the Group (Notes 16, 17, 18, 19,
20, 28, 30 and 32), certain of which are also secured by the corporate
guarantee provided by the Company or its subsidiary.

(@  The maturity of bank borrowings and other loans at the balance

RITERAAKE 2 REYE - BN LHE

=

g

Y% - ez KR

WB REEWA -

BRTWE {’Eﬁ’%FHﬁZ%¥ AR

NIBERES
2028

FEMBA

(@ IRITERREMERRNA

RV AR (716 - 17~ 18~ 19~
3032) ' ERE ?Iﬁﬁrmﬁ
AR MH 2 D EREBIEEIT -

EHEH 225

sheet date is as follows: B -
Secured bank borrowings Unsecured other loans Total
BERRITE EERHMER a5
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
“2-2F  STTNE CE-%F ITAF SE-2F CIES
HKS$ Million HKS$ Milion ~ HKS Million HKS$ Milion ~ HK$ Million HKS Million
BEET BEAT BEET BEAT BEET BEAT
Within one year —ER 672.1* 382.1 62.8 749 734.9 457.0
In the second year F_F 276.1 371.5 20.0 19.2 296.1 390.7
In the third to fifth year FoEEERF 746.3 768.3 40.5 51.3 786.8 819.6
Atter the fifth year ka2t 1,440.9 1,635.4 1.5 17.8 1,452.4 1,663.2
3,135.4 3,157.3 134.8 163.2 3,270.2 3,320.5
* Included in the balance was an amount of HK$192.5 million (2009: * 4548 15 £ %8192,500,00078 7T (=

Nil) which was classified as short term liability (irrespective of its
repayment schedules stipulated in the loan agreements), as the
loan agreements include a repayment on demand clause. This is to
comply with Hong Kong Interpretation 5 “Presentation of financial
statements - classification by the borrower of a term loan that
contains a repayment on demand clause” as stated in Note 2.1.
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36 Borrowings — Group (continued) 36 fER—AEKE )
The Group has finance lease liabilities at the balance sheet date as b) REER AEBEzmEHESEN
follows: T &

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNEF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEAT

Gross finance lease liabilities MEREaERE - EBEHE

— minimum lease payments
Within one year —FR 10.8 10.0
In the second year L _F 11.1 10.3
In the third to fifth year F=FEFERF 35.3 32.7
After the fifth year AFE 711 79.3
128.3 182.8
Future finance charges on finance leases BMEME 2 RREEE A (37.0) (40.7)
Present value of finance lease liabilities FEHEEE2HE 91.3 91.6
The present value of finance lease liabilites BEHEEBBEZIRENT :
is as follows:

Within one year —&FR 4.9 9.2
In the second year F_4F 5.6 9.0
In the third to fifth year F=FEFERF 21.3 25.6
After the fifth year h & 59.5 47.8
91.3 91.6

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBIRRME(E)

The loans from non-controlling shareholders are unsecured,

(€ BEFEEBRRZERSEER 25

interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment. The balance is NEETEENE - sRFEUARES
mainly denominated in Renminbi. (ERS
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as d) REERZEEMENT
follows:
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNEF
HK$ RMB HK$ RMB
BT ARE BT AR
Bank borrowings SRITIERR 0.9%  5.31%-6.53% 08%  5.31%-6.53%
Other loans HiER - 3.05%-5.00% - 2.55%-24.00%

BRER (ZR) GRATF o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mE MR (&)

36 Borrowings — Group (continued) 36 fER—AEKE )
(e)  The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the ) ERZEmMER N YEEE

following currencies:

2010 2009
—E—FF ZEENF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEETT
Hong Kong dollars T 56.6 135.7
Renminbi AR 3,625.8 3,660.6
3,682.4 3,796.3
() The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities: () REBE NV ABHEREZE -
2010 2009
—E—FF ZEENF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEAT
Floating rate SFENFR
— expiring within one year —R—FREIH 200.0 -
— expiring beyond one year — R —F185|H 413.5 -
613.5 -
The undrawn facility expiring within one year is an annual facility R—FRI Bz RBAEERFERE
subject to review during 2011. 8 AR ——FHETERH -
37 Trade and other payables 37 BEAERMREAELK
Group Company
rEE 2N
2010 2009 2010 2009
—Z-ZF —EThE —Z-2F —TTNF

HKS$ Million ~ HK$ Milion ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Milion
BEET BEAT HEET BEAT

Trade payables FERBRFR 41.4 40.6 - -
Retention payables JERTRE K5 27.4 27.9 - =
Other payables and accruals Hit R & A& 833.2 965.2 10.3 62.5

902.0 1,033.7 10.3 62.5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

37 Trade and other payables (continued)

(@)

(©

At 31 December 2010, retention payables for contracts in
progress amounting to HK$32.9 million (2009: HK$33.2 million)
were included in non-current payables and current other
payables, depending on their expected date of payment.

The ageing analysis of trade payables at year end was as follows:

37

A RAR M ()

e BRI R LAt R ()

@ RZZE—ZTF+-_A=+—H T
TiEE 4 2 FERE 5/ 8832,900,000
B (ZZE T NF : 33,200,000/ 7T)
SRR FEENKE - 7 AIERS
FER R E B RS R o

b)) MNEHEB - BNERKZEE DTN

™

Group

AREEE
2010 2009
i —ETNE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBTT BEAT
0 to less than 2 months ZE=PR2M@A 5.7 8.6
2 to less than 6 months 2Z= L6 A 3.0 0.6
6 to less than 12 months 62 L 12{E A 0.8 0.5
12 months and more 1218 B K& AE 31.9 30.9
41.4 40.6

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables
are denominated in the following currencies:

(€ ARBEEMERREMENTZKRE
BERATERIIE :

2010 2009

—E-EF —ETNF

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEBT BEAT

Hong Kong dollars BT 148.6 186.3
Renminbi ARHE 753.4 847.4
902.0 1,033.7

In 2009, the change of fair value amounting to HK$28.8 million
for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss has been
recognised as part of the reversal of impairment losses on
prepaid land lease payments. As of 31 December 2010, the fair
value of the respective financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss is HK$264.9 million (2009: HK$266.3 million).

d R=ZZFZTNF  RAFEEEZRY
IRz &R E EAQF{EE 28,800,000
BITEBRAERLEEMN L HAER
BEEEIS R _ZT—ZTF+_A
=+—H RAFEEEBZRIEZ
£ B8 E R F(E5264,900,0007%8 7T
(ZEZNHF : 266,300,00077T) °

BEER (ER) ARAE o —T-THEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mE KRR (&)

38 Deferred income tax liabilities 38

The deferred income tax liabilities recognised and movements are as

EEFSHAE
ERRZEEFEHAERLBHNT *

follows:
Group
A HEE
Fair value Adjustments
adjustments on prepaid
on investment land lease
properties payments Other items Total
Taff i
REMZE HEXK
NEEFE NHEFHE HIER k]
HK$ Million HK$ Million HKS$ Million HKS$ Million
BEBT BEBT BEBT BEBT
At 1 January 2009 RZEZNF—HA—H 61.5 711.5 3.9 776.9
Currency translation differences [N & =% (0.7) 0.6 - 0.1)
Adoption of HKAS 40 RNEB SR
Amendment FAORIERTA 353.3 (353.3) = =
Charged/(credited) to income PERRNG(GTA)
statement (Note 12) (Fitzx12) 261.5 72.4 (0.5) 333.4
At 31 December 2009 RZZZTNEF
+=-A=+—H 675.6 431.2 3.4 1,110.2
At 1 January 2010 RZZE—ZF—H—H 675.6 431.2 3.4 1,110.2
Currency translation differences B} & =% 39.9 17.9 0.1 57.9
Capitalised in properties under ~ REBEHYERFTER
development - (7.4) - (7.4)
Credited to income statement RE&ERTAME12)
(Note 12) (37.1) (4.8) (1.0) (42.9)
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZF
+=A=+—-H 678.4 436.9 2.5 1,117.8

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefits
through the future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not
recognise deferred income tax assets of HK$345.5 million (2009:
HK$234.4 million) in respect of tax losses of HK$1,664.7 million (2009:
HK$1,194.6 million) to carry forward against future taxable income.
These tax losses have no expiry dates except for the tax losses of
HK$875.5 million (2009: HK$480.0 million) which will expire at various
dates up to and including 2015 (2009: 2014).
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1,194,600,000 7% 7T ) HE 3R IE & £ 15 75 18
& fE 345,500,000 L (Z T T N F ¢
234,400,000 7T ) Al fE 4588 - R DAK 8H
A& ERBIUA o 7% 55118 B 18 30 4% 3 57
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e MBERRMEE(E)

Derivative liability 39 pTAETEER
A subsidiary of the Group allotted and issued 300,000,000 convertible AEB—ERBARR=ZE—ZFF+—A
preference shares at HK$0.65 each on 23 November 2010 to T+ =BNUER065BTTATPGH B A Al
STAR Butterfly Energy Ltd (“STAR”), a subsidiary of TPG. STAR STAR Butterfly Energy Ltd([STAR)#c % K
may at any time during 4 years following the completion of the initial #£173800,000,000 8% AT #2f% 2 5E I% - STAR
investment require the subsidiary to issue to them up to a maximum of AR TERK HI 2P 1 B 18 4 I BE R 2 Kz T 8
260,000,000 additional preference shares at a price of HK$0.75 per R AIA IR E ER%0.7578 T 2 Big M H 31T
each preference share. Derivative liability represented the subscription % % 260,000,000 Z8IMBSEIE - HTET A
right granted to STAR, and was fair valued at 31 December 2010. BEEETSTARZRERE - YR —F
F+—A=+—HEAFE-
Amount due to a shareholder 40 BEN—BRFENRIE
At 31 December 2009, the amount due to a shareholder was RZZBZNF+_A=+—H EN—ER
unsecured, interest bearing at the Hong Kong dollar prime rate plus 2% RRELAEERA - BB THEFNEN2%
per annum and repayable on demand. The balance was denominated FTENEER(EE - SHUBITEHE ©
in Hong Kong dollars.
Commitments — Group M EE-KE
(@) Capital commitments (@) BEARERIE
Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date but not yet REEHE B EAEERMARES 2 E AR
incurred is as follows: SR UNNE
2010 2009
—E-FF ZETNEF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT AEAT
(i)  Capital commitments undertaken () FEEZ ELXEE
by the Group
(@ Property, plant and equipment @ W - W KR
— Contracted but not provided for — BRIKVEAREE 73.2 108.5
— Authorised but not contracted for —ERREERETA 322.3 309.3
(b) Property development projects () YFERZEIEE
— Contracted but not provided for — B ETA B REHE 364.5 357.9
— Authorised but not contracted for —BEEERITA 5.2 =
765.2 775.7
(i) Capital commitments undertaken (i) EN Al EFFEIE
by the jointly controlled entities
Property development projects YZEREIER
Contracted but not provided for AIHERRAER
— the Group’s share eI EB D 1ERE M 139.6 141.6

BEER (ER) ARAE o —T-TEER
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41 Commitments — Group (continued)

(b) Commitments under operating leases
The aggregate future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of land and buildings are
as follows:

M EE-FB e

(b) RIEBEEHEZEE
BEERLIE ST TR
BEZRRBERS@BENT :

2010 2009

—T-%F —TENF

HKS$ Million HKS$ Million

BEBT BEBTT

No later than 1 year —FR 12.5 10.1
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years —FZE R 40.7 30.6
Later than 5 years BiEAF 55.8 51.6
109.0 92.3

(¢) Future minimum rental receivable
The future aggregate minimum rental receivable under non-

() ARRZEEWHEE
BT TR 2 KRR

cancellable operating leases is as follows: IS BRET -
2010 2009
—E-TF ZEENF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEAT
No later than 1 year —FR 59.9 76.8
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years —FZE R FE 120.1 115.2
Later than 5 years BiERF 14.5 22.0
194.5 214.0

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The lease runs for an initial period of one to ten
years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. Lease payments are usually increased annually to
reflect market rentals. No contingent rent was recognised during
the year (2009: Nil).
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Contingent liabilities — Group

The Group’s investment property located in Shenzhen, the PRC is
subject to housing facility fund pursuant to <;EHIEE B REEEY
S E 1B EM> adopted on 1 November 1994. Contingent liabilities of
RMB75.8 million (equivalent to approximately HK$89.7 million) (2009:
RMB75.8 million (equivalent to approximately HK$86.1 million)) arising
in this respect have been assessed by management with reference to
the legal opinion previously obtained. Management have requested
relief from the relevant local government authorities on the grounds
that certain amounts of maintenance costs were already spent for the
purposes as specified under the requirement of housing facility fund,
hence no further provision for the fund is considered necessary. The
case is still under local government review.

Related party transactions

Other than the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the material related party transactions during the
year were:

42

43

AT RAR M ()

FREE-FE

BER—NNANFE+—A—BEAZCRY
KERREEBYWEBTEKM) - AEB
R BFY 2 — B EMEZRREE AR
REEAES  c EEECRSEZREREZ
FREEAE  FERHEECZSIAEEAA
R # 75,800,000 7T ( ) #8 & 72 89,700,000 7%
) (ZZEZNAF  AR¥T75,800,0007T (4948
E86,100,00057T)) - BEREREEEAR
AEEEAESHERATEE BN AET
REKATEE - BHEEC RHEEE R
BIREESENR  ANERADELHESE
H—SRME - SRS IEF T ERTER -

BB AR5

Rt S R E AR D1 5E 2 R 5 R AR
SN FANRILZBERAEALR ST

2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million
FaE BEET AEAT
Income from supply of water to REARESESSREEFR AT
Jinhai Paper Pulping Industrial ([&8 )k zA
Company Limited (“Jinhai”) (a) 34.8 241
Consultancy fee paid ENERE (o) (7.0) (5.2)
Interest expense paid on shareholders’ 215 A& 5 & 7 A B RS2
loans
- Creator Holdings Limited (“‘Creator’) ~ —&liE&BAR AT ([AlZ]) © (5.6) (2.1)
— Genesis Capital Group Limited —ERIEEEBERAT(ZEESD)
(“Genesis”) (d) (32.1) =
Notes: BEE

(@ Yangpu Water Supply Company Limited, a subsidiary of which 65% equity
interest held by the Group, entered into a water supply agreement and a
supplemental agreement with Jinhai, a company indirectly controlled by
the Oei family, for a period of three years commencing from 1 January
2009. Income from Jinhai was conducted on terms as set out in the
agreement and the supplemental agreement governing this transaction.

@)  ANEEFA6s% A M B A EH

HRBRAEELREREREEEZESZ
REIERERI MK GBE R RS - B
ZTENF—A—RERH=F - KALE
ZWADRBEEREINIAR S 2 Hh#E kAT
THh et 2 RARETT

BEER (ER) ARAE o —T-TEER
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43 Related party transactions (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(®)

On 2 March 2009, the Group entered into a consultancy services
agreement with a company controlled by an Executive Director of the
Company, who was appointed to hold that office on 4 September 2009
and resigned with effect from 20 December 2010, pursuant to which a fee
was paid by the Group on a monthly basis for the provision of consultancy
services rendered.

43 BEEHERZ @)
M ()

(®)

“TTNF=ZA"H  AREEARE]—

%iﬁlﬁé%(f&ﬁ"_?ghihﬁ LIS S5

ERR-_ZE—TF+-A= +E|i%ﬂ£u2
B%) I%UZ/ATJ_LEEE:E]HEJ%T%

AN K%@?ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ@%%?%ﬁﬁﬁHW%EZH

H%& -

In November 2009, the Company entered into a revolving loan agreement © RIZZEZENFT—A AAREARQFE
with Creator (a company owned as to 50% by Mr. Oei Kang, Eric), one of BRI 2 —8lE (A A RI50% R E R =R 5
the substantial shareholders of the Company, under which the Company RN EIRE RS 0 Bt - ARF]
might borrow up to HK$800.0 million for a period of thirty-six months from A]RERR % 1% B HAREAT36E A B AfE A
the date of the agreement. The loan was unsecured, carried interest at % % 800,000,000/8 T ° % FE KA EIK
the Hong Kong dollar prime rate plus 2% per annum and was repayable B IRB TR ERNEREGEMN2%TE R E
on demand. BREE -
The interest was paid on terms as set out in the agreement. There was MERZhZEABIEREZT - HEZT—
no outstanding loan balance as at 31 December 2010 (2009: HK$362.1 THETZA=1+—H @ WERERERE
million). #BH(ZZFZNF : 362,100,0007%T) °
In June 2010, the Company entered into a supplemental agreement @ RZZE—ZFA A AARERQFEE
with Genesis, one of the substantial shareholders of the Company, Rz —ERIFT M e - LMSET R
for amending and supplementing the revolving loan agreement dated REBA—TT+F+ANBZBRER
8 October 2007, under which the Company might borrow up to ek o Bt - AARIAIR LM A AT
HK$1,000.0 million for a period of ninety-six months from the date of the TEF+A/\NBZ2ER H# A #iesto6(d
said loan agreement dated 8 October 2007. The loan is unsecured and A EBRE A E A& %1,000,000,000/8 7T ° %
carries interest at the Hong Kong dollar prime rate plus 2% per annum. REET - B TREENEMN2%
The Company is required to repay the loan and accrued interest thereon ZEREFT R o AR RIZAER E it F E
at the expiry of the said agreement. AR EEERREFFIE
The interest was paid on terms as set out in the agreement. There was no MERMZAEIETH A - RZZETAEF
outstanding loan balance as at 31 December 2009 and 2010. =T —ZTFF+-A=1+—BHUEKREE
ERREE o
Key management compensation (e) FE2EBENE 2FE
2010 2009
—ZE-ZF —EThE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET ABEAT
Director’s fees EEYoka 1.7 1.9
Salary and other benefits 4 REMEF 29.0 29.4
Employer’s contribution to pension scheme RIS 82 BEHEK 0.1 0.1
Share option benefits EERRREE T 2.5 5.8
33.3 37.2
On 7 September 2009, the Group disposed of its entire equity interest 0] RZZEZNFNAER AEENBRSE

in Yangpu Jingang Real Estate Company Limited to Jinhai, a company
indirectly controlled by the Oei family, at the cash consideration of
approximately RMB28.3 million (equivalent to approximately HK$32.1
million). The consideration was determined after arm’s length negotiations
between the parties mainly with reference to the market value of the land.
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44 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement 44 FEBRESRERMNTE
(@) Reconciliation of operating (loss)/profit to net (@) K& (EE) TEFEELE X
cash used in operations T AR FRE 2 ¥R
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBET BEAT
(Loss)/profit before income tax FTSRiRn (&518), & F (414.0) 2,036.2
Finance income HIEUA (18.9) (11.1)
Depreciation and amortisation e R 119.2 151.3
Employee share option benefits (Note 11) BB HEIRERA (FHaE11) (4.8) 28.1
Fair value adjustments on investment WEMENTFERE
properties 98.9 (1,085.4)
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment losses & 2 Fi{E &5 18~ B,/ (#[E])
on assets (Note 7) (MI7E7) 38.0 (403.0)
Write back of provision for eI LA NS IH B
— impairment losses on trade receivables — RSB E B IR - (1.3)
— management fee for vacant units —MEEEENEEE
in properties = (65.6)
Gain on the completion of liquidation B A R)EE&TTHK Z Wt
of subsidiaries - (24.3)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENTB A R - (7.2)
Gain on deemed disposal of equity interest 18 {EH & — [E1H = A B AR AN FE 28
in an associated company W z§ = (5.7)
Net exchange gain b W e F /R (1.0) (12.8)
Gain on disposal of property, HEMEE - 2R MR ERE
plant and equipment (11.9) (2.6)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEMHREESMEEZEE
financial assets - 0.1
Provision for impairment loss on properties  {E$5%E Fid 2 W5 BB 1B S
held for sale = 5.8
Write down of inventories FEHRUR - 4.2
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets BEAFEEERRIECERMEE
at fair value through profit or loss and ETETABEATFEE),
derivative liability, net B8 FE (13.5) 0.9
Finance costs BE AN 225.6 183.5
Share of profits less losses of associated e N B A ES 12
companies (89.9) (44.2)
Share of profits less losses of jointly EihEE AR RARER
controlled entities 14.9 (810.9)
Operating loss before working capital EEESHEFIK L EIR
changes (57.4) (64.0)
Increase in properties under development  ZEFE R ¥ IE N (143.8) (80.1)
Increase in prepaid land lease payments FEfT LA EFE N (3.4) (0.9)
Decrease in properties held for sale EHER®R 2 WER D 161.5 52.3
Decrease in inventories FERL 0.8 26.1
Decrease in trade and other receivables JFEE AT B 0 e 2 A LK RO 44.5 70.1
Decrease in other non-current payables and  ELfh FE57 B e 1~ FRUA 2 FE ST BR 30 &2
trade and other payables H{th FE 0m A (102.5) (126.7)
Increase in non-controlling interests FEIE A RE 25 1 N 2.3 2.2
Cash used in operations EEFARS (98.0) (121.0)
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44 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement contivesy 44

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries

mEEERERMTE )
(b) HEMBLDT

2009
—ZETNF
HK$ Million
BEBTT
Net assets disposed: FrHEEEFE -
Intangible assets mAE 24.8
Prepaid land lease payments TEft LA &K 16.4
Properties under development BRI 15.3
Property, plant and equipment Y - e RS 0.2
Cash and cash equivalents Be MRS EEY 4.1
Trade and other payables JE A BR TR K H At FE TR (0.8)
Non-controlling interests FEFE R 2 (12.7)
47.3
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEH B ARz e 7.2
Consideration KB 54.5
Satisfied by: ATFIA A
Cash consideration HERE 34.4
Receivable FEUGK 201
54.5

(c) Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of disposal of

subsidiaries

) FELEMBARZREER
BEeSEYRAFRDMN

2009
—ETNF
HK$ Million

BEET

Cash consideration

Cash and cash equivalents disposed

ReHE
L EREREEEEY

34.4
(4.1)

30.3

168  HKC (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2010



45

46

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Events after the reporting period

On 2 March 2011, Dorboy Investment Limited, an 80%-owned
subsidiary of the Group entered into a Disposal Framework Agreement
with an independent third party for disposal of its entire equity interest,
loan interests and liabilities in Shenzhen Jing-Guang Development
Company Limited which is the owner of Jingguang Centre at Yanhe
Road North, Luohu, Shenzhen, the PRC. The total amount of
consideration is RMB850.0 million. The completion is expected to
occur in or around the last quarter of 2011.

Non-current assets held for sale

The assets and liabilities related to disposal group of non-current assets
(part of the property investment and leasing segment) as stated in Note
45 have been presented as held for sale.

45

46

A RAR M ()

2HRMEREE

M-ZT——F=A"H KAEEHEHE0%Z
HEBAREREEGRAR B LE=T
S HEERGH  HERNRERRERA
Al IR ANIERS  BRESRARE R
RE AR BRI LB =B O 2
B A - #2RE A ARKS50,000,0007T ° H
B ERBER S — F&E =T
52 °

FEHEZIFRBEE
FisEasHT BRI BB RBEE(BHY

ERENMEN ) 2 BERABRFEL
EEEEE

(@) Assets of disposal group classified as held for () BEFENEEANEE
sale
2010 2009
—T-TF —ZTTHhF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEAT
Investment properties REME 1,009.9 -
Property, plant and equipment VI - R R 0.8 -
Trade and other receivables JFEE AT B 0 e L FE LKL R 0.8 =
Cash and cash equivalents HeERBESEED 11.3 =
1,022.8 -
(b) Liabilities of disposal group classified as held b) BEFENEEANER
for sale
2010 2009
—E-FF ZZETNF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEBTT BEBIT
Other payables E M E R 41.5 =
Bank borrowing IRITIER 168.1 =
Other loan EER 76.0 =
285.6 -
At 31 December 2010, certain investment properties with RZZB—ZTFF+_A=+—H ATEEYD

carrying value of HK$698.2 million (2009: Nil) was pledged as
securities against the bank borrowing.

% IR {5698,200,000/8 T (Z T L5 ¢
) B RLIRTTIE FVEHRA -

BRER (R) ARAR o —T—TFFRH
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46 Non-current assets held for sale (continued)

() Cumulative income or expense recognised
in other comprehensive income relating to

46 FHFHEZFRBEE @)

(C) B\/\{mﬁﬁl‘lﬂkﬁwuﬁﬁajﬁ'
EHEER v EEEHME

disposal group classified as held for sale HWA 2 25T A S
2010 2009
—E-FF ZZETNEF
HKS$ Million  HK$ Milion
BEBT BEAT
Currency translation differences PEHmEEEE 73.6 =

47 Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures as set out in the consolidated financial
statements and the related notes thereto have been reclassified to
conform with the current year’s presentations which was changed
largely due to the adoption of new accounting standards.

HKC (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2010

47 LEREF

N AP RER AR 2B TH&RE
FOEHNE - EEFRAFEHERTAR
BB AFEE2RHAEH -



Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Jointly
Controlled Entities

TEHBAT  BEAIREEAT

FRESIEFRAHARBRE ST+
AST—RLFEEER, JAEIEEYE

TEWBAF  BEAARAERRE -

Listed below are the principal subsidiaries, associated companies and jointly
controlled entities which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the
result and/or net assets of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010.

1 Principal subsidiaries 1 FENRBRLF
Place of
incorporation/operation and Issued share capital/ Group’s effective
Name kind of legal entity Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
AL SRR BRARE/ r5E2
£ gign IBRH EffiExR ERRARSR
2010 2009 2010 2009
2% SERNF BB CEENR
(@ Investment holding
REER
China Harvest Holdings Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS$1,000,000 HK$1,000,000 5% 75%™
hTEBERAR: BA/h RELR 1,00000087%  1,000000%7
Dorboy Investment Limited Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS$1,000 HK$1,000 80% 80%
EERABRAR) EE/m REARR 100057 1,000
Eden Investment Group Limited+ British Virgin Islands/PRC Investment holding US$1 US$1 59.18% 100%
FEREEEERAR ABRIES /P REBR (E0 1%
HKC (China) Management Company PRC Provision of management US$8,000,000 US$6,000,000 100% 100%
Limited? Wholly foreign-owned enterprise services in the PRC
BEER(TE) ERERAR hEIEEELR B EE R 8000,00057%  6,000,000%7
HKC Guilin Expressway Gompany Limited Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS1 HKS$1 100% 100%
BERRENRRARARAR! &/ RARR 187 187
HKC Infrastructure (Holdings) Limited:* British Virgin Islands/PRC Investment holding Usst US$1 100% 100%
BERRERRE(AR) BB AR ABRIES /P REBR 1% 157
HKC (Nanxun) Holdings Limited? Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS2 HK$2 100% 100%
BEER(B2) BMERERAR: &b/ RER 2B 28T
HKC Property Investments (China) Limited+ British Virgin Islands/PRC Investment holding Usst USS$1 100% 100%
BERRNERE(PE)ERARH RERRES /T RARR %71 1%7
HKC Shenyang Heping Investments Limiteds  Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS1 HKS$1 100% 100%
BERREBNTRERRAR &/ RARR 187 127
HKC Shenyang Hunan Investments Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS$1 HK$1 100% 100%
BhRREGEEREARAR! B/ REBR 18T 1%

BRER (ZR) GRATF o
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Jointly Controlled Entities (Continued)
FEMBAR - BEATREE AT (E)

1 Principal subsidiaries ontinueq) FENMB QT
Place of
incorporation/operation and Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name kind of legal entity Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
HEL/ SR RAR BRTRA/ r5E2
£ £ TTEE EffEER ERRER
2010 2009 2010 2009
~T-2% “EENE ZE-TE CETAE
(@) Investment holding (Continued)
REER(E)
HKC (Yangpu) Water Supp\y Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$10,000 HK$10,000 100% 100%
BRRR(EEKERAR &/ HE BESR 10,0087 1000047
HKE (Chongging) Holdings Limited* British Virgin Islands/PRC Investment holding Usst US$1 100% 100%
RERSES/HE REBR {ET 1%
HKE (Danjinghe) Wind Power Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$4 HKS4 59.18% 93.53%
BEoR (B B ARAR &5/ HE REER 48T 4B
Hong Kong Construction (interior Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$10,000 HK$10,000 100% 100%
Contracting) Limited &/ RELR 10,0007 10,0007
BARR(REIR)ARAR)
Hong Kong Construction Tianjin TuanPoHu ~ Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1 HKS1 100% 100%
Investment Limited* &i/9E REER 187 1371
BARRREEARRARRARY
Hong Kong Energy (Holdlings) Limited-® Cayman Islands/PRC Investment holding HK$8,570,600 HK$7,725,922 59.18% 7411%
EEAR (R AR AT REHE/HE BERR 85706008  7,725920%T
Hong Kong Energy (Holdings) Limited** British Virgin Islands/PRC Investment holding Us$t US$1 100% 100%
BbR(ER)ERAR RERAES/PE REBR 1%£57 1%
Hong Kong New Energy (Si Zi Wang Qi) Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$2 HK$2 59.18% 100%
Wind Power Limitedt Bk /HE RARR 27 2R
BAAaR (IF ) B RRAR:
Hong Kong New Energy (Si Zi Wang Qi ) Wind - Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1,000 HK$1,000 59.18% 74.11%
Power Limited E#/m RABR 100057 1,000
AR (T E BB AR AT
Ivy Garden Investments Limited* British Virgin Islands/PRC Investment holding US$1 USS$1 100% 100%
RERLES/PE REER 11 1%
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Jointly Controlled Entities (Continued)
FEWBATE  BELTREGE QT (&)

1 Principal subsidiaries ontinueq) 1 TENEBAE @
Place of
incorporation/operation and Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name kind of legal entity Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
HEL/ SR RAR BRTRA/ r5E2
£ Rl TTEE EffEER ERRER
2010 2009 2010 2009
e
(@) Investment holding (Continued)
REER(E)
Karbony Investment Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$10,000,000 HK$10,000,000 100% 100%
BiE/ RAHR 10,000,000 10,000,007
Noble Quest Enterprise Limited? British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong  Investment holding US$1 US$1 100% 100%
RERSHS/ B REBR {ET 1%
Sinoriver International Limited:* British Virgin Islands/PRC Investment holding US$1 US$1 59.18% 100%
| BB AR AR RERAES/PE REER 171 1%
The Legation Quarter Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$82,105,263 HK$82,105,263 70.9% 70.9%
MAREAEERARAR: B/ REBR 82,105,263 82,105263% 7
(b) Property investment
NERE
Hong Kong Construction (Ching) Engineering ~ PRC Investment in shopping mall of US$85,500,000 13$85,500,000 100% 100%
Company Limited* Wholly foreign-owned South Ocean Centre, 85,500,000 70 85,500,000% 7T
BARR(ME) TRERAE enterprise Shenzhen, the PRC
HENNGEELE RETEMImEERLNES
Karbony Real Estate Development PRC Investment in offices, and US$155,000,000  US$155,000,000 100% 100%
(Shenzhen) Company Limited* Wholly foreign-owned shopping mall of Shun Hing ~~ 155,000,000%7% 155,000,003 7T
TERRERR ) ER AT enterprise Square, Shenzhen, the PRC
RENEEERE RERERYMERESR
Shenzhen Jing-Guang Development PRC Investment in offices, HK$230,000,000  HK$230,000,000 80% 80%
Company Limited-+#* Wholly foreign-owned apartments and shopping 230,000,000  230,000,000%7C
MIREERERAT enterprise mall of Jing Guang Centre,
PEEBERE Shenzhen, the PRC
FETERMRERLE
HAE  FEEM RES
EBER (BR) BRAR ¢ —T—TFFHR
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Jointly Controlled Entities (Continued)
FEWB AT BELTREGE QT (E)

1 Principal subsidiaries (contineq) 1 FENBLAR®
Place of
incorporation/operation and Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name kind of legal entity Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
HEL/ SR RAR BRARE/ AEEZ
£ Rl B EffEER ERRAES
2010 2009 2010 2009
A
(b) Property investment (Continued)
NERE(E)
Sky Universe Limited® British Virgin Islands/PRC Property holding of /F., US$1 US$1 100% 100%
ERRAHE/hE Tower 1 South Seas Centre, 17 E5
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
RENNERNERDE
BT LB 2 E
RIABTERER)ERER AR PRC Investment in property for USS$10,660,000  US$10,660,000 70.9% 70.9%
Wholly foreign-owned restaurants and retais 10,660,005  10,660,000%C
enterprise in Beijing, the PRC
HESNEBE % RETEL RN IEEE
RZE
() Property development
NEER
Huzhou Nanxun Interational Building Market ~ PRC Development and operation US$48,000,000 1JS848,000,000 100% 100%
Center Company Limited** Wholly foreign-owned of a building materials centre ~ 48,000,000% 7% 48,000,000%7C
ANESERRARA R enterprise in Huzhou, the PRC
HENEBECE RAEANERR
BEREN B
Shanghai Guangtian Real Estate PRC Real estate development in RMB900,000,000  RMB900,000,000 60% 60%
Development Company Limited+ Limited iability company Hongkou District in Shanghai, N AR
LEEREHEREERAR PEEREAAR the PRC 900,000,0007 900,000,0007C

R LTI NRREFLE
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Jointly Controlled Entities (Continued)
FEWBATE  BELTREGE QT (&)

1 Principal subsidiaries (contineq) 1 FENBLAR®
Place of
incorporation/operation and Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name kind of legal entity Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
HEL/ SR RAR BRARE/ AEEZ
£ Rl B EffEER ERRAES
2010 2009 2010 2009
“$-3F  CIWE CI-FE SIS
(c) Property development (Continued)
NEERE)
Tianjin Jingang Real Estate Investment PRC Real estate development in RMB500,000,000  RMB500,000,000 5% 75%™
Company Limited** Limited liabiity company Nankai District in Tianjin, the ARE  AR®500,000,0007
RAMEAEFRABRAR HEERALAR PRC 500,000,007
RPERETERE
REREHE
Tianjin Renai Properties Development Company ~ PRC Real estate development in HK$304,200,000  HK$304,200,000 100% 100%
Limited+ Wholly foreign-owned Tuanbo Lake of Jinhai County ~ 304,200,0007%  304,200,000/7C
REMCEEXERERAT enterprise in Tianjin, the PRC
PESNEBA LR RPERETHES
BRfRERLE
Tianjin Ruigang Enterprise Management PRC Real estate development in HK$690,000,000  HK$690,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limited+* Wholly foreign-owned Tianjin, the PRC 690,000,000 690,000,000/7C
REMRALEERERAT* enterprise RBRETHERE
PESNEBA LR
REEX(ER)ERARFN PRC Real estate development at HK$500,000,000  HK$500,000,000 100% 100%
Wholly foreign-owned Nanjing North Road in Heping ~ 500,000,0007C  500,000,0007 7%
enterprise District in Shenyang, the PRC
PENEEELE ReEERTATRERILE
FERILE
EREX(ER)BRARFN PRC Real estate development at HK$928,000,000  HK$928,000,000 100% 100%
Wholly foreign-owned Ningbo Road in Heping District  928,000,0007  928,000,0007C
enterprise in Shenyang, the PRC
PENFEELE ReEEGETATEERE
FERILE
BEEROIM)MEERARAT PRC Real estate development in RMB  RMB1,050,000 100% 100%
Wholly foreign-owned Jiangmen, the PRC 259,581,206.16 ARE
enterprise KB IFTRERE AR 1,050,000
RESEBALE 259,581,206.167C

BRER (ZR) GRATF o

T TFFR
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Jointly Controlled Entities (Continued)
FEWB AT BELTREGE QT (E)

1 Principal subsidiaries (continued)

1 FEMELR®

HKC (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2010

venture

mERaERR

water supply services in
Yangpu Economic
Development Zone,

Hainan, the PRC
EERRERKRIERIEAR
oK e

181,285,7147

Place of
incorporation/operation and Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name kind of legal entity Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
HEL/ SR RAR BRARE/ AEEZ
£ Rl B EffEER ERRAES
2010 2009 2010 2009
S3-3F  CEEAF CR-3F CREf
(d) Infrastructure and altemative energy
HERERER
Asia Wind Power (Mudanjiang) Company PRC Wind Power project in HK$100,000,000  HK$100,000,000 50.89% 86%
Limited Sino-foreign equity joint Heilongjiang, the PRC 100,000,000 100,000,000%7C
EHENEEHAT)BRAR- venture RPEEETE
HERIEERE EMEEE
Chongaing Huangiu Petrochemical Company ~ PRC Investment in ethanol energy RMB180,470,000  RMB180,470,000 70.65% 70.65%
Limiteg* Limited liabiity company business in Chongaing, ARE  AR180,470,0007
EEBRANERAR HEARELAR the PRC. The business is 180,470,0007
currently ceased.
RPEEETRELELR
25 o FERLERL
HKC (Guilin) Expressway Company Limited* ~ PRC Construction and operationofa ~ RMB543,900,000  RMB543,900,000 100% 100%
EERRRARARA A Wholly foreign-owned tolload in Gulin, the PRC on ARE  ARH543,900,0007T
enterprise a Build-Operate- Transfer 543,900,007
RENEBELE contract
RERE-T2-BUARE
BEREE R EREMT
WERH
Hong Kong Wind Power (Muling) Company PRC Wind Power project in HK$150,100,000  HK$150,100,000 51.30% 86.68%
Limiteg* Sino-foreign equity joint Heilongjiang, the PRC 150,100,000 150,100,000% 7
BERNEE(BE)ERAA venture RPEEETE
HERIEERE EMEEEE
Yangpu Water Supply Company Limited:# PRC Operation and maintenance of ~~ RMB181,285,714  RMB181,285,714 65% 65%
HREKEREEARH Sino-foreign equity joint raw water supply faciities and ARE  ARM181,285,71470



Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Jointly Controlled Entities (Continued)
FEWBATE  BELTREGE QT (&)

1 Principal subsidiaries (contineq) 1 FENBRAE %)
Place of
incorporation/operation and Issued share capital/ Group's effective
Name kind of legal entity Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
HEL/ SR RAR BRARE/ AEEZ
£ Rl B EffEER ERRAES
2010 2009 2010 2009
~T-2% ZEINE CE-ZE CEINE
(d) Infrastructure and altemative energy
(Continued)
ERRERRRE)
BEMERL T TR ARARN PRC Wind Power project in RMB166,480,000  RMB166,480,000 5.18% 100%
Sino-foreign equity joint Siziwang Qi, Inner Mongolia, N N
venture the PRC 166,480,00070 166,480,0007C
HEPNEELE HERNFENTEEZ
B%EER
BRI T TR AR AR PRC Wind Power project in RMBS,824,056 RMB8,824,056 5.18% 74.11%
Sino-foreign equity joint Siziwang Qi, Inner Mongolia, AR AR%8,824,0567
venture the PRC 8,824,056
mEPNEELE HERNFENTEEZ
B%EER
(e) Construction/property services
RV
Hong Kong Construction (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Provision of construction HK$150,000,000  HK$150,000,000 100% 100%
Limited & senice 150,000,000 150,000,000%7
BERR(BR) IRERAR RIS
Hong Kong Construction (Ching) Engineering ~ PRC Provision of construction US$85,500,000 US$85,500,000 100% 100%
Company Limitedt* Wholly foreign-owned senvice 8550000057 85,500000%7
EARR(RE) TREARA enterprise RUERRRS
HEANEBE %
Shenzhen Kumagai Property Management PRC Provision of property HK$60,000,000 HK$60,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limiteat Sino-foreign equity joint management service 60,000,004 60,000,000%T
MIEANFERERAR- venture RIIF ERRH
HERSAERE
EEER (ZR) BRAR o —_T—TFFR
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Jointly Controlled Entities (Continued)
FEWB AT BELTREGE QT (E)

2 Principal associated companies 2 FEBENT
Place of
Issued share capital/ incorporation/ Group'’s effective

Name registered capital operation equity interest

BRITRA/ AL AEEZ
#18 HER REhE ERRAER

2010 2009 2010 2009

—E-%F —EENF —£-FF —FThF
(@) Property
LS
Hong Kong Construction SMC Development HK$10,000,000 HK$10,000,000  Hong Kong/PRC 40% 40%
Limitedi+# 10,000,000 7 10,000,000 &%/ HE

BRRRERERBRAA

(b) Hotel management and operation
TEEEREE
Hong Kong Construction Kam Lung Limited+* HK$100,000 HK$100,000  Hong Kong/PRC 45% 45%
100,0007 7 100,00087T BB/ H
(c) Alternative energy
BEHER
CECIC HKC (Gansu) Wind Power Company RMB589,620,000 RMB589,620,000  PRC 23.67% 40%
Limited-# ARME ARHS89,620,000C  H
e AR(HR BN EEERAR 589,620,0007C
CECIC HKC Wind Power Company Limited+* RMB545,640,000 RMB545,640,000  PRC 23.67% 37.41%
hERERENBE (R ) ERAF AR® ARH545640,000r
545,640,0007T
Linyi National Environmental New Energy RMB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000  PRC 23.67% 40%
Company Limited+* AR# AR®100,000,000T #E
BT RIE R BB AR 100,000,0007¢
CECIC HKE Wind Power Company Limited+ RMB323,260,000 RMB323,260,000  PRC 17.75% 22.23%
RERB RN B E (R AR AR AR® AR¥323260,000
323,260,0007T
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Principal Subsidiaries, Associated Companies and Jointly Controlled Entities (Continued)
FEMBAR - BEATREE AT (E)

3 Principal jointly controlled entities 3 FERELNT
Form of business Place of
structure/kind of establishment/ Group’s effective
Name legal entity operation equity interest
EBEEFR REEZ
£ EEEREER BRI/ i i 2 BERRARER
2010 2009
—2-%F ZZENE
Property development
YIZER
Shanghai Jingang North Bund Real  Sino-foreign equity joint PRC 25% 25%
Estate Company Limited+# venture e
EBEBIINEEEBR AR HINE B
Notes: Mt%E
Unofficial English transliterations or translation for identification purposes only MIFEIE T X FRE sk BN REE 4R
+ Interest held by subsidiaries + BEANBAREE
# Not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers # W IER & SRR E B TR BB EZ
c} Hong Kong Energy (Holdings) Limited is listed on the Stock Exchange of S B LR (IR ) AR A RIRBE R AT £

which the stock code is 987.

. The companies are considered as wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Group from the accounting perspective, as the 25% shareholders of such
companies are not entitled to receive any future dividends and sharing of

residual interest.

* On 2 March 2011, the Group entered into a Disposal Framework
Agreement for disposal of Shenzhen Jing-Guang Development Company
Limited as stated in Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A FBERSE

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
“Z2-%F —TThF —ZT)\F el o3 TTF
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HKS Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEBT BEAT BEAT BEAT
Consolidated income statement BEEER
Revenue Wi 499 378 295 706 396
(Loss)/profit before income tax FisBian(&518) /a7 (414) 2,036 (2,921) 945 574
Income tax credit/(expense) FieRiEe, /(i) 18 (334) 111 (99) 4
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE(ER),/ & (396) 1,702 (2,810) 850 578
Non-controling interests IR ER 102 (246) 164 (15) 1
(Loss}/profit attributable to equity holders A2 BIRF #1575 A Bl
of the Company (B18) /%4 (294) 1,456 (2,646) 835 579
Dividends ) - = 122 827 419
Consolidated balance sheet BREESER
Net current assets MBBEFE 1,993 1,608 1,833 5,938 787
Non-current assets FnBEE 16,036 16,562 14,022 10,450 5177
Non-current liabilties ESEIN=Y (4,384) (4,766) (4,273) (3,003) 2,124)
Net assets including non-controlling BEFE
interests (BfEFERER) 13,645 13,404 11,582 13,385 3,840
Share capital AR 104 94 83 82 37
Reserves s 12,398 12,336 10,756 11818118, 3,867
Non-controlling interests R 1,143 974 743 (10) 64)
Total equity e 13,645 13,404 11,582 13,385 3,840
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
“Z-%F —ZTNE ZETN\F e 3 ZETRF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT o BT o BT
Earnings/(loss) per share? SREN/(EB)
- basic —ER (0.028) 0.15 0.27) 0.13 0.18
— diluted —#% (0.029) 0.14 (0.27) 0.13 0.18
Dividend per share BRRE
- attributable to the year —EEER - - - 0.135 0.11
Return on total equity ey b EE (2.9%) 12.7% (24.3%) 6.4% 15.1%
Note: MIsE -

Return on total equity represents profit/loss for the year expressed as a percentage of

the closing total equity for the year concermned.

# Adjusted for the bonus issue approved in 2009 and 2010

HKC (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2010
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Investment properties — Completed

Location

b B

Schedule of Principal Properties

N\ A I 24 —
ZYE—Bik

+ = 5
(as at the date of the annual report)
(RAFHRAH)

REWME-BxMK

Existing use
B A A%

Term of lease
THEH

The shopping mall and all car parking spaces
South Ocean Centre

Dongmen Road Central,

Shenzhen, the PRC

AR BRI T

R R

FE RO

YRS M REES

The shopping mall, all car parking spaces

and 1/F, 2/F and 58/F offices

Shun Hing Square, Di Wang Commercial Centre
No. 5002 Shennan Road East,

Luohu, Shenzhen, the PRC

AR AR BRI T 28 A [

A SR 500255

= EES T RO
BYES - EEESR

118 - 2B RE8BHAE

Various units for restaurants and retails
No. 23 Qianmen

Dong Dajie

Dongcheng

Beijing, the PRC

IR BHE R

BRI TP ER AR 2355 7Y
ZEERBER R TEREN

Various units for retails in Zone B & C,

the construction materials and ornaments mall
Nanxun Economic Development District
Huzhou City

Zhejiang Province, the PRC

L AR BIAT I & M

RS AP R R A

BEREEMHEMBR RCRHNZEESTEMNER

Commercial

[ES

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

GBS

Commercial

EES

Medium

T

Medium
HRH]

Medium
FRH]

Medium

T

BEER (ER) ARAE o —T-TFFH{ 181



Schedule of Principal Properties (Continued)
FEYE-—BXRE)

(as at the date of the annual report)
(RAFRAER)

Properties under development
a) For sale purpose

EELEES

a) FIEERE

(Approx.)
(Approx.) (Approx.)  Attributable
Share-  Stage of Expected year Site area GFA GFA
Location Intendeduse  holding  completion  of completion (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(K#)
(R#) (R#) FEfhg
wEEE EEARE HARRE
bk RERZ R EHER BHERER (EFHX) (ERHX) (ERHX)
A parcel of land along the eastern shore  Residential 100%  Planning stage - 804,000 836,000 836,000
of Tuanbo Lake, Jinhai County, = HREIPLEL
Tianjin, the PRC
R B R M BN R 3
HE—ELT
A parcel of land located south of Honggi  Residential 75%  Construction ~ Phase 1in 2011; 54,000 150,000 113,000
South Road, Nankai District, £ stage Phase 2 and 3in 2013
Tianjin, the PRC TiRER F-HR=F——F .
R B R 2 h E R RALE R K2 FZR=H
—fg 1 RZT—=%
Three parcels of land located at Ningpo  Residential and 100%  Planning stage In 2014 67,000 274,000 274,000
Road, Heping District, retail HEIREL RZE—ME
Shenyang, the PRC FEREE
ARG T AT R
=R
A parcel of land located at north of Residential and 100%  Construction  In phases from 95,000 189,000 189,000
Hong Kong-Macau Pier, Jiangmen, commercial stage 2012 onwards
Guangdong Province, the PRC FEREE TREE W-B——%
R B B R A TP RS Rk 2 D %54
—fg 1
1,412,000
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Schedule of Principal Properties (Continued)
FEYE-—BXRE)

(as at the date of the annual report)

(RAFRAH)
Properties under development (continued) BRPYIZE®)
b) For investment purpose b) ERERZE
(Approx.)
(Approx.) (Approx.)  Attributable
Share- Stage of Expected year of Site area GFA GFA
Location Intended use holding completion  completion (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(R#)
(R#) (R#) EfEE
WEEE EEARRE “mE
2k RERE K ERbEE RN (FHXK) (FHXK) (FHX)
A parcel of land located in the north side ~ Office, hotel and 25% Construction ~ In2014 57,000 250,000 63,000
of the International Passenger retall stage RZE—MEF
Transportation Terminal of Hongkou ~ $AZ EE K TiERER
District, Shanghai, the PRC ZE
IR E gL AR ERRER L
5
A parcel of land located at No.4 Sichuan  Office and 60% Planning stage In 2015 27,000 166,000 93,000
North Road, Hongkou District, commercial RERER RZZE—0%F
Shanghai, the PRC RAEREE
R E EE I ORI L3452
—fE i
A parcel of land located at Nanjing North - Office and 100% Construction I 2014 7,000 95,000 95,000
Road, Heping District, Shenyang, commercial stage RZE-IE
the PRC MAEREE TizR&
R EEGTAMTRERIE 2
—fE i
251,000
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Schedule of Principal Properties (Continued)

FEME-BERGE)

(as at the date of the annual report)

(RAFIHAH)

Properties held for sale

FFSHERZE 2%

(Approx.)
(Approx.) (Approx.) Attributable
Share- Site area GFA GFA
Location Intended use holding (sq-m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(R#K)
(R#K) (R#K) FEAGHEME
WREE EEHAEE BEE
ih B BRERZ PR (EF3K) (EFH3K) (FFH3K)
Various units for retails in Zone B & C, the Commercial 100% 42,000 84,000 84,000
construction materials and ornaments [HES
mall, Nanxun Economic Development
District, Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province,
the PRC
AR BT A 8RN T e A 5 e B [ R R
KEEMHERBE RCRNZEERE
BRI BN
The shopping mall, all car parking spaces, Commercial/ 80% 6,000 79,000 63,000
various apartment units and offices Residential
Jingguang Centre Yanhe Road North, R EE
Luohu, Shenzhen, the PRC
7 A BRI T 78 A e L R R Y|
REFLEYRES - TERES -
ZEFTEEMRPAE
Nos. 134, 142 and 150 Yanan Road East, Commercial 100% 600 2,500 2,500
Shanghai, the PRC [EES
RE_EETIIE L R EE 134, 142, 15055
149,500
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